10

TO:

Public Document Pack
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL

Development Control Committee
Date: Wednesday, 7th October, 2020
Time: 5.00 pm
Place: Virtual Meeting via MS Teams

Contact: Tim Row - Principal Democratic Services Officer
Email: committeesection@southend.gov.uk

AGENDA

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest

Minutes of the Meeting held on Wednesday, 29th July 2020
Supplementary Report

Contents List and Introduction

20/01045/AMDT - 67 Branksome Road, Southend-on-Sea (Kursaal Ward)
(Pages 13 - 32)

20/01095/AMDT - Beaumont Court and Richmond House —
71 Victoria Avenue, Southend-on-Sea (Victoria Ward) (Pages 33 - 128)

20/01146/FUL - 15 Aylesbeare, Shoeburyness (West Shoebury Ward)
(Pages 129 - 166)

20/01018/FULH - 115 Tattersall Gardens, Leigh-on-Sea (West Leigh Ward)
(Pages 167 - 202)

20/01048/FULH - 1 Highwood Close, Leigh-on-Sea (Blenheim Park Ward)
(Pages 203 - 220)

20/01221/FULH - 159 Burges Road, Thorpe Bay, Southend-on-Sea
(Thorpe Ward) (Pages 221 - 238)

The Chair & Members of the Development Control Committee:

Councillor N Ward (Chair)

Councillors M Borton (Vice-Chair), B Ayling, J Beck, A Chalk, D Cowan, A Dear,
M Dent, F Evans, D Garston, S Habermel, D Jarvis, A Jones, C Mulroney,
A Thompson, S Wakefield and C Walker



This page is intentionally left blank



Public Document Pack
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL

Meeting of Development Control Committee

Date: Wednesday, 29th July, 2020
Place: Virtual Meeting via MS Teams

Present: Councillor N Ward (Chair)

Councillors M Borton (Vice-Chair), B Ayling, J Beck, A Chalk,
D Cowan, A Dear, M Dent, F Evans, M Flewitt, D Garston,

S Habermel, D Jarvis, A Jones, A Thompson, S Wakefield and
*P Wexham

*Substitute in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 31.

In P Geraghty, C Galforg, P Keyes, C White, J Rowley, M Warren,

Attendance: T Row, C Woodcraft, A Smyth and T Hartley

Start/End 5.00 -6.30 pm

Time:

223 Apologies for Absence
Apologies were received from Councillors Mulroney (Substitute: Clir Wexham)
and Walker (Substitute: Clir Flewitt)

224 Declarations of Interest

(@) Clir Beck — Agenda item No.10 (20/00760/FULH - 115 Tattersall
Gardens, Leigh-On-Sea) — Non-Pecuniary Interest: Has received emails from
the applicant

(b)  Clir Dear — Agenda item No. 10 (20/00760/FULH - 115 Tattersall
Gardens, Leigh-On-Sea) - Non-Pecuniary Interest: Has received emails from
the applicant

(c) Clir Evans — Agenda item No.10 (20/00760/FULH - 115 Tattersall
Gardens, Leigh-On-Sea) — Non-Pecuniary Interest: has been lobbied in the past
on application on this site, but not this application specifically

(d)  Clir Flewitt — Agenda item No. 13 (20/00953/TPO - 59 The Bentleys,
Eastwood, Leigh-on-Sea) — Disqualifying Non-Pecuniary: Has had email
correspondence with the objector to the application

(e) Clir Garston — Agenda item No.10 (20/00760/FULH - 115 Tattersall
Gardens, Leigh-On-Sea) Non-Pecuniary Interest: The applicant has phoned him
twice regarding this application

(f) Clir Thompson — Agenda item No. 10 (20/00760/FULH - 115 Tattersall
Gardens, Leigh-On-Sea) Non-Pecuniary Interest: The applicant has
contacted him



225

226

227

228

229

230

(g) Clir Ward — Agenda item No. 10 (20/00760/FULH - 115 Tattersall Gardens,
Leigh-On-Sea) Non-Pecuniary Interest: The applicant has phoned him

(h) Clir Ward — Agenda item No. 10 (20/00760/FULH - 115 Tattersall Gardens,
Leigh-On-Sea) Non-Pecuniary Interest: Is an owner of a bed and breakfast

Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 4th March 2020
Resolved:-

That the Minutes of the Meeting held on 18th May 2020 be confirmed as a
correct record and signed.

Minutes of the special meeting held on Monday, 18th May 2020
Resolved:-

That the Minutes of the Meeting held on 18" May 2020 be confirmed as a
correct record and signed.

Minutes of the special meeting held on Wednesday, 27th May 2020
Resolved:-

That the Minutes of the Meeting held on 27t May 2020 be confirmed as a
correct record and signed.

Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 3rd June 2020
Resolved:-

That the Minutes of the Meeting held on 3 June 2020 be confirmed as a
correct record and signed.

Minutes of the Meeting held on Wednesday, 1st July, 2020
Resolved:-

That the Minutes of the Meeting held on 1st July 2020 be confirmed as a correct
record and signed.

20/00544/FUL - 48 Argyll Road, Westcliff-On-Sea (Milton Ward)

Proposal: Erect attached two storey building to rear to form nine-bedroom
rehabilitation accommodation, layout associated amenity space.

Applicant: Dr B Bekas

Agent: Mr Colin Stone of Stone Me Ltd

Resolved:-

This application was WITHDRAWN.



231

20/00739/FULH - 100 Eastwood Road, Leigh-On-Sea (Belfairs Ward)

Proposal: Erect single storey front extension, single storey rear
extension, form roof extension and install terrace to rear, form raised
patio to rear and alter elevations

Applicant: Mr Ali

Agent: Mr Mehran Gharleghi of Studio Integrate Itd.

Resolved:-

That PLANNING PERMISSION be GRANTED subject to the following
conditions:

01 The development hereby permitted shall begin no later than three years
from the date of this decision.

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

02 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved plans: LP300, E.GA100, E.GA101, E.GA102,
E.GA103, E.GA104, E.GA105, E.GA106, E.GA107, GA100, GA101, GA102,
GA103, GA104, GA105, GA106, GA107, GA108.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
provisions of the Development Plan.

03 The proposed development shall be finished in materials as specified on
approved drawing no.GA104, GA105, GA106, GA107. This applies unless
differences are shown on the drawings hereby approved or are required by
conditions to this permission.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that the appearance of
the building makes a positive contribution to the character and appearance of
the area. This is as set out in the National Planning Policy Framework (2019),
Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development Management
Document (2015) Policy DM1, and advice in the Southend-on-Sea Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).

04 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise
approved, prior to first use of the first floor rear roof terrace hereby approved,
privacy screening to the north flank elevation shall be installed (a minimum
1.7m high in relation to the terrace floor and to at least Level 4 on the Pilkington
Levels of obscurity), the details of which shall have previously been submitted
to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall
be carried out in accordance with the approved details before it is brought into
use and retained as such thereafter in perpetuity.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the amenities of neighbouring
occupiers and to ensure a satisfactory standard of screening in accordance with
Policy DM1 of the Development Management Document (2015) and policies
KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007).



232

05 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, details
of tree protection measures to protect the 2no. TPO Oak trees to the front of the
site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
The approved tree protection measures shall be implemented in full prior to the
commencement of the development and be retained throughout construction.

Reason: To ensure the trees to be retained as part of the development hereby
approved are adequately protected during building works in the interests of
visual amenity and in accordance with Core Strategy (2007) policies KP2 and
CP4, Development Management Document (2015).

06 The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in
determining this application by assessing the proposal against all material
considerations, including planning policies and any representations that may
have been received and subsequently determining to grant planning permission
in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as
set out within the National Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is
set out in a report on the application prepared by officers.

Informative

1. You are advised that as the proposed extension(s) to your property
equates to less than 100sgm of new floorspace the development benefits from
a Minor Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable. See
www.southend.gov.uk/cil for further details about CIL.

2. You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during
construction works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council
may seek to recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from
any party responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out
when implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land.
Please take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and
footpaths in the Borough.

20/00760/FULH - 115 Tattersall Gardens, Leigh-On-Sea (West Leigh Ward)
Proposal: Erect first floor rear extension and extend balcony to rear
Applicant: Mr J Moore

Agent: N/A

Resolved:-

That PLANNING PERMISSION be GRANTED subject to the following
conditions:

01 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years
from the date of this decision.

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.



02 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved plans: 1200 010 Revision C & 1200 012 Revision F,
South Flank Elevation Plan & Tree Position Plan

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
provisions of the Development Plan.

03 Prior to first use of the balcony hereby approved, obscure glazed privacy
screens shall be installed to the north and south sides of the balcony at a height
of 1.7 metres above the balcony finished floor level in accordance with details
that have previously been submitted to the local planning authority and
approved in writing and these screens shall be glazed in obscure glass (the
glass to be obscure to at least Level 4 on the Pilkington Levels of Privacy). The
screens shall be permanently retained thereafter.

Reason: To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring
residential properties, Core Strategy (2007) policy CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) policy DM1 and the advice contained in the
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

04 All new work to the outside of the building must match existing original
work in terms of the choice of materials, method of construction and finished
appearance. This applies unless differences are shown on the drawings hereby
approved or are required by conditions to this permission.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that the appearance of
the building makes a positive contribution to the character and appearance of
the area. This is as set out in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF),
Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2 and CP4, Development Management
Document (2015) policy DM1, and the advice contained in the Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations,
including planning policies and any representations that may have been
received and subsequently determining to grant planning permission in
accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set
out within the National Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set
out in a report on the application prepared by officers.

Informative

01 You are advised that as the proposed extension(s) to your property equates
to less than 100sgm of new floorspace the development benefits from a Minor
Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations
2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable. See
www.southend.gov.uk/cil for further details about CIL.

02 You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during
construction works to the highway in implementing this permission, that the
Council may seek to recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths
from any party responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried
out when implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or



233

234

land. Please take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways
and footpaths in the borough.

20/00800/FUL - 2 Coptfold Close, Southend-on-Sea (Southchurch Ward)

Proposal: Convert dwellinghouse into two self-contained flats, erect part
single/two storey side extension, erect part single/part two storey rear
extension, alter elevations, layout parking to front

Applicant: Mr A Bysouth

Agent: Mr Paul Seager of APS Design Associates Ltd

Resolved:-
That PLANNING PERMISSION be REFUSED for the following reasons:

01 The development would result in the loss of a family-sized dwelling, a
type of unit for which there is a particular identified need, to the detriment of the
Borough’s housing supply. No benefits which outweigh this harm have been
advanced. This application is therefore is unacceptable and contrary to the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Policies KP1, KP2, CP4 and CP8
of the Southend-on-Sea Core Strategy (2007), and Policy DM3 of the
Southend-on-Sea Development Management Document (2015).

02 The proposed development, by reason of its failure to include adequate
private amenity space would provide substandard living conditions for the future
occupiers of the proposed first floor flat, to the detriment of their amenity. This is
unacceptable and contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework (2019),
Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007), Policies DM1, DM3 and
DM8 (as amended by the Technical Housing Standards Policy Transition
Statement (2015)) of the Development Management Document (2015) and the
advice contained within the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

20/00875/FULH - 29 The Drive, Westcliff-On-Sea (Chalkwell Ward)

Proposal: Hip to gable roof extension with dormer to rear and alter elevations
(Part Retrospective) (Amended Proposal)

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Diver

Agent: Mrs Lindsey Wislocki

Resolved:-

That PLANNING PERMISSION be GRANTED subject to the following
conditions:

01 The development hereby permitted shall begin no later than three years
from the date of this decision.

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

02 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved plans: P1010; P1011; P1012; P1013; P1014;
P1015; P1016



235

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
provisions of the Development Plan.

03 Finishing materials shall be tile hanging to the dormer’s exterior walls
with black Upvc windows and fascia to match existing original work, as
demonstrated in approved plan: P1012.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that the appearance of
the building makes a positive contribution to the character and appearance of
the area. This is as set out in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF),
Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2 and CP4, Development Management
Document (2015) policy DM1, and advice contained in the Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).

Informative

01 The existing roof extensions are unauthorised and failure to promptly
remedy their identified harm through implementation of this planning permission
leaves the owner open to the implications of the planning enforcement notice
which has been served by the Council.

02 You are advised that as the proposed extension(s) to your property
equates to less than 100sgm of new floorspace the development would benefit
from a Minor Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010 (as amended) and as such no charge would be payable. See
www.southend.gov.uk/cil for further details about CIL.

03 You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during
construction works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council
may seek to recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from
any party responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out
when implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land.
Please take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and
footpaths in the borough.

20/00953/TPO - 59 The Bentleys, Eastwood, Leigh-on-Sea (St Laurence
Ward)

Proposal: Crown reduce Robinia to side of dwelling by 2-2.5 metre all
round with varying quantities of reduction to best pruning points to leave
balanced tree following the form of the crown (Application for works to a
tree covered by a Tree Preservation Order)

Applicant: Miss Jade Hardy

Agent: N/A

Resolved:-

That CONSENT TO CARRY OUT WORK ON TREES be GRANTED subject to
the following conditions:

01 The works covered by this consent must be begun not later than the
expiration of two years beginning with the date of this consent.



Reason: To enable the circumstances to be reviewed at the expiration of the
period if the consent has not been implemented, in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policy KP2
and CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM1 and advice
in the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

02 The works to the robinia tree covered by TPO 3/2000 T1 shall be restricted
to crown reduction of 2-2.5 metres with varying quantities of reduction on each
cardinal point pruning to best pruning points to leave the tree balanced and
following the form of the crown.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2 and CP4,
Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM1 and the Southend
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

03 The works shall be carried out in accordance with British Standard BS 3998
(2010) by a suitably qualified person.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2 and CP4,
Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM1 and the Southend
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by identifying matters of concern within the application (as
originally submitted) and negotiating, with the Applicant, acceptable
amendments to the proposal to address those concerns.

As a result, the Local Planning Authority has been able to grant planning
permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance with the presumption in
favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National Planning
Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report on the application
prepared by officers.

Chair:




DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

AGENDA: 07th October 2020

WARD APP/REF NO. ADDRESS
Main Plans Report
67 Branksome Road
Kursaal 20/01045/AMDT
Southend-On-Sea
Beaumont Court and Richmond House
Victoria 20/01095/AMDT o
61 - 71 Victoria Avenue
15 Aylesbeare
West 20/01146/FUL Y
Shoebury Shoeburyness
. 115 Tattersall Gardens
West Leigh 20/01018/FULH _
Leigh-On-Sea
; 1 Highwood Close
Blenheim 20/01048/FULH 9
Park Leigh-On-Sea
159 Burges Road
Thorpe 20/01221/FULH

Thorpe Bay




DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

10



(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

INTRODUCTION

Recommendations in capitals at the end of each report are those of the
Deputy Chief Executive and Executive Director (Housing & Growth), are not
the decision of the Committee and are subject to consideration by
Councillors.

All plans have been considered in the context of the Borough Council's
Environmental Charter. An assessment of the environmental implications of
development proposals is inherent in the development control process and implicit
in the reports.

Reports will not necessarily be dealt with in the order in which they are printed.

The following abbreviations are used in the reports:-

BLP - Borough Local Plan

DAS - Design & Access Statement

DEFRA - Department of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs

DPD - Development Plan Document

EA - Environmental Agency

EPOA - Essex Planning Officer’'s Association

DCLG - Department of Communities and Local Government

NPPF - National Planning Policy Framework

NPPG - National Planning Practice Guidance

SPD - Supplementary Planning Document

SSSI - Sites of Special Scientific Interest. A national designation. SSSIs
are the country's very best wildlife and geological sites.

SPA - Special Protection Area. An area designated for special protection

under the terms of the European Community Directive on the
Conservation of Wild Birds.

Ramsar Site — Describes sites that meet the criteria for inclusion in the list of
Wetlands of International Importance under the Ramsar
Convention. (Named after a town in Iran, the Ramsar Convention
is concerned with the protection of wetlands, especially those
important for migratory birds)

Background Papers

(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)

NB

Planning applications and supporting documents and plans
Application worksheets and supporting papers
Non-exempt contents of property files

Consultation and publicity responses

NPPF and NPPG

Core Strategy

Borough Local Plan

Other letters and papers not taken into account in preparing this report but received
subsequently will be reported to the Committee either orally or in a supplementary
report.

11



DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

Use Classes
(Generally, in force from 1st September 2020)

Class B1 Business

Class B2 General industrial

Class B8 Storage or distribution

Class C1 Hotels

Class C2 Residential institutions

Class C2A Secure residential institutions
Class C3 Dwellinghouses

Class C4 Houses in multiple occupation
Class E Commercial, Business and Service
Class F.1 Learning and non-residential institutions
Class F.2 Local community

Sui Generis A use on its own, for which any change of use will require planning
permission.

Deleted Use Classes
(limited effect on applications for prior approval and other permitted
development rights until 31st July 2021)

Class A1 Shops

Class A2 Financial and professional services
Class A3 Restaurants and cafes

Class A4 Drinking establishments

Class A5 Hot food takeaways

Class D1 Non-residential institutions

Class D2 Assembly and leisure

12



Reference: 20/01045/AMDT

Application Type: Minor Material Amendment 5

Ward: Kursaal

Proposal: Application to vary condition 01 (Approved Plans) amend
from pitched roof to flat roof with Velux windows with roof
lantern (Minor Material amendment of planning permission
19/00598/FULH - Erect single storey rear extension dated 5th
June 2019)

Address: 67 Branksome Road
Southend-On-Sea
Essex
SS2 4HG

Applicant: Mrs D Curson

Agent: N/A

Consultation Expiry: 10t August 2020

Expiry Date: 10t September 2020

Case Officer: Julie Ramsey

Plan Nos: Drwg 1, Drwg 2b, Drwg 3a

Recommendation:

GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to conditions

13




1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.1

3.2

Site and Surroundings

The application site is located on the northern side of Branksome Road, west of the
junction with Lyme Road. The site contains a mid-terrace two storey dwelling with a
front gable projection with bay windows.

The area is characterised by two storey terraced dwellings of generally similar
designs and forms. There are other examples of single storey rear extensions in the
surrounding area.

The site is not located within a Conservation Area or subject to any site specific
planning policies. The site is located in Flood Zone 1 which is of a low risk of flooding.

Proposal

Permission is sought to vary Condition 01 of planning permission 19/00598/FULH
which was granted on 5t June 2019 ‘Erect single storey rear extension’

Condition 01 states:

The development shall be undertaken solely in accordance with the approved plans
Drwg 1, Drwg 2 and Drwg 3.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenities, pursuant to the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies
DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015).

The minor material amendment therefore being sought relates to the replacement of
the previously approved mono-pitch roof with a flat roof and central roof lantern.
Therefore the approved plans are required to be replaced and the revised scheme is
subject to neighbour consultation and a subsequent appraisal.

Other than the alteration to the roof, all other elements of the works associated with
the initially approved application (19/00598/FULH) remain unchanged and are not
the subject of further consideration.

This application is referred to the Development Control Committee for determination
as the applicant is related to an employee of the Council.

Relevant Planning History
19/00598/FULH - Erect single storey rear extension — Planning permission granted
19/00322/CLP — Erect dormer to rear with Juliette balcony and rooflights to front to

form habitable accommodation in the roofspace (Lawful Development Certificate -
Proposed) — Certificate Granted

14



4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

6.1

7.1

7.2

Representation Summary
Public consultation

Six neighbouring properties were notified and one letter of representation has been
received.
Summary of matters raised:

e 17.5m dimension shown on DRWG 3a must not include any part of the public
access alleyway.

All relevant planning considerations are assessed within the Appraisal Section 7 of
the report. These concerns are noted and they have been taken into account in the
assessment of the application but have not been found to represent reasons for
refusal in the circumstances of this case.

Planning Policy Summary

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)(2019)

Core Strategy (2007): Policies KP1 (Spatial Strategy), KP2 (Development
Principles), CP3 (Transport and Accessibility) and CP4 (Environment & Urban
Renaissance).

Development Management Document (2015): Policies DM1 (Design Quality), DM3
(Efficient and Effective Use of Land) and DM15 (Sustainable Transport
Management).

The Design and Townscape Guide (2009)

CIL Charging Schedule (2015)

Planning Considerations

The key considerations in relation to this application are the principle of the
development, design and impact on the character of the area, impact on residential
amenity and any highways implications.

Appraisal

The principle of the development was accepted under the previously approved
planning application. There are no material changes in relevant planning policies or
variations to the development or its circumstances which alter this view. The

determining material planning considerations are discussed below.

The proposed changes are considered to fall within the remit of a minor material
amendment to the consented scheme in principle.

15



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.10

7.11

7.12

Design and Impact on the Character of the Area

Paragraph 124 of the National Planning Policy Framework states: “Good design is a
key aspect of sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and
work and helps make development acceptable to communities”

Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the
Development Management Document advocate the need for development to secure
good relationships with the existing development and respect the existing scale. The
Design and Townscape Guide states that alterations to existing buildings with
particular reference to extensions should appear subservient and must be respectful
of the scale of the present building.

Paragraph 348 of The Design and Townscape Guide states that “Whether or not
there are any public views, the design of rear extensions is still important and every
effort should be made to integrate them with the character of the parent building,
particularly in terms of scale, materials and the relationship with existing fenestration
and roof form”.

The application relates solely to the alteration of the previously approved mono-pitch
roof to a flat roof with central roof lantern. The approved scheme had an eaves height
of some 2.75m and a maximum height of 4.1m. This revised scheme would see the
eaves height raised very slightly to 2.8m and the maximum height to the top of the
roof lantern is some 3.4m.

The revised proposal would not introduce any further material impacts with regards
to the scale, layout, position and proximity of the development to the shared
boundaries and is considered to be of an acceptable design. The proposed flat roof
extension would maintain the character and appearance of the host dwelling and the
rear garden scene.

Therefore the proposal is considered to be acceptable and policy compliant in these
regards.

Impact on Residential Amenity

Paragraph 343 of the Design and Townscape Guide under the heading of ‘Alterations
and Additions to Existing Residential Buildings’ states that “extensions must respect
the amenity of neighbouring buildings and ensure not to adversely affect light, outlook
or privacy of the habitable rooms in adjacent properties.”

Policy DM1 of the Development Management Document requires all development to
be appropriate in its setting by respecting neighbouring development and existing
residential amenities “having regard to privacy, overlooking, outlook, noise and
disturbance, sense of enclosure/overbearing relationship, pollution, daylight and
sunlight.”

The impact on residential amenity was considered to be acceptable in the previously
approved application. The slight rise in eaves height, along with the reduction in
height overall is not considered to result in any material change in the impact of the
proposed extension on the residential amenity of the neighbouring occupiers.

16



7.13

7.14

8.1

01

02

03

The proposal would therefore maintain neighbour amenity to a suitable degree and
is therefore considered to be acceptable and policy compliant in the above regards.

Community Infrastructure Levy

As the proposed development equates to less than 100sgm of new floorspace, and
does not involve the creation of a new dwelling (Class C3), the development benefits
from a Minor Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable.

Conclusion

Having regard to all material considerations assessed above, it is considered that
subject to compliance with the attached conditions, the proposal would be acceptable
as a minor material amendment to the development granted permission under
reference (19/00958/FULH), as it would be acceptable and compliant with the
objectives of the relevant local development plan policies and guidance. The
proposed development is not considered to result in demonstrable harm upon the
amenities of neighbouring occupiers or the character and appearance of the
application site or wider area.

Recommendation
GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to the following conditions:

The development shall be undertaken solely in accordance with the approved
plans Drwg 1, Drwg 2b and Drwg 3a.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenities, pursuant to the National Planning
Policy Framework (2019), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015).

The development hereby permitted shall begin no later than three years from
the date of the decision.

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

All new work to the outside of the building must match existing original work
in terms of the choice of materials, method of construction and finished
appearance. This applies unless differences are shown on the drawings
hereby approved or are required by conditions to this permission.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that the appearance
of the building makes a positive contribution to the character and appearance
of the area. This is as set out in the National Planning Policy Framework (2019),
Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development Management
Document (2015) Policies DM1 and DM3 and the advice contained within the
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

17



04

The roof of the rear extension hereby approved shall not be used as a balcony,
roof garden or similar amenity area or for any other purpose unless express
planning permission has previously been obtained. The roof can however be
used for the purposes of maintenance or to escape in an emergency.

Reason: To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring
residential properties, in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policy CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) Policy DM1, and Design and Townscape Guide
(2009).

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in
determining this application by assessing the proposal against all material
considerations, including planning policies and any representations that may
have been received and subsequently determining to grant planning
permission in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable
development, as set out within the National Planning Policy Framework. The
detailed analysis is set out in a report on the application prepared by officers.

Informatives

You are advised that as the proposed extension(s) or change of use to your
property equates to less than 100sgm of new floorspace, and does not involve
the creation of a new dwelling (Class C3), the development benefits from a
Minor Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable. See
www.southend.gov.uk/cil for further details about CIL.

You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek
to recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land.
Please take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and
footpaths in the borough.

18



6T



This page is intentionally left blank



.I@nl

PIv T T

isgiu{\‘-

e e T

e

# 4 \\al._. -
- E -
POCEDUE  cies

Qe wretexstuvoy (3

=T
PENS S oo S

SN

B e i o dl
oty

| P g e pE o v Dy

i

e e
FE wpemy wra ppeG capwebesr comy
wrodl pad s
Sl F R AL T (R e
L A T S
-

e e predlg A eRE e
RS . P R

i

21




This page is intentionally left blank



Committee Site Photographs

67 Branksome Road



Front 69 and 67



Rear Boundary



Existing Rear Extension at 67



Neighbouring rear extensions No. 65
onwards



Separation with No 65



Area to be infilled No. 65



Area to be infilled No 69



No 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/01095/AMDT

Reference:

20/01095/AMDT

Application Type:

Ward:

Minor Material Amendment 6

Victoria

Proposal:

Application to vary conditions 02 (materials). 03 (hard and
soft landscaping), 04 (landscape maintenance), 05
(telecoms equipment), 06 (extraction, filtration, air con,
ventilation/refrigeration equipment) and 07 (car parking and
cycle storage)-various site changes comprising of increases
to car parking and cycle spaces, revisions to landscaping
areas, new residents entrance, waiting area, concierge
service, residents community/meeting room and gym -
Minor Amendment of planning permission 06/00598/FUL
allowed on Appeal dated 03.10.2007

Address:

Beaumont Court and Richmond House, 61 - 71 Victoria
Avenue, Southend-On-Sea

Applicant:

Randall Watts

Agent:

Steven Kearney of SKArchitects

Consultation Expiry:

10th September 2020

Expiry Date:

9th November 2020

Case Officer:

Abbie Greenwood

Plan Nos:

06/00598/FUL Drawings to be replaced (submitted)

CH/01/03 Sheet 1, CH/01/04 Sheet 2, , CH/01/04,
CH/01/05 Sheet 3, CH/01/06 Sheet 4,
CHO1/06(materials), CH/01/08 Sheet 1, CH/01/11 Sheet
4, CH01/012, 22855-L-PL-90-00A, 22855-L-PL-90-01A,
22855-A-PL-SK-01, 22855-A-PL-SK-02, 22855-A-PL-SK-
03, 22855-A-PL-SK-04, 22855-A-PL-SK-05, 22855-A-PL-
05E-01A, 22855-A-PL-05E-02A, 22855-A-PL-05E-03A,
22855-A-PL-SK-06, 22855-A-PL-SK-07, 22855-A-PL-03P-
003A, 22855-A-PL-05E-04, 279-03-15-214-00, 22855-A-
PL-03P-000-Rev E1, 22855-A-PL-05E-01-Rev B, 22855-A-
PL-70P-002 Rev A

As built drawing (submitted but evolving)
279-03-15-6201A
Proposed final drawings (submitted)

279-03-15-6084B, 279-03-15-6085E, 279-03-15-6103A,
279-03-15-6202A, 279-03-15-6203A, 279-03-15-6204A,

279-03-15-6205A, 279-03-15-6206A, 279-03-15-6207, 279-
03-15-6088H

33-1-




Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/01095/AMDT

06/00598/FUL Drawings to remain unchanged (not
submitted)

22855-A-02-PL-001 Rev A, 22855-A-PL-03P-001-000 Rev
A, 22855-A-PL-03P-002 Rev A, 22855-A-PL-03P-003 Rev
A, 22855-A-PL-03P-004 Rev A, 22855-A-PL-03P-005 Rev
A, 22855-A-PL-03P-006 Rev A, 22855-A-PL-03P-007 Rev
A, 22855-A-PL-03P-008 Rev A, 22855-A-PL-03P-009 Rev
A, 22855-A-PL-03P-010 Rev A

Supporting Documents Proposed (submitted)

e Beaumont and Richmond Planning History

e Management Strategy for Beaumont Court and
Richmond House by IV Property Management Ltd

e Travel Plan 2020 by N.R.W. Associates dated Jan
2020

e Beaumont and Richmond Waste Management Plan
by B&R Property Management Ltd

e Beaumont and Richmond Gardening Specification
by IV Property Management Ltd

Recommendation:

Delegate to the Interim Director for Planning and the
Group Manager Planning and Building Control to
GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to completion
of a legal agreement under S106 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

.....

-2-34




1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/01095/AMDT

Site and Surroundings

The site constitutes a corner plot which is located to the west of Victoria Avenue and
south of Harcourt Avenue. It is irregular in shape and also has a frontage to Baxter
Avenue to the rear. The site is currently being developed to convert the former office
buildings to provide a mixed development. 280 self-contained flats were approved
initially within the existing buildings and a further 15 flats have subsequently been
approved through extensions and alterations on top of the buildings and through the
conversion of the ground floor area of Richmond House which was initially proposed to
have a retail use. This development is nearing completion.

The surrounding area is mixed with residential and commercial premises, with the Civic
Centre located to the east of the site. However, a number of the previous, tall office
buildings to the south of the site have also recently been converted into residential flats.
There are smaller scaled residential houses and flats to the north and west of the site in
Harcourt Avenue and Baxter Avenue.

The site has no specific allocation within the Development Management Proposals Map,
however the site is located within an area fronting Victoria Avenue; one of the main
approaches to the main town centre and is located close to the mainline Southend
Victoria Railway Station. Within the Southend Central Area Action Plan (SCAAP), the
site is allocated as an “opportunity site” (PA8.1) and includes the aspiration to transform
the area into “a new a sustainable mixed use community with high quality
developments”.

The Proposal

Planning permission was granted at appeal on 3 October 2007 (Application No:
06/00598/FUL) to ‘Redevelop site with part 4/part 8/part10/partii/part1i2 storey
buildings comprising 280 flats with commercial uses at ground floor, provide 166 car
parking spaces, cycle storage for 288 cycles, amenity space, refuse storage and form
access onto Harcourt Avenue and Baxter Avenue.’

The current application is seeking to vary conditions 02 (materials). 03 (hard and soft
landscaping), 04 (landscape maintenance), 05 (telecoms equipment), 06 (extraction,
filtration, air con, ventilation/refrigeration equipment) and 07 (car parking and cycle
storage)-of that permission. The amendments include a change to the number of car
parking and cycle spaces, revisions to the layout and detail of landscaping, and a
change to the community and communal facilities for the residents.

Conditions 02, 03,04,05,06,and 07 form the appeal decision state:

02 No development shall take place until details of the materials to be used un the
construction of the external surfaces of the buildings hereby permitted, including the
location of and materials for any balconies but excluding shopfronts, have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Details of any
shopfront shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority
before being installed in the building. Development shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved details.

35-3-



2.3

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/01095/AMDT

03 No development shall take place until full details of both hard and soft landscape
works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority
and these works shall be carried out as approved These details shall include means of
enclosure, car park layouts, other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas,
hard surfacing materials, minor artefacts and structures (e.g. street furniture, refuse or
other storage units, signs, lighting etc). All hard and soft landscape works shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of
the development or in accordance with any programme agreed with the local planning
authority.

04 No development shall take place until a schedule of landscape maintenance for a
minimum of 5 years has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The schedule shall include details of the arrangements for its implementation.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

05 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any other revoking and re-enacting that Order
with or without modification), no telecommunications equipment shall be installed above
the highest part of the roof of either building.

06 No dust or fume or filtration equipment or air conditioning, ventilation or refrigeration
equipment shall be installed until details of its design, siting, discharge points and
predicted acoustic performance have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. The equipment shall be installed in accordance with the
approved details and thereafter retained as such.

07 Before occupation of any parts of the building the related servicing manoeuvring, car
parking spaces and cycle storage facilities shall have been completed in accordance
with the approved drawings. These facilities shall thereafter be kept available at all
times for their designated purpose.

It is noted that no reasons for these conditions were imposed by the Inspector.

Since 2015 there have been a number of subsequent planning applications at the site
which have granted consent for additions and alterations to the originally approved
proposal. The full history is set out in Section 3 below but the main changes include a
new lobby to Beaumont Court (ref 15/01147/NON), the conversion of the ground floor
retail unit in Richmond House to residential units (ref 19/01868/FUL ) and penthouse
additions to both buildings (refs 20/00686/AMDT and 20/00672/FUL). The current
application is seeking to regularise changes to the development which have been built
that differ from the original 2006 application (ref 06/00598/FUL) and are not covered by
the subsequent approvals. The differences between the consented schemes and that
which has been built and for which planning permission is now sought are as follows:

e Changes to the ground floor internal layout of both buildings including the
configuration of cycle storage, refuse storage, commercial areas and resident’s
facilities.

e Changes to the landscaping scheme around the buildings and on the roof
terraces.

-4-36



24

2.5

2.6

2.7

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/01095/AMDT

Changes to the parking layout and related servicing and manoeuvring
arrangements including an increase in parking spaces from 166 to 180 for the
flats and 7 additional public car parking spaces in the public square, 2 of which
are disabled spaces.

Minor elevational changes comprising a number of additional/amended doors at
ground floor.

These changes are discussed in more detail below.

The proposal is also seeking to vary the Section 106 agreement which accompanied the
2006 application. The original heads of terms were as follows:

1.

ook w

7.

8.

Public Accessible Area — relating to the provision and detail of public square to
the front of the site including maintaining access for the public, future
maintenance responsibility

Victoria Avenue Works - including changes to the carriageway arrangement and
a maintenance payment of £5455 (index-linked) per year for 3 years, a
contribution to bus stop improvements (£20,000 index-linked), a contribution to
the Victoria Avenue underpass (£2,182 index-linked) and costs of the
amendment of the traffic regulation order (£2,182 index-linked).

Public Art - lighting scheme to be provided

CCTV contribution

Residents Community Facilities - residents meeting room to be provided
Management Strategy for the site including car park management, refuse and
outside areas

A Travel Plan for the site including a contribution to a Controlled Parking Zone
(CPZ)

Affordable Housing — 84 units.

These were varied in 2015 under application reference 15/02019/S106BA and
15/02020/DOV to remove the requirement for a CCTV contribution, to remove the CPZ
contribution and to revise the provision of affordable housing to 52 units (floors 1-7
Richmond House) and a monetary contribution of £474,776. An index linked sum of
£520,610.00 was paid on 21.01.2020 in relation to affordable housing and 52 shared
ownership units have been provided in Richmond House.

The current proposed Heads of terms are set out below:

1. Public Accessible Area — amended design as shown on drawings reference
279-03-15- 6202A and 279-03-15-6088H to be provided and permanently
maintained.

2. Victoria Avenue Works - amended design as shown on drawings references
8715-04-CRH-XX-00-DR-C-4103-P1, 8715-04-CRH-XX-00-DR-C-4002 — P1
and 8715-04-CRH-XX-00-DR-C-4003 — P1 - noted as completed.

3. Public Art lighting scheme - amended design as shown on drawing reference
279-03-15-6088H to be permanently retained and maintained.

4. Residents Community Facility — amended facilities including communal lobby,
meeting room and residents gym as shown on drawing reference 279-03-15-
6202A to be permanently retained and maintained.

5. Management Strategy for the site including buildings, car park, refuse and
outside areas including public access area to be agreed.

6. Travel Plan for the site to be agreed.

37 -5-



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/01095/AMDT

7. Affordable Housing — 52 shared ownership units on floors 1-7 of Richmond
House as shown on drawings reference 279-03-15-4(15) FO1 and 279-03-15-
4(16) FO1 to be provided and permanently maintained. The affordable
housing contribution is to be noted as paid in full.

It is noted that a number of items in the original S106 have been amended or deleted to
reflect the current circumstances of the site. These changes are discussed in detail in
the Planning Obligations Section below.

Relevant Planning History
This site has an extensive planning history. This includes:

06/00598/FUL — Redevelop site with part 4/part 8/part10/part11/part12 storey buildings
comprising 280 flats with commercial uses at ground floor, provide 166 car parking
spaces, cycle storage for 288 cycles, amenity space, refuse storage and form access
onto Harcourt Avenue and Baxter Avenue — planning permission refused, but allowed at
appeal. This development is currently being undertaken.

10/01615/AD - Application for Approval of Details pursuant to condition 02 (details of
external building materials excluding shopfronts), condition 03 (hard and soft
landscaping details), condition 04 (schedule of landscape maintenance) of Planning
Permission 06/00598/FUL approved on appeal dated 03/10/2007 — details approved

15/01147/NON - Replace plan numbers 22855-A-PL-03P-000 Rev D1, 22855--A-PL-
03P-05E-01 Rev A, 22855-A-PL-05E-02 Rev A with new plan numbers 22855-A-PL-
03P-000 Rev E1, 22855-A-PL-03P-05E-01 Rev B, 22855-A-PL-05E-02 Rev B and
create no.2 new entrance canopies, add condition to specify approved plan numbers
(Non-Material Amendments to planning permission 06/00598/FUL approved on appeal
dated 3rd October 2007) — non-material amendment granted

15/02020/DOV - Modification of planning obligation (Section 106 agreement) dated 24th
September 2007 pursuant to application 06/00598/FUL allowed on appeal to vary
relevant clauses and definitions pertaining to the delivery of affordable housing on the
site and the proposed Victoria Avenue Improvement Works— modification agreed.

15/02019/S106BA - Modification of planning obligation (Section 106 agreement) dated
24th September 2007 pursuant to application 06/00598/FUL allowed on appeal to vary
the requirement to provide affordable housing on the site — modification agreed.

18/00245/FUL - Erect tenth floor extensions to create eight self-contained flats with roof
terrace to front, side and rear, install terrace to front at eleventh floor level and form
additional parking — planning permission granted

18/00482/FUL - Install communal boiler flue to west elevation and roof - planning
permission granted

18/01241/FUL - Layout public space with six car parking spaces, public art, associated

landscaping, benches and vehicular access on to Victoria Avenue - planning
permission granted

-6-38



3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

4.1

4.2

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/01095/AMDT

19/01868/FUL - Change of use to ground floor commercial Units (Use Classes A1, A3,
D1) to form six self-contained flats (Class C3), alterations to elevations and relocate
exiting bike store’. — planning permission granted

19/00380/FUL - Change of use of roof storage (Class B8) to Office (Class B1(a)) and
erect extension at roof level to form additional office space, alter elevations — planning
permission granted

20/00686/AMDT - Application to vary condition 02 and remove condition 05, replace
plan 491-01-18 PO7A with 279-03-15-6102A, Alter landscaping (Minor Material
Amendment of planning permission 18/00245/FUL dated 09.05.18) — planning
permission granted

20/00672/FUL - Convert disused rooftop ancillary plantroom into self-contained flat,
erect glass extension to north elevation with terrace and alter elevations — planning
permission granted

20/00686/AMDT - Application to vary condition 02 and remove condition 05, replace
plan 491-01-18 PO7A with 297-03-15-6013A, Alter landscaping (Minor Material
Amendment of planning permission 18/00245/FUL dated 09.05.18) — planning
permission granted

20/01264/AMDT - Application to vary condition 02 (Approved Plans) and condition 03
(Parking spaces) replace drawing nos. 279-03-15-6088 F and 279-03-15-6089 D with
279-03-15-6088 G and 279-03-15-6102 D, alter car parking spaces (Minor Material
Amendment of planning permission 18/01241/FUL dated 14/11/2018) - Pending
consideration

20/01217/AMDT Application to vary condition 02 (Approved Plans), 04 (Car parking)
and 07 (Cycle parking), replace plan no. 491-02-18 P06 Rev A with drawing no. 279-03-
15-6102D., Alter parking and cycle store (Minor Material Amendment of planning
permission 18/00245/FUL dated 09.05.18) - Pending consideration

Representation Summary

Public Consultation

514 neighbouring properties were consulted, 4 site notices posted and a press notice
published. No letters of representation have been received.

Highways

The highways works set out on the plans submitted for the updated legal agreement
were completed by the developer, however, since this time the Council has carried out
further works to the highway in this location as part of the cycle improvement works in
this area.

The bus stop adjacent to the site has been upgraded by the Council including the
provision of real time information.

The subway lighting was converted to LED technology by the Council in 2013 which
included replacing any damaged Perspex covers.

39-7-



4.3

4.4

4.5

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

6.1

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/01095/AMDT

The Travel Plan is generally well considered, however, the document could be improved
by including a range of graphics and the action plan could be ‘smarter’. The Travel
Information Pack must be made available to residents on occupation.

Officer Comments: The Travel Plan is currently being updated. This will be secured by
the new legal agreement.

Environmental Health

No comments.

Parks

No comments.

Fire Service

No objections.

Planning Policy Summary

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019)

Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP1 (Spatial Strategy), KP2 (Development Principles),
CP2 (Town Centre and Retail Development), CP3 (Transport and Accessibility), CP4
(The Environment and Urban Renaissance), CP6 (Community Infrastructure) and CP8
(Dwelling Provision)

Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 (Design Quality), DM2 (Low
carbon development and efficient use of resources), DM3 (The Efficient and effective
use of land), DM4 (Tall and Large Buildings), DM8 (Residential Standards) and DM15

(Sustainable Transport Management)

Southend Central Area Action Plan (SCAAP) (2018) Policy PA8 (Victoria Gateway
Neighbourhood Policy Area Development Principles)

Design & Townscape Guide (2009)

National Design Guide (2019)

CIL Charging Schedule (2015)

Planning Considerations

This application is seeking the variation of conditions relating to landscaping, parking
arrangement and management and approval of a revised ground floor internal layout
including changes to cycle parking, refuse storage, commercial and residents facilities
and associated changes to the elevations on the ground floor of Beaumont Court; and

associated alterations to the highway layout. In all other respects the proposal remains
unchanged from that previously approved under reference 06/00598/FUL.

-8-40



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/01095/AMDT

The considerations in relation to this application are therefore: the principle of the mix
of non-residential uses in the development and impact on the character of the site and
surrounding area, traffic and transportation issues and standard of accommodation for
existing occupiers in terms of the communal residents facilities provided specifically. It is
considered that the amendments would have no material impact on neighbours or
sustainable development which were previously considered and found to be acceptable
in the original application.

Appraisal
Principle of Development

Planning approval was allowed at appeal on 3 October 2007 (Application No:
06/00598/FUL) to ‘Redevelop site with part 4/part 8/part10/part1i/part12 storey
buildings comprising 280 flats with commercial uses at ground floor, provide 166 car
parking spaces, cycle storage for 288 cycles, amenity space, refuse storage and form
access onto Harcourt Avenue and Baxter Avenue.’ It is noted that both the national and
local planning framework has been amended since this time.

The Core Strategy confirms that the primary focus of regeneration and growth within
Southend is in Southend Town Centre and the Central Area. The Southend Central
Area Action Plan (SCAAP) provides a more detailed and comprehensive planning policy
framework for the town centre to guide future development decisions.

Policy KP1 of the Core Strategy seeks the provision of additional homes within the
Town Centre. Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy seek development that makes
the best use of land and is sustainably located. It is also noted that the provision of new
high quality housing is a key Government objective.

Policy CP2 seeks to support the Town Centre as a regional centre including promoting
mixed-use development. A stated aim of Policy CP3 is to reduce reliance on the car in
new development. Policy CP8 of the Core Strategy identifies the need for 6,500 homes
to be delivered within the whole Borough between 2001 and 2021 and seeks that 80%
or more of residential development be provided on previously developed land.

Policy PA8 of the SCAAP sets out the principles for development in the Victoria
Gateway Neighbourhood Policy Area. This policy confirms that the Council will look
favourably on high quality large scale developments provided they are well designed,
can demonstrate that they will contribute to the transformation of this area into a vibrant
community, are well integrated with the surrounding neighbourhood and are of a quality
that befits this key gateway to the Town Centre.

Policy DM1 of the Development Management Document seeks to promote successful
places. Policy DM1 also requires new development to be of a design that positively
contributes to the overall quality of an area and respects the character of a site and its
local context. Policy DM3 seeks to support development that is well designed and
that looks to optimise the use of land in a sustainable manner that responds positively
to local context and does not lead to over-intensification.

41 -9-



7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

712

7.13

7.14

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/01095/AMDT

Mix of Uses

In addition to the 280 flats within the upper floors of the redundant office buildings, a
nursery/medical surgery/community facility was approved under application
06/00598/FUL on the ground floor of Beaumont Court on the western side of the
square. Two further retail units were approved at ground floor within the eastern
projection of Beaumont Court and the ground floor of Richmond House. This mix of
uses was considered to be a positive aspect of the initial proposal.

The ground floor area within Beaumont Court on the west side of the square, initially
approved for a nursery/medical surgery/community facility, has been converted into two
small retail units. The reason given for this change is the lack of interest in providing
community facilities in this location. Whilst this amendment does not have the same
community benefits as the initially proposed uses, it is noted that as retail units these
areas maintain an attractive and active frontage to the public space and will serve the
wider community. It is noted that there is no planning policy requirement for a nursery or
medical facility in this specific location. This change has also been offset by improved
communal facilities for residents which are discussed below.

The large retail unit within the projection of Beaumont Court has been subdivided into
two retail units, one A1 and one A3. There is no objection to this subdivision or the
proposed uses.

The large retail unit to the ground floor of Richmond House is currently undergoing
conversion to 6 additional flats. This proposal has been previously approved under
reference 19/01868/FUL and therefore does not fall within the remit of this application.

The changes to the proposed mix of uses are considered to be acceptable. The
proposal is consistent with the aims and objectives of the updated policies noted above
and remain acceptable in principle subject to the detailed considerations below.

Design, Landscaping and Impact on the Character of the Area

The changes to the exterior of the buildings are minor and include small changes to the
shopfront entrances, some new exterior doors to ancillary areas and a slight re-
alignment of the rear refuse store door on Beaumont Court. The other changes to the
buildings are internal at ground floor and do not have a material impact on the
streetscene.

Changes have also occurred to the external landscaping scheme including along the
site boundaries fronting Victoria Avenue, Harcourt Avenue and Baxter Avenue, within
the parking areas and to the public square. The application states that these changes
have been made to accommodate additional residents and visitors parking spaces on
site to meet demand and because of underground services.

An amended design has been submitted for the public space to the south east corner of
the site. In application reference 06/00598/FUL this area was proposed as a fully
landscaped pedestrian area. The design was subsequently amended under application
reference 18/01241/FUL to include 7 visitor parking spaces on the southern side
accessed from the Victoria Avenue slip road. Alternative landscaping including block
paving, 5 new trees, 7 raised planters and a public art lighting scheme comprising a
radiating arrangement of uplighters was also approved as part of this application.

-10-42



7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/01095/AMDT

The current proposal seeks planning permission for a slightly amended landscaping
arrangement. Two of the parking spaces have been converted to disabled spaces
displacing small sections of planting and the location of the raised planters has been
slightly adjusted. The public art lighting scheme remains unchanged and will be secured
via and amended legal agreement. Overall it is considered that the changes to the
landscaping scheme in this location are considered to be acceptable.

An alternative landscaping scheme is also proposed for the remainder of the Victoria
Avenue frontage to the south of Richmond House, however, these changes have been
previously been agreed under application reference 20/00686/AMDT (previously
18/00245/FUL) which granted planning consent for an additional 8 flats on the roof of
Beaumont Court. This application introduced 8 new car parking spaces in this parking
area and an alternative landscaping scheme along the boundary. This amended
landscaping arrangement therefore remains acceptable.

The other changes to the landscaping scheme include the replacement of 5 new trees
proposed in the western section of car park fronting to Baxter Avenue with laurel
hedging along the street frontage. It is also proposed to replace 4 trees along the
internal boundary with Harcourt House and at the car park entrance on Harcourt
Avenue with 5 free standing planters adjacent to the entrance area. It is considered that
sufficient soft landscaping has been maintained to the street frontages to enhance the
public views into the site. The areas where planting has been lost are internal to the site
and screened behind the existing buildings. It is considered that, on balance, the
changes to the site landscaping scheme can be considered acceptable.

The amended design and landscaping is acceptable and the proposal is policy
compliant in respect of design and character matters subject to conditions.

Standard of Accommodation for Existing and Future Occupiers

The main changes to the approved plans which will impact on the standard of
accommodation for occupiers are the amended communal facilities for residents at
ground floor within Beaumont Court and the amended landscaping arrangements for the
communal roof terraces of Beaumont Court. The changes to the parking/cycling and
refuse arrangements have also impacted on residents and these are discussed below in
the transportation section.

Application 06/00598/FUL included the provision of a residents meeting room adjacent
to the entrance on the ground floor of Beaumont Court. This was secured by the legal
agreement. The layout of this area was subsequently amended in application ref
15/01147/NON to include a new residents lobby in front of the proposed meeting room.
The ground floor layout has been further amended in the built scheme. The current
arrangement includes an alternative location for the meeting room slightly further into
the building, however, it remains of a comparable size and in a convenient location. A
small resident's gym has also been provided nearby within the ground floor of
Beaumont Court. The lobby approved under reference 15/01146/NON remains and
includes a concierge service which also contributes to the residents faculties for the
development. Overall, it is considered that the revised communal facilities for the
residents are an improvement over that proposed in the 2006 scheme and these
changes are therefore considered to be acceptable. The updated S106 legal agreement
will ensure that these facilities remain for the use of residents for the life of the
development.

43-11 -



7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

7.26

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/01095/AMDT

The changes to the landscaping design of the communal amenity terraces on Beaumont
Court are similar to that originally approved and have maintained them as attractive and
useable facilities for the residents. These are also considered to be acceptable.

No changes are proposed to the flat layouts. The amended proposal is therefore
considered to be acceptable and policy compliant in terms of standard of
accommodation for existing and future occupiers.

Traffic and Transportation Issues
Car Parking

The layout of the site has been amended to enable a small increase in parking spaces
for the 280 units from 166 spaces to 180 spaces. 10 additional parking spaces have
also been accommodated on site to serve the additional residential units covered by
other applications noted above. The location of these has been separately approved
under the relevant applications. 7 additional public car parking spaces, 2 of which are
disabled spaces, have also be accommodated within the public square. The principle of
7 parking spaces in this location has been accepted under application reference
18/01241/FUL.

With 280 flats in this proposal this means that the parking ratio on site has changed
from 0.59 per unit to 0.64 per unit for the main scheme (not including public spaces).
There is no objection to this in policy terms. The proposal is therefore acceptable in this
regard. The inclusion of 2 disabled spaces is also seen to be positive for the scheme.

Cycle Parking

288 cycle spaces were approved in the 2006 scheme. These were located on the
ground floor of the two buildings. 294 cycle parking spaces are now proposed across
the site which includes 14 to serve the additional residential units covered by other
applications noted above. This is a reduction of 8 cycles spaces for the main scheme
which is 3% of the overall provision. Some of these cycle stores are located within the
existing buildings at ground floor and some are open shelters located outside or within
the undercroft parking area.

It is usually recommended that cycle shelters are entirely enclosed to improve their
usability; however, the limitations of space on the site are noted. Given the large
numbers of cycle spaces available to residents on the site as a whole, this level and
arrangement of cycle spaces can, on balance, be considered acceptable in this
instance.

Changes to the Highways Layout

There has also been a change to the overall highways layout for the site in relation to
the Victoria Avenue frontage which were secured by the original S106 agreement.
Application 06/00598/FUL initially proposed to enhance the frontage of the site by
replacing some of the service road with a landscaped pedestrian area, however this
arrangement has been amended to enable a vehicular access to the new visitor parking
in the square. A simplified landscaping scheme comprising two raised planters set
within a new tarmac finish has also been installed.

-12-44



1.27

7.28

7.29

7.30

7.31

7.32

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/01095/AMDT

The application states that these changes are due to the constraints of underground
services on the perimeter of the site and to enable some visitor parking, including
disabled spaces, to be included in the public square.

In terms of the pedestrian environment and impact on the streetscene this change is
considered to be a dilution of the original proposal and this is regrettable, however, it is
noted that overall the development has transformed the buildings, helped to regenerate
Victoria Avenue and has been a catalyst for the renewal of this area. The Council’s
Highways Officer has overseen these amended highways works which are now
complete. He also notes that since these highways works were installed, the Council
has undertaken further changes in this area as part of a cycle enhancement scheme. |t
is considered that the amended highway arrangement in this area is acceptable and the
proposal is policy compliant in this regard.

Refuse and Recycling

The layout of the refuse and recycling stores has been amended in relation to the 2006
scheme. The two refuse stores previously approved in the ground floor of Beaumont
Court have been consolidated into one larger store to the rear. The arrangements for
Richmond House are unchanged. An updated Waste Management Plan for the site has
also been submitted with this application which confirms that there are 3 collections a
week for waste and recycling. These arrangements meet the needs of the site and are
considered acceptable. The proposal is policy compliant in this regard.

Travel Plan

A Travel Plan for the site has been submitted. This is broadly acceptable but is currently
being refined and will be secured as part of the new S106 legal agreement.

Planning Obligations

The original application under reference 06/00598/FUL was approved subject to a S106
legal agreement — details of the obligations are set out in paragraph 2.5 above.

As noted above, this agreement was subsequently amended in 2015 under
15/02019/S106BA and 15/02020/DOV to remove the requirement for a CCTV
contribution, to remove the CPZ contribution and to revise the provision of affordable
housing to 52 units in Richmond House and a monetary contribution of £474,776 (which
has since been paid).

In determining this application is necessary to review the heads of terms of the legal
agreement to ensure that they are still appropriate and relevant. In particular it is noted
that the ‘Victoria Avenue Works’ proposed in the initial agreement require updating to
reflect the current circumstances. The alterations of the Victoria Avenue Service Road
are now complete. Plans have been submitted as part of the draft Deed of Variation to
the S106 showing the works which were undertaken by the developer. The Council’s
Highways Officer confirms that this scheme was built in accordance with the submitted
plans but that the Council has subsequently changed the layout of this area as part of
the wider cycle strategy. It is also noted that the bus stop adjacent to the site has been
upgraded by the Council and new LED lighting has been installed in the underpass as
part of the Council’s LED lighting Strategy.

45-13 -



7.33

7.34

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/01095/AMDT

In light of these changes it is proposed that the following commitments be removed from
the new deed:

e Victoria Avenue Bus Shelter Improvement Works contribution £20,000.00 (index
linked)

e Victoria Avenue Improvement Works — revised layout approved under the
previous Deed of Variation

¢ Victoria Avenue Commuted Maintenance Sum £5,455 (index linked) per year for
3 years

e Victoria Avenue Underpass Contribution £2,182 (index linked)

¢ Victoria Avenue Traffic Regulation Order Contribution £2,182 (index linked)

The justification for removing these obligations is that the Council has been able to
deliver the necessary bus infrastructure improvements and highway improvement works
that support this development using alternative funding sources.

The proposed Heads of Terms are as follows:

1.

Public Accessible Area — amended design as shown on drawings reference
279-03-15- 6202A and 279-03-15-6088H to be provided and permanently
maintained.

Victoria Avenue Works - amended design as shown on drawings references
8715-04-CRH-XX-00-DR-C-4103-P1, 8715-04-CRH-XX-00-DR-C-4002 — P1
and 8715-04-CRH-XX-00-DR-C-4003 — P1 - noted as completed.

Public Art lighting scheme - amended design as shown on drawing reference
279-03-15-6088H to be permanently retained and maintained.

Residents Community Facility — amended facilities including communal lobby,
meeting room and residents gym as shown on drawing reference 279-03-15-
6202A to be permanently retained and maintained.

Management Strategy for the site including buildings, car park, refuse and
outside areas including public access area and public art to be submitted,
agreed and implemented in accordance with the approved document.

Travel Plan for the site to be submitted, agreed and implemented in
accordance with the approved document.

. Affordable Housing — 52 shared ownership units on floors 1-7 of Richmond

House as shown on drawings reference 279-03-15-4(15) FO1 and 279-03-15-
4(16) FO1 to be provided and permanently maintained. The affordable
housing contribution is to be noted as paid in full.

7.35 The amended S106 legal agreement is currently being drafted, however, it is
recommended that the revised proposed Head of Terms be agreed by Development
Control Committee and the application delegated for approval subject to completion of a
S106 agreement on this basis.

7.36

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

As the proposed alteration creates no new floorspace the development benefits from a
Minor Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations
2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable.

-14 -46



8.1

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/01095/AMDT

Conclusion

Having taken all material planning considerations into account it is found that, subject to
compliance with the attached conditions, the proposed amended development would be
acceptable and compliant with the objectives of the relevant development plan policies
and guidance. The principle of the development, including the change of uses at ground
floor, is acceptable and the proposal would have an acceptable impact on the amenities
of neighbouring, existing and future occupiers and the character and appearance of the
application site, the streetscene and the locality more widely. The highways impacts,
sustainability and living conditions within the flats are also acceptable. The proposed
changes are of a scale and nature which constitute a minor material amendment in
principle. In addition, the proposed modifications to the S106 agreement are acceptable
for the reasons set out above. This application is therefore recommended for approval
subject to conditions and completion of a S106 agreement.

Recommendation

(a) That the Council enter into a Planning Obligation by Deed of Agreement under
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) to secure
the following:

1. Public Accessible Area — Design as shown on drawings reference 279-
03-15- 6202A and 279-03-15-6088H to be provided and permanently
maintained.

2. Victoria Avenue Works - Design as shown on drawings reference 8715-
04-CRH-XX-00-DR-C-4103-P1, 8715-04-CRH-XX-00-DR-C-4002 — P1 and
8715-04-CRH-XX-00-DR-C-4003 — P1 - noted as completed.

3. Public Art lighting scheme - Design as shown on drawing reference 279-
03-15-6088H to be permanently retained and maintained.

4. Residents Community Facility — Facilities including communal lobby,
meeting room and residents gym as shown on drawing reference 279-
03-15- 6202A to be permanently retained and maintained.

5. Management Strateqy for the site including buildings, car park, refuse
and outside areas including public access area and public art to be
submitted, agreed and implemented in accordance with the approved
document.

6. Travel Plan for the site to be submitted, agreed and implemented in
accordance with the approved document

7. Affordable Housing — 52 shared ownership units on floors 1-7 of
Richmond House as shown on drawings reference 279-03-15-4(15) F01
and 279-03-15-4(16) F01 to be provided and permanently maintained.
The affordable housing contribution is to be noted as paid in full.

(b) That the Interim Director for Planning or Group Manager of Planning and
Building Control be delegated authority to GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION
subject to the completion of the section 106 agreement referred to in part (a)
above and subject to the conditions set out below.

47-15 -



Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/01095/AMDT

01 The development shall be carried solely out in accordance with the approved
plans: 279-03-15-6084B, 279-03-15-6085E, 279-03-15-6103A, 279-03-15-6202A,
279-03-15-6203A, 279-03-15-6204A, 279-03-15-6205A, 279-03-15-6206A, 279-03-15-
6207, 22855-A-02-PL-001 Rev A, 22855-A-PL-03P-001-000 Rev A, 22855-A-PL-03P-
002 Rev A, 22855-A-PL-03P-003 Rev A, 22855-A-PL-03P-004 Rev A, 22855-A-PL-
03P-005 Rev A, 22855-A-PL-03P-006 Rev A, 22855-A-PL-03P-007 Rev A, 22855-A-
PL-03P-008 Rev A, 22855-A-PL-03P-009 Rev A, 22855-A-PL-03P-010 Rev A, 279-03-
15-6088H

Reason: To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the
development plan.

02 The materials used for the external surfaces of the building shall be as detailed
on plan reference 279-03-15-6203, 279-03-15-6204 and 279-03-15-6205

Reason: To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and wider streetscene, in
accordance with Core Strategy (2007) policies KP2 and CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) Policies DM1, and DM3 and advice contained
within the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009

03 Within 4 months of the date of this decision the landscaping for the
development hereby approved shall be carried out in full accordance with the
approved landscaping plans reference 297-03-15-6103 Rev A, 279-03-15-6084 Rev
B, 279-03-15-6085 Rev E, 279-03-15-6088H and the associated landscape
management plan entitled Garden Specification Beaumont and Richmond House
by iv Property Management. If any tree, shrub or plants are removed or found to
be dying, severely damaged or diseased within 5 years of planting them they
must be replaced with trees, shrubs or plants of a similar size and species.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure the development makes
a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the area. This is as set
out in the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007)
Policies KP2 and CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policies
DM1and DM3 and The Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

04 The 180 residents car parking spaces, including 1 disabled parking space and
7 visitor parking spaces, including 2 disabled visitor car parking spaces, shall be
permanently retained at the site and made available for use solely for occupiers
of the residential units hereby approved and visitors to the site in full accordance
with the details shown on drawing 279-03-15-6202A.

Reason: To ensure that adequate car parking is provided and retained to serve
the development in accordance with Policy CP3 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policy DM15 of the Council’s Development Management Document (2015).

05 The 280 cycle parking spaces shall be permanently retained at the site and

made available for use solely for occupiers of the residential units hereby
approved and visitors to the site in full accordance with drawing 279-03-15-6202A.

-16-48



Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/01095/AMDT

Reason: To ensure that satisfactory cycle parking facilities are provided at the
site in the interest of sustainability and amenity in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP3,
Policies DM1, DM8 and DM15 of the Development Management Document (2015)
and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

06 The refuse and recycling stores as shown on plan reference 279-03-15-6202A
shall be retained in perpetuity for use solely for the storage of refuse and
recycling for the occupiers of the site . Refuse Management at the site shall be
carried out in full accordance with the Beaumont and Richmond Waste
Management Plan by B&R Property Management Ltd in perpetuity.

Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate refuse and recycling storage in
accordance with Policies DM3, DM8 and DM15 of Development Management
Document (2015).

07 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 2015 Schedule 2 Part 16 (or any other revoking
and re-enacting that Order with or without modification), no telecommunications
equipment shall be installed above the highest part of the roof of either building.

Reason: In the interests of aircraft safety and to safeguard character and
appearance of surrounding area in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the
Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015).

08 No dust or fume or filtration equipment or air conditioning, ventilation or
refrigeration equipment shall be installed at the site until details of its design,
siting, discharge points and predicted acoustic performance and any odour and
noise mitigation to be installed as part of this equipment have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The equipment shall be
installed in full accordance with the approved details and thereafter be retained
as such.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of residents and the character and
appearance of surrounding area in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the
Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015).

09 The ground floor areas marked as ‘shop use class A1’ (2 units), ‘professional
services office use class A2’ and ‘café use class A3’ herby approved, as
identified on plan reference 279-03-15-6202A, shall only be occupied for purposes
falling within Use Classes A1, A2 and A3 as defined under the Town and Country
Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 on the date this application was submitted.
These units shall not be used for any other purpose, including any purpose
permitted under amendments to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes)
Order 1987 since the application was submitted nor any change of use permitted
under the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order
2015 (as amended) or in any provisions equivalent to those in any statutory
instrument revoking and re-enacting these Orders, with or without modification.

49-17 -



Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/01095/AMDT

Reason: To ensure the development is implemented in accordance with the
permission sought and to enable the Local Planning Authority to retain control of
the use of the floorspace within the Use Class specified so that occupation of the
premises does not prejudice amenity and wider objectives of the planning
system, in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019),
Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Southend-on-Sea Core Strategy (2007) and Policies
DM1 and DM3 of the Southend-on-Sea Development Management Document
(2015).

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations,
including planning policies and any representations that may have been received
and subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with
the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the
National Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report
on the application prepared by officers.

Informatives

01 You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek to
recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land. Please
take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and footpaths
in the borough.

02 This permission is governed by a legal agreement between the applicant and
the Borough Council under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990. The agreement relates to affordable housing, public access areas, public
art, highway works, residents community facility, management strategy and a
Travel Plan.

-18-50



f_ﬁ‘_)T“:B{C)LJ {@;\ ( ((/LL,
RepOl't tO the Secretary Of The Planning Inspectorate

Temple Quay House

2 The Sguare

State for Communities and Templ Quay

Bristol BS1 6PN

Local Government =/ GTN 13718000

by B J Juniper BSc, DipTP, MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Date 30 July 2007
Commumties and Local Government

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL

APPEAL BY SOUTHEND PROPERTIES (GUERNSEY) LTD

Inquiry opened on 19 Apnl 2007

Heath House and Carby House, Victoria Avenue, Southend-on-Sea, SS2 6AR

File Ref APP/D1590/A/06/2027683

51



Report APP/D1590/A/ 06/2027683

File Ref: APP/D1590/A/06/2027683
Heath House and Carby House, Victoria Avenue, Southend-on-Sea, SS2 6AR

The appeal 1s made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 agamnst a refusal to
grant planning permission

The appeal 1s made by Southend Properties (Guemsey) Ltd agamst the deciston of Southend-on-Sea
Borough Council

The application Ref SOS/06/00598/FUL, dated 16 May 2006, was refused by notice dated 2 August
2006

The development proposed 1s the redevelopment of the site with part 4, 8, 10, 11 and 12 storey
butldings comprising 280 flats with commercial uses at ground floor level, the provision of 166 car
parking spaces, cycle storage for 288 cycles, amenity space, refuse storage and accesses onto
Harcourt Avenue and Baxter Avenue

Summary of Recommendation: The appeal be allowed, and planning permission granted
subject to conditions.

Procedural Matters

1

(95 )

The Inquiry sat for 3 days It opened on 19 Apnl 2007 but, because there had been a delay
1n providing the Council with the appellants’ proofs, was adjourned it resumed on 26 April
and closed on 15 June The site visit took place on 19 Apni

The principal parties reached agrcement befors the opening of the weuiry on the drawings
which were relevant These mclude some which were not histed on the Council’s deciston
notice together with further drawings mclucing manor amendments or providing additional
Jlustrative detall  These drawings are listed at Annex B and I have taken them wito account
n reaching my recommendation I am satsfied that no party to the inquiry has been
prejudiced by my having done so

At the inquuy an application for costs was made by Southend Properues (Guermnsey) Ltd
agawst Southend-on-Sea Borough Council. This apphication 1s the subject of a separate
Report

By letter of 17 November 2006, the Secretary of State directed that st.e should determine
the appeal 1nstead of an apported person The reason for this direction was that the appeal
raises policy 1ssues relating to a .esidential de elopment of more than 150 dwellings which
would stgnificantly impact on the Government’s objective to secure a better baiance
between housmng demand and supply and create high quality, sustainable, mixed and
tnclusive communities

The Council refused the apphicat:on for the following reasons

1) The proposed development would leatt to a permanent loss of the employment
generating potentiel of this pnime town centre employment site within the Boroagh
which has only a himited supply of such land to meet the employment requrements of
the workforce n a sustainable manner and where there 15 a surfert of supply of housing
land This would be contrary to Borough Local Plan Policy E4, Policies CS1, C83,
CS4, BIW2 and BIW4 of the Essex and Southend Replacement Structure Plan, and
RSS14 and related panel 1cport

2) The proposed development fails to meet the requirements of the Planning Brief in that 1t
does not include provision of adequate numbers of key worker dwellings and this

Page |

52



Report APP/D1590/A/06/2027683

together with design and detail of the proposals means that it would fall to act as a
surtable catalyst for the economic regeneration of Victoria Avenue and the town centre
and would therefore be contrary to the underlying thrust of planming policy for the area.

3) The applicant has failed to demonstrate that the development would be properly and
adequately serviced and that servicing would not take place from the highway. The lack
of adequate servicing would result m vehicles parking and manoeuvring on the
hghway, to the detriment of the free flow of traffic, highway safety and the amenities of
adjacent residents and would be contrary to Policies T8, T12 and H5 of the Borough

Local Plan and T3 and BE1 of the Essex and Southend Replacement Structure Plan

The Site and Surroundings

6.

Heath House and Carby House are office blocks constructed 1n the 1960s and are of 11 and
8 floors respectively, each with service structures visible above the topmost floors The
man part of Heath House 1s parallel with but set well back from Victonia Avenue and has a
rear wing projecting towards Baxter Avenue from which 1t has a secondary vehicular
access Carby House 1s on the corner of Victoria Avemae and Harcourt Avenue and projects
further forward, close to the apex of the junction  The remaindcr of the site 1s largely haed
surfaced parking area although there 1s modest amount of landscaping between the parking
area and the narrow service road which runs parailel with Victona Avenue along the site’s
prncipal frontage Both bwldings are vacant and have been stripped of their mtcrior
fixtures and fitings, including most of the parficn walls The exterior cladding remainzd
1n place at the ime of the inquiry

The site 1s at the northern end of a group of 1960s and 1970 office buildings of simiiar
scale which line the west side of Victona Avenue, facing a group of public buildings along
the east side ranging from the Council offices opposiic the apoeal site to Southend Victor:a
station at the southern end On the west side of the site are 2 number of smaller office
buildings facing Baxter Avenue, on the opposiie s:de of which :s an area of largely two-
storey housmng There 1s simular development to the north ot the site beyond Harcourt
Avenue

Planning Policy

8

10

RPG9 sets out the regional planang guidance for the South East Region including
requirements for economy 1n the use of land and Pohicy Q! states that 60% of all new
development should be on previcusly developed land  The replacement regictal gurdance
will be 1n RSS14 — the Regional Spatial Strategy for the East of England This s
approaching completion and can be accorded signif.cant weight  Policy TC/SE2 which
deals with employment generating development .n the Theres Gateway area secks t0
provide 13,000 jobs in the Borough 1n the penod 2001 to 2021

The development plan includes the Essex and Southend-on-Seca Replacement Structure Plan
1996-2011 (SP), adopted mn 2001, and the Southend-on-Sea Beicugh Local Plan, adopted 1n
1994 (LP)

SP Pohicy CS! states that development and economic growth will be accommodated 1n a
sustarnable manner which counters trends towards more dispersed patterns of 1esidence by a
number of means A balance between housing and employment provision within local
areas will be sought Economic success will be encouraged by Policy C83 and sustainable
new development ts promoted by Policy CS4, including the achievement of a sustainable
balance between local jobs and workers Policy BIW1 sets a target of 30ha as a net increase

Page 2

53



Report APP:’D159Q/A/06/2027683

11.

12

13

14

in employment land for the Borough over the period 1996 to 2011 and Policy BE2 provides
for mixed use developments 1n appropriate locations, particularly within town centres An
adequate range of sites and prenuses 1s to be provided to meet the needs of business,
industry and warehousing under Policy BIW2 Existing employment sites currently 1n use
or identified for future business, industry or warehousing use will be safeguarded by Polhicy
BIW4 from redevelopment or change of use, particularly m designated ‘Prionity Areas for
Economic Regeneration’. Policy T3 promotes accessibility through appropnate design of
access arrangements for all forms of transport

LP Policy H2 seeks to provide low cost accommodation suitable for small households and
an element of affordable housing n new residential proposals The loss of existing major
office floorspace 1s precluded by Policy E2 unless alternative development 1s proposed
which would brng clear benefits to the town 1n terms of facilities provided and jobs
created Policy E4, referred to m the Council’s decision notice, makes similar stipulations
1n respect of the loss of land \dentificd for industrial, warehousing or other business use on
the proposals map, but the site is not 0 dentified The Policy adds that clsewhere
permussion for such proposals will only be graated where speaified cntena cen be met,
mcluding sites where 1t can clearly be demonstrated that the premuses are no longer suitable
for industrial or warehouse use Policies T8 and T12 deal with vehicular access and
servicing respectively Additionc! land for ndustrial development at Fossetts Farm was
added 1n the Second Alteration to the LP, adopted 1n 1999

The Council ts proceeding with the preparation of a Loca! Development Framework (LDF)
and my attention has been drawn to a number of documents pubhshed n this connection,
including a Core Strategy Docament as submmutiad to the Secretary of State in August 2006
and on which an examimation m public (E1P) commenced 1n early 2007 It mncludes
objectives SOS5 and SO6 to prosvide for not less than 13,000 net additional jobs and 6,000
net additional dwellings respectively n the period 2001 to 2021. Policy CP1 seeks to
provide 3,000 net additional jobs 1 the town centre and contral area between 2001 and
2011, 1,500 jobs between 2011 and 2016 and 2,000 in the period 2016 to 2021 It alse
resists the loss of existing employraent land unless the proposals would contribute to job-
led regencration in other ways Nt additional dwelhng totals of 650, 750 and 250 are
sought for the same three periods by Policy CP3 The resul-s of the examination 1n public
of the Core Strategy are not yer available, limiting the weight that can be attached to the
emerging policies

In addition, Hearing Papers on Housing and Employmert have been submtted to the EiP I
have also had regard to an Issues and Options report prepared 1n conneciion with the Town
Centre Area Action Plan, and to ine Southend Annual Monitoring Reports for 2005 and
2006 (SAMRs) The weight that can be accorded to these documents at this stage 1s,
however, limited

In January 2004 the Council publizhed the ‘Redevelopment of Heath House and Carby
House Project Management Brief’ which 1deatified the site as having potential for a
development of 60% office space, ~09, associated commercial space and 20% residential as
a contribution to the regeneration of the area There was no formal public consultation on
this document, however, and 1t can therefore be accorded L.ttle weight

Planning History

15

In 2004 an apphication was submutted for a development of 446 flats on the appeal site1n a
building of 9, 11 and 12 storeys achieved through partial demolition of the existing

Page 3
54



Report APP/D1590/A/06/2027683

16.

buildings, together with 252 parking spaces The Council resolved to grant permission
subject to a S106 agreement with a range of requirements including the provision of 240
shared ownership dwellings for key workers, a provision for which central government
funding was potentally available at the time. The funding arrangements subsequently
changed and no S106 agreement has been completed

Permission was granted 1 2004 for the removal of cladding, fixtures and fitting, the
retention of the building’s frame and floors and works to make good at Heath House 1n
association with the concurrent demolition of Carby House.

The Proposals

17

The ground floors of the two blocks would be adapted to commercial uses with provision
being made for a small convemence store, a restaurant/bar, local medical facihities and a day
nursery There would be 166 car parking spaces and 288 secure cycle storage places The
remainder of the buildings would be adapted and remodelled to accommodate 280 flats, 84
of which would be affordable hous:ng umts  The principal additions would be a three floor
wing coming forward from the central part of Heath House up to tae {rontage with Victona
Avenue and a range of projections from the existing facades to provide balcomes The
adapted buildings would be completely re-ciad The area between the new three storey
wing and Carby House would be screened frora Victona Avenue and would prov.de part of
the parking area. To the south of the new wing, however, a public sguare would be created.

The Case for Southend Properties (Guernsey) Ltd

18

19

20

The

The Council has agreed that the servicing 1ssue, reason for refusal 3, 1s resolved It has also
formally withdrawn reason for refusal 2!, As part of that concession, the Council expressly
accepted that the design of the proposals would be acceptable end would assist the
regeneration of the area, and that the 'Planning Bnef was a matter to which no weight
should be appled

The only outstanding 1ssue relates 0 the amount of employinent generating floorspace
withm the proposal  The Council argues that the site should be redzeloped for a mixzd ase
with an unspecified amount of employment generating floorspacs whereas the appellant
argues that it 1S unnecessary n policy or any other terms o require more employment

generating uses on the site than are present m 1. proposals

The way the Council put 1ts case at the inquiry 1s not the same as 12301 for refusal 1 Ithas
understandably changed 1ts ground, because 1l TeCOZNISES that 1t 15 untenable to scek to
prevent housing on the site  Its casc appears to be that the site would be better used with
more employment generating development on it, because otherwise harm would arise first
because there would be a ‘lost opportunity’ and secondly because there 1s no need for
housing, and a jobs target needs to be met

housing credentials of the site

The site 1s agreed to be i a highly sustarnable location, and to comprise previously-
developed land lts reuse for housing would comply with PPS3, particularly as it would
bring significant regencration benefits to Victoria Avenue and 15 agreed to be an exampie of
good design  No objection 18 taken to the mix or type of units proposed. The regeneration
benefits are not confined to the huge improvement the butlding will make to the physical

' Document 20

Page 4

55



Report APP/D1590/A/06/2027683

22

23

24,

23

26

environment of Victoria Avenue The housing units will provide regenerative economic
benefits tn terms of money spent in the town centre The affordable housing units (which
might be key worker housing, which the Council accepts would be regenerative) would
themselves aid regencration because those with lower paid jobs are necessary to the
economy of the area too

Mr Pilkington from Renaissance Southend Ltd appeared at the mquiry, although he did not
do so with authonity from the constituent members of that organisation (most of which do
not object to the scheme) His point of view 15 completely at odds with, and undermined
by, the formal letter of consultation submttted by the orgamsation’s Chief Executive on 16
June 2006 which stated that "my mstinct 15 to go with a residential scheme with a more
standard affordable mix and to use the policy 1ssue to secure the best possible design. ".
Very dimmmshed weight should be given to Mr Pilk:ngton's evidence as a result

The Council does not allege that the number of housing units proposed would 1 1tself cause
harm. That does not form part of reason for refusal 1 The appellants similerly de not rely
on housing figures to justify their proposais The position 1s that the provision of 280 flats
m a well designed, mixed use scheme would accord with policy The housing figures n the
adopted Local Plan of 1994 are well out of date The figures in the emerging RSS are likely
to be exceeded 1n Southend, but the Secrctary of State has made 1t plain that the housing
targets are not cellings but minimum tarzets Trus explaing why there is no moratorium 01
housing permissions in Southend and why tne C suncil has coatinued to grart residential
plannming permusstons on windfail sites

Affordable housing policy i Southend would be met. The proposals would provide 84
affordable units, 30% of the total. That would accord with the emerging policy The need
for affordable housing 1n Southend 1s large sad pressing, and substantial weight should be
attached to the provision of such an amoust of d<liverable affordable housing un.ts 1 this
sustamnable location

The Council previously considered that the appoal site would contribute to thz cconomic
regeneration of Southend by providing key workcr housing It now saye that 84 affordable
units and the market umits would have ro benelits to the eccnomy of Southend  That 1s
nconsistent with policy and emerging policy zat all levels The Couvail's draft Core
Strategy does not suggest that regeneralon is vawquely linked to kcy worlker housing,
indeed the draft policy CS8 1s aimed at providirg a mix of housing compnsing market,
affordable housing and key worker housiig 1 c.der to meet housing need and secure
economic regeneration  That accords with the Thanes Gateway Regional Plann.ng Bodiey!
gmdance, ‘Growth and Regeneration in the Thameos Gateway ', which expreesly states that
affordable housing (not just key worker housiag) will be wnportant to ensure a workforce
with a range of skills can be accommodaied 1n the area. That also accords with PPS3 and
‘Delivering Affordable Housing’, neither of which state that 1t 1s only key worker housing
that has a beneficial regenerative effect

The site 1s accepted by the Council to be suitabic as a mixed use site  Theu case 1s not that
it should provide 100% job-creating uses, but that 1t should be a mux with a greater
proportion of employment ~ As for the housing element, however, there would be no harm
from the provision of the 280 untts, and there would be obvious benefits from the housing,
both affordable and market housing, in terms of meeting neceds and assisting economic
regeneration The flats would be in one of the most sustainable locations in the Borough

I Document 22

Page 5
56

e A A———



Report APP/D1590/A/06/2027683

The relationship between housing and employment

27. Reason for refusal 1 does not allege that the proposals would cause harm because they
would lead to an unsustamnable mmbalance between homes and jobs. That argument has no
force 1f there i1s no harm 1n policy terms 1n exceeding the RSS munimum target figures 1n
sustamable urban locations and there 1s adequate Job creation and/or employment land to
meet the targets set 1n adopted and emerging policy

28 The employment objectives, be they land or jobs, have been arnived at on the basis of an
assessment of overall development needs and sustamnabibty That 1s why if adequate
jobs/land exist then no argument can be supported that further housing will cause harm in
sustamabihity terms. In this connection, weight should be attached to the Government
Office for the East of England’s view that calculations of the alignment of jobs and housing
are very dafficult at the sub-regional level, and even more so at the local level®

29 Tt follows that the 1ssue of balance' or ahgnment 1s only capable of being looked at roughly,
and the best way to do that here 1s to note that there 1s no RS5 cap on housing ¢ehvenes.
and that the jobs targets should be met It 1s also central to the question of sustamnability
that the site 1s 1 a highly sustainable location There 1s no reason why residential umts here
should exacerbate out-commuting by car  Out-commuting by prbhc transport 18 ot a sin in
policy terms

Employment

30. Furst, this 1s not a case where the land 1s treated as safeguarded for pure employment use by
the Counci! applying adopted policy The Council accepts thet 2 m.xed use 1s approprate
In that context, the main part of Local Plan Policy E4 (referred to in the reason for refusal)
does not apply because the site 1s not 1dentified for B uses 1n the Local Plan Proposals Map
The policy 1s also permussive of loss of business use where the premises are no longer
surtable for industrial or warehouse use and there 1s no dispute that :s the case here Ed41s a
restraint policy which would be breached on 1ts face by a mixed vse development Since
the Council accepts a mixed use, reliance on E4 15 illogical

31. Policy E2 of the LP, which the Council regard as the ‘relevant pol.cy’, 18 weil out of date
Paragraphs 4 12 to 4 14 1flustrate the morket contex® in which 1t vas wnitten The site 18 no
longer 'existing major office floorspace’ nor does the Council suzgast that 1t should be kept
for that purpose. It says that some smell office users could be housed 1n a mixed use
scheme It follows that there 1s no brecach of E2  In addition, theic 1s no haim from the
‘loss’ 1n E2 terms There would be physical benefits since affordable housing would be a
benefit for the town, as would the 15,000 sq ft of commercial fleorzpace which torms part
of the scheme

39 In the 2001 Structure Plan, Policy BIW+ abviously does not apply L:ere The site 1s not 1n
use or identified in adopted local plans for future business, inlusic or warehousing use'
Of course, the lawful use 1s for B class use, but 1t can be clearly shown how cbsolete the
bu114d1ngs themselves are and how unrealistic 1t 1s to 1magine 2 future business use for the
site

33 Second, there 1s no breach of emerging RSS Policy E3 because there 1s evidence before the
inquiry of sufficient land beng available to ensure that the Region's economic strategy

' Document 10, para 6 20
* Document 7, Sections 5 and 7
Page 6

57



Report APP/D1590/A/06/2027683

34

35

36

objectives are met The Council accepts that the RSS, which very shortly will replace the
SP, focuses on the provision of jobs rather than the finding of new net employment land

The RSS does not seek the provision only of B class jobs, but makes no distinction between
any type of job In terms of jobs the RSS seeks 13,000 new jobs to 2021, at an average of
650 a year. The Southend Annual Momtonng Report (SAMR) 2006°, which represents the
latest figures, indicates that the job creation m the Borough 1s running at 880 on average a
year 4400 have been created between 2001 and 2006 and the Council acknowledges that
progress 1s good

The Council rather mexplicably submitted at the inquiry that for essentially methodological
reasons (lag in recording deletions over additions) the Inter Departmental Business Register
(IDBR) may be suspect. This pomnt 1s addressed squarely by the Council in its Heering
Paper 5 on Employmentﬁ, submitted to the EiP 1n March 2007 On the third page of the
document, 2 number of factors are set out One 1s the simple observation that “the IDBR
count was lower than the 2001 Census, suggesting “hat more Jobs have been created i the
Borough over this time penod”  Indeed, the Courcii's own overall cenclusion 1s that "ait
these indicators suggest that the economy of Southend, whilst still behind the national and
regional averages, has shown groeater improvemenis since 2001 which: 16 consistent with 22
increase in jobs provision as illustrated by the IDBR data.," The Council's position is
nconsistent with this and the conclasion that one cennot assume growth in jobs 10 line widh
the IDBR work

The document produced by the Council’s Policy Section says that "the IDBR mcicase
(2001/2006) may be slightly over-estunated” That hardly shows that the Council’s Policy
Section thinks that there 1s a major preblem with the IDBR data The document also taen
goes on to show that 8 firms (including 3 superraarket firms) have between them zlone
created 3000 jobs 1n the period  The Policy Sectien’s note for Mr Collins’ does not suggest
that there 1s a problem with the IDBR data as an indication of trends  Although 1t was
speculated that the latest figiwes might bie unrepresentative, it 1s neces.ary to proceed on the
basts of the figures we have which are the best ava:lable Furthermore, therc 1s no actual
evidence that the figures are suspect because of 'ore offs' or 'blips’ Evidence such os that
produced on Marine Plaza demonstrates how and why Job creation i Southend s and wil
remain healthy There have been and will conusuc to be redevelopiuaents, projects w..d
changes which will bring the jobs «ito the town

The residual argument about lend for employment 1s consequentiy of only secondury
importance. SP Policy BIW1 requres 30 ha net adcational of B clacs land to be provided
between 1996 and 2011 It 1s veuy dufficult securcly to equate land ard jobs, whicii 18 why
the RSS uses the new method of focusing on jou.© The Council crrled that there s a
shortfall agamst that B class land requirement of sone 18 7 ha, altho. ch 1t concedes thay at
least 4 6ha further land 1s available at Shoebury The evidence in fact :udicates that there 18
considerably greater potential for land (including laad already with the benefit of planning
permisston) to come forward with 12 3 ha of consented land at Fosseuts Farm avarlable and
475 ha at Shoebury If the Prory site 1s mcluded. the additional 9 5 kn brings the totai to
76 85 ha There 1s a Joint Area Action Plan 1n existence betwecen the Ceuncil and Rochind
Borough Council, evidently with the potential for further B class land to come forwara in
that area within the SP period

 Document 14, tab 4
® Document 19
7 Document 25

Page 7
58



Report APP/D1590/A/06/2027683

37 These figures disclose that, even 1f one looks at land requirements under SP Policy BIW1,
there 15 little evidence that the appeal site 1s needed to take up the slack It1s accepted that
m terms of allocating sites, the Council would be applying a test of certainty That has little
to do with the present exercise, which is to sec what m the real world would be available by
2011 and deliverable for employment generating purposes There 1s a significant amount
In any event, the appeal site 1s not ‘net new employment land' and would not count {or
ndeed have counted) as a potential contributor 1o Policy BIW1's 30 ha.

38 There are formidable practical problems with the appeal site and the premuses for
employment re-use There 1s no market for the buildings either as large space buildings or
even 1f one divided them up, partly because the only identified demand n the evidence
before the inquiry 1s for small space users to buy freehold® There 1s little prospect of such
purchases because office owners do not want their bulding sitting under floors of housing
That 1s why the viability testing was undertaken on a two storey office development without
accommodation above It has been shown that such a development would be unviable

39 Nor 1s there any practical prospect of the refiirbishment or redevelopment working, as has
been shown, for the same reasons The prospect of a hypothetical mixed use scheme on the
site was constdered but the question 1s 12 the end the seme one why should the developer
look at that ophion” It 1s not required 1n order to keep housing numbers down, nor 1s it
required 1n order to ensure job creation or exyloyment land availab.lity There 1s no pohcy
'hook’ or justification for such a schems to be required on the site

40 Turning then to the suggestion that perm.ssic. should be withheld because an "opportunmty’
would be 'lost', that 1s true in a sense of every development that 15 permutted The question
1s whether any harm 1n planning terms would dow from the implementation of permssion
The Council has not refused permssion on the basis of a prematunty argument It cannot
allege that many similar opportunities would not still be available, even 1n Victoria Avenue
There would still be a treasure trove of sites ard vacant buildings to tring forward whatever
schemes may be acceptable at that particular time

41 It can therefore be concluded that

(1) the site 1s sustamnable urpan previcusly developed land which 1s avaiable and
deliverable and would bring forward 2 stgmificant amount of affordable housing where
there 1s severe need for that type of housmng,

(2) the scheme would not cause harm tc housing policy because, as the RSS makes clear,
the housing figures are not celhings,

(3) the scheme would not cause harm to the achievement of a net jobs ncrease n
Southend, that 1s going well, and there 1s httle mdication that 1t will change 1n the
future There s plenty of employment land available within the SP's BIW1 category,

(4) there 1s therefore no tenable argumert that the proposal would overheat housing, or
lead to harmful travel patterns, or a harmful imbalance between housing and
employment

(5) Instead, the scheme will be highly beneficial in physical terms, will regenerate the
area mn addition through the introduction of a variety of different types of occupier,
make sigmficant contributions through the S106 undertaking, and have a beneficial

¥ Document 7, Section 8
Page 8

59



Report APP/D1590/A/06/2027683

effect to some degree on the blockage n the market caused by the huge oversupply of
vacant office space. Instead of sclerosts, there will be enhancement and regeneration.

The Case for Southend-on-Sea Borough Council

42 The key policies to be considered are LP Policies E2 and E4 The site clearly benefits from

43

44,

45

46

protection under those policies which state that the loss of employment land will only be
acceptable where other clear benefits can be shown. Policy BIW1 of the SP sets out the
30ha target and BIW4 pounts to the vital and continuing need to retain prime employment
sites This policy base 1s built upon and developed in the Core Strategy document which
seeks to provide 13,000 jobs and 6,500 homes mn the Borough 1n the period to 2021, of
which 6,500 jobs and 2,000 homes are to be in the town centre

The appellants allege that there would be three clear benefits  First there would be the
provision of ‘much needed housing’, but the figures produced by the Council, and not
challenged at the inquiry, show that, i the first quarter of the 6,500 target penod, there had
been 2,137 completions which 1s the equivalent of 426 umts per year, agaumist a requirement
that equates to 325 umts annually Complctions have since continued to exceed the target
rate - there were 610 completions 1n 2005/6 - and the Council 1s confident that progress will
be maintamed It 1s accepted that the figures are not mtended to be maxima, but the
monttoring figures indicate that there will be no difficulty 1n achieving the targets. The
provision of 280 flats cannot therefore be :egarded as contmbuting to ‘much needed’
housing

The second benefit clatmed 1s the proviston of g4 affordedie housing units and 1t 1s accepted
that this would be a positive factor, but nct one of such s.gmficance or substance as to
justify granting permission for the proposal The number of umts would be relatively small
and only 40% of these would be social rented housing, Such provisior. could feature 1n
alternative, mixed-use schemes on the site  The appellarts were unable to say what the
demand for affordable housing would be sn they cannot establish whether 1t would be
significant and 1n any event 1t would only be part of an overa!l package.

The third area of benefit ciaimed 1s the regeneration effect on the north end of the town
centre, but what 1s proposed 15 not in lme with the aime and aspirations of cither Council or
Renaissance Southend Ltd (RSL) for the aea  The cvideace given at tng INquiry by a
director of RSL must be taken as the compeny’s view  Gverall, then, these benefits are
simply not enough. They are us-founded or unfounded and do not justfy a departure from
protectionist employment policies It 1s not for the Courcti to demonstrate the harm but in
any event that harm 1s not the loss of cmploymsnt land as such, but the loss of employment
tand when housing land 18 not required and the position i respect of empiloyment 15 less
certain

The appellants’ assessment of the av ailable employment land 18 flawed tor several 1casons
Land 1s becoming less important 1n itself than jobs, which s how policy 15 evolving No
maximum provision 1s implied but the focus has to be on the town centre and none of the
sites 1dentified by the appcllants are there The differcnce between the parties’ assessment
of the proviston 1s that the Council has dealt 11 certamntics, basing theiwr evidence on the
montoring of allocations and permissions, whereas the appellants’ figures are speculative
In netther case, however has the target been shewn to have been reached and the appellants’
assessment that the target would be reached 1s over-optimistic  RSL's standpoint that the
Council should ‘be wise with what 1t has got’ 1s the correct one

Page 9

60



Report APP/D1590/A/06/2027683

47

48

49

50

51

It 15 accepted that 1n recent years the number of additional jobs created has been satisfactory
but there are concerns about whether that trajectory would continue. There are also doubts
about the TDBR data used for assessing progress since there 18 a tendency for it to nclude
an element of double counting because deletions do not appear to be taken into account as
speedily as addiions Wiping out a key employment site for housing purposes is a risk that
does not need to be taken in the current housing climate and would sigmficantly reduce the
options open to the Council.

The appellants argue that one way of reducing the present overcapacity 1n the office market
1s by reducing the supply, but 1t could also be argued that the present stock could be
improved Increasing housing proviston out of synch with jots 1s likely to lead to increased
out-commuting, act as a disincentive to compames considerng relocating to Southend and
would be contrary to the policy of secunng jobs-led regeneration Whilst the appellants
argue that the office market 15 not good at present, positive changes may arise from the Area
Action Plans, the expansion of university facihities and the actrvities of RSL It 15 too
negative a stance to accept the loss of this site to residential development

The alternative scheme investigated by the appellants would have provided two storey
office development for freehold disposals and no residenul development ond the Counc:l
notes that this would not be realishc  No other possible mixed use schemes have been
investigated or costed so 1t cannot be arguad that the appeal scheme 1s the only viable form
of development. The potential out-of-town office sites to which the apnellants referrad
would clearly tend to siphon off such development to penpharal locatiors, contrary to the
general thrust of national policy The ground floor comnmercial floorspace n the apper!
scheme would be of limited benefit, servirg principally the occupiers of the tiats

If permitted, the scheme would also make it more difficult te formulate financally reahsi.c
refurbishment schemes for the othei oldes office blocks 1 Victona Avenue smnce the appeal
scheme would have absorbed the whole of the acceptable residential development potential
for the area. It 1s not disputed that an element of res:dential development would be
acceptable on the appeal site but a m:xed use scheme would be more appropnate In the
end the judgement to be made 1s whether what 15 proposed ,s sufficiently mixed.

It 1s difficult to balance housing and employment but the Council ss entitled to proceed ot o
‘plan, monitor and manage’ basis  The housing data has not been challenged and tae
Council’s views on the matter of fature job provision have been clearly set out  In essence
the Council argues that it 1s appropnate to exercise caat:on in the use of the IDBR data
which 1s likely to exaggerate provicion because of the tune lag m mcluding deletions A
sigmficant proportion of the extra jobs created between 2001 and 2006, 3,000 out of 4,400,
can be tracked back to one-off schemes or relccations In essence, housing provision 1o
satisfactory 1n the arca, but employment prospects are more qucstionable and on that basis
the loss of employment land to housing carnot be justified

The Case for Renaissance Southend Lid

52

53

Renaissance Southend Ltd (RSL) 1s producing a regeneration framework including a
Central Area Masterplan based on cvidence gathered by consultants Roger Tym and
Partners It 1s recogmsed that the town centre’s principal office offer, along Victona
Avenue, mcorporates a number of outdated buildings

RSL proposes to identify, through the Masterplan, a range of alternative locations where
employment uses would be appropnate and aligned with 1nvestor and occupier

Page 10

61



Report APP/D1590/A/06/2027683 _

54

35

56

requirements The Masterplan will advocate a site by site approach to employment policy,
incorporating where appropriate a mix of uses It 1s ntended that these alternative locations
should supplement the existing employment land supply, and establish new and improved
parameters to encourage office redevelopment 1n existing locations  Given the employment
challenges facing the sector, judicious use of the existing employment land supply m the
central area 1s a crucial driver in delivenng sustained economic regeneration Pending
completion of the Masterplan and the adoption of the Area Action Plans (AAPs), RSL
advocates that the existing supply of employment land 1 the central area should not be
overwhelmed by other uses

In the intenm, RSL advocates that the investment obstacles to new office redevelopment 1n
Victoria Avenue could be overcome by conternplating redevelopment proposals containing
a proportion of mixed uses, to the extent that this could 1mprove economic viability to
encourage new scheme implermentation, and thet the overniding test would be the extent to
which such proposals are deemed to addres: and contnbute towards the reahzation of
sustainable economic regenerat:on objectives The appeal scheme does rot present an
appropriate mux with nadequate employment regeneration {leorspace inciuded  Inn the
intenm, RSL proposes that all planmng applications on existng employment land in the
central area should be considered m the context of a more comprehensive brief having
regard to the emerging Masterplen and AAPs

The appeal proposal is premature pending completion of the Masterplen and formal
adoption of the AAPs Furthermore, the gio1g of a consert ot an important gateway to
the town, 1n the absence of an up to datz and comprehcnsive plan for the west side of
Victonia Avenue, would be likely to prejudice the ablity of RSL or the Counctl to meet the
objectives for the regeneration of the towr centre that secures an appiopriate balance
between housing, employment and an enhancement to the quality of the built environment
and public realm

Previous discussions between RSL and the appellants have ceasidered the possibility of
replacing the affordable housing clement ol thz scheme with resiaential accomemedetion for
300 students (for the Unmversity of Essex) and convering the cast wing ot Heath House
(circa 1,000m2 on 3 floors) for student ancrilai use. Further discussions between RSL and
1ts partners have included the possibibity ¢ using the noc wing of Heath House for
employment use to promote and facilitate 1nn rvation/rescarch ard development/enterpnise
imitiatives in conjunction with Southend's p.'s 2.€ corporate sec-c! This 15 one o 2 number
of options that could dehver jobs and reger-ratton  Such a mmixed use solufion would
contribute directly towards the regeneration . genda, and represent a prefarred cptica for
future development 1n anticipat.on of emciging proposals thicugh the Masierp'an and
AAPs

The Case for Mr & Mrs Murrell

57

The additional traffic volumes nced to be consilered There wouid be fewer parking spaces
than flats 1n the scheme which would have an adverse impact on the avatlability of on-street
parking in the area One parking space pot flat should be the absolute minimam provision
Also, the scheme would result in a substantial increase m traffic on the residential roads
around the site which will adversely affect the quality of life for local residents because of
additional noise and fumes The proposal w ould negate the Council’s previous attempts to
regulate traffic in the area and improve the local environment

Page 11
62



Report APP/D1590/A/06/2027683

The Case for Cllr Norman

58 There 1s a clear conflict between the interests of the developer and the Council, and the
Council 1s entitled to take a long term view There 1s high unemployment 1n the area and
the relevant ward, together with the adjacent ward, are amongst the 10% most deprived in
England The key worker housing in the previous scheme would have served a specific
social purpose and arded regeneration but the present proposals seek to backtrack on this

59 There 1s a young workforce and the present buildings could be adapted to form a call centre
or a similar enterpnise  There 1s also the possibility of expansion of the Essex University
which has already acquired separate sites Carby House was previously used for teacher
traming, demonstrating 1ts suitabihty  Although 1t 1s accepted that there are other under-
used buildings nearby, Victorta Avenue provides a different type of site to those available at
Shoebury or around the airport

60. In addition, the proposed large, high density scheme would lead to a loss of employment
land as well as being 1n danger of becoming a gated commumty Without a car reduction
scheme there would be an mcrease 1n traffic locally

Written Representations

61 The wntten representations made on the appeal reflected the cases made by Mr & Mrs
Murrell and by Cllr Norman In addition, some concern was expiessed about the potential
for residents of the proposed flats to overlook adjoining and nearby property

Conditions and Obligations

62 The Statement of Common Ground® (SCG) included a schedule of draft conditions to be
imposed in the event of permission bemg granted I dcal with the suggested conditions
below, taking account of advice in Circular 11/95 - The Use of Cendiions in Planming
Permussions A list of conditions, mcorporating my amendments, 13 set out as Annex 1 to
this Report and I suggest that these be imposed 1f the Secretary of Statc decides to allow the
appeal

Matters affecting the appearance of the butldings

63 To secure an appropriate appearance for the buildings 1t 18 necessary to require further
details of external matenals, including those balcomes which the subinitted drawings
indicate are subject to rewviston, and of the ground floor refmi and community
accommodation  For simular reasons the means of enclosure reguire prior approval,
together with landscaping and eaternal lighting and I agrec that, given e prominence of
the buildings, restrictions on permutted development nghts for {ciccommumcations
equipment 1s also justified The potential for visual impact of installed plant above roof
level would be safeguarded against by the condition suggested at paragrani 65 below

Parking and Servicing

64 Appropniate parking and servicing arrangements are needed n the nterests of highway
safety and to that end conditions controlling the provision of car and cycle parking and the
dimensions of the servicing access are required

? Document 26
Page 12

63



Report APP/D1590/A/06/ 2027683

Noise from Installed Plant

65. In the absence of information on mechanical plant and its potential effect on the living
conditions of occupiers of the flats, a condition requiring prior approval of any equpment to
be 1nstalled 1s necessary

Archaeology and Notice of Works

66 No evidence was provided to jusufy the Council’'s suggested condition requiring
archaeological supervision of works and, given that the site would have been heavily
disturbed by the building of the existing structures, such a condition 1s not necessary. None
of the matters requinng prior approval seem to me to be sufficiently time critical as to
justify a condition requiring 48 hours rotice of the commencement of works

Unilateral Undertaking

67 Under the terms of a unilateral undertaking dated 22 June 2007 the appellants would

(a) provide, lay out and mamtain 2 publicly accessible area which would effectively be a
small square alongside Victona Avenue,

(b) make a financial contribution to the refurbishment of the Victonia Avenue underpass
and to other works of improvement to the Victoria Avenue frontage of the uite;

(¢) 1nstall a highting scheme as a public art project;

(d) provide and mantain a CCTV system on site and contribute to the Council’s costs for
its own CCTV system,

(e) provide and retain a community room for the use of residents of the development,

(f) 1stitute and revise from tume to ime a travel plan ncluding restrictions of the ability of
residents of the development to obtain on-street parking permits,

(g) provide 84 of the units as affordabls housing 1n such a way as to enable &n affordable
housing provider acting reasonably to provide 40% of these units fr social rented
housing and 60% as intermediate housing

68 These obligations appear to me to be fairly related to the scale and nature of the
development and to accord with the Counzil’s policies. The terms of the vndertakings
concur with the advice 1n Circular 05/2005 — Planning Obligat.ons Althougi some of the
matters covered by the undertakings ‘were included as matters suggested to be covered by
conditions 1n the SCG, I consider that they would be more appropnately sccured through
the undertaking because they mnvolve financiai contributions

0 Document 28

Page 13
64



Report APP/D1590/A/06/2027683

Inspector’s Conclusions

[Numbers 1n square brackets refer to paragraphs elsewhere in this Report ]

Main Considerations

69

The
70.

71

72

73

The 1ssue of highway safety ansing from the possible madequacy of the parking and
servicing arrangements was dealt with to the Council’s satisfaction in discussions before the
opening of the inquiry [18], subject to the imposition of an appropnate condition. On the
resumption of the inquiry on 26 April the parties agreed that, with additional information
provided by the appellants, the design of the scheme was no longer a matter of dispute and
that the Planmng Brnef to which the Council had referred in the second reason for refusal
was not a document to which sigmificant weight could be accorded 1 agree that this
effectively deals with reasons for refusal 2 and 3, so that the main considerations are

(a) whether the proposal would unacceptably reduce the potential supply of employment
creating development 1n the Borough to a harmful extent, and

(b) whether the benefits of the proposal would be sufficient to clearly outweigh any harm
identified

Supply of Employment Creating Development

Heath House and Carby House were constructed as office blocks and served that function
until about 2002, although 1n recent years the amount of flocrspace occupied has been
limited Ewvidence produced by the appellants showed that the contribution the site could
make to the supply of useable office space 1s now hmited, even 1if the buildings were to be
refurbished, given their dated configuration and, 1n particular, the limited headroom
between floors {38}

Elsewhere 1n Victonia Avenue there are office buildings that are currently vacant and being
marketed and 1t 1s clear that much of this floorspace has been available for some time. One
former office building, Skyline Plaza, has now largely been converted to flats The
appellants produced convincing cvidence to show tnat the type of office floorspace which
refurbishment of Heath House and Carby Housz could result in would not satisfy the
present demand 1n the Borough which 1s principally for freehold, low nse office buildings
There 1s also evidence to suggest that office development sites closer to the town centic,
such as at Marine Plaza, are more likely to make such provision {33}

Redevelopment of the appeal site for office purposes with a retai! element in a low nise {orm
was mvestigated by the appellants and an outhine. costed scheme produced This showed
that such a scheme would not be likely to be viable The Council did not dispute thus
concluston It suggested that an alternative, mixed-use scheme would be more appropriate
on the site but did not produce a costed scheme [ judge that the prospects for a successiul
redevelopment of the site for employment purposes are limited I do not consider that it
makes a sigmficant contribution to the range of sites and premises which Structure Plan
Policy BIW2 requires to be provided [10]

The parttes differed on the matter of the availability of land for employment purposes
elsewhere 1n the area [ accept the Council’s standpoint that at present 1t cannot firmily
ident1fy land to meet the 30ha target for employment land provision in the Policy BIW1 of
the Structure Plan but there 1s clear evidence that a significant proportion of that land has
come forward in the earher parts of the Structure Plan pennod The appellants noted that

Page 14

65



Report APP/D1590/A/06/2027683

74

75

there were a number of locations 1 the Borough where the prospects for employment
generating development were good There 1s also a jont initiative by the Council and
Rochford Borough Council to provide further land for such development around Southend
Airport [36]

The focus of emerging planning policy 1s now on the number of jobs to be provided rather
than the area of land to be allocated and momtonng of this factor in recent years has
indicated that progress towards meeting these aspirations 1s good [33] Whilst I
acknowledge the Council’s reservations about the principal source of data [47] 1 am
conscious that all such information 15 subject to a considerable margin of error, especially in
respect of relatively small areas, such as an individual council area 1 do not consider that
the information available to date indicates that a matenal shortfall of employment creating
development 15 likely and in my opinion the harm ansing from the use of the appeal site for
a development largely comprising residential units would be limited

I conclude that the proposal would not unacceptably reduce the potential supply of
employment creating development 1n the Borough to a narmful extent and I find no conflict
with the relevant development plan poiicies

Benefits of the Proposal

76.

77

78.

79

Local Plan Policy E2 precludes the loss of existing major office floorspace unless
alternative development 18 proposed wiich would bring clear beuefits to the town in terms
of facilities and provided and jobs created 1 agree with the Council’s analysis that the
appellants argued, 1n essence, for three positive factors to be taken mto consideration.

The first of these was the provision of 280 flats which would make a contribution to
meeting overall housing requirements 1n the town centre, 1n the Borough as a whole and 1
the wider area The Council was able to demonstrate that progress towards meeting the
housing targets 1n the Structure Plan was good and I accept its argument thai there 18 no
need 1n quantitative or qualitative terms for additional housing m the short to medium term
[43] However, as the Council itself acknowledges, these taigets are not imntended to be
maxima and 1t 15 clear that the site, o the penphery of the town centre and close to well
serviced rail and bus routes, would be a sustainable location for residential development on
previously developed land

Of the 280 flats, 84 would be provided as affordable housing with 40% of these being for
social rented housing and the remainder as intermedrate affordable housing Iam satisficd
that the appellants’ umlateral undertaking [67] would secure this provisien Whilst the
statistical information before the inquiry on the need for affordabie housing was Limited, the
Council did not dispute the appellants’ asserticn thai there 15 an unmet demand which
considerably outstrips the present supply To the extent that there 15 encouragement in
national and development plan policies for widemng housing choice for the less well off,
the proposal must be considered beneficial

The third positive factor advanced by the appellants was the contribution the scheme would
make to the regencration of this area of Southend That the implementation of the schemre
would enable the redevelopment of what 1s at present a vacant and to some extent derchet
site 1s not 1n doubt and that would achieve a visual improvement The employment
generating potential of the proposal itself 1s, however, imited, since only the ground floor
would nclude any commercial development and that would be linuted to retail uses Whilst
additional housing for those wishing to work in the town centre would be provided, | judge
that the impact of this availability on the regeneration of the area would be modest The

Page 15
66



Report APP/D1590/A/06/2027683

80

evidence of Renaissance Southend Ltd on this matter was not wholly conclustve [22; 45]

However, [ do not consider that the redevelopment of the appeal site, even given its size and
prominent position, would unduly prejudice the emerging Masterplan {55] In addition, I
judge that neither the evidence produced by RSL nor by Cllr Norman with regard to
potential occupants for the existing buildings on the site 1f they were to be refurbished, was
sufficiently clear cut to be given sigmficant weight

I conclude that the benefits of the proposal would be sufficient to clearly outweigh any
harm 1dentified and that there 1s therefore no conflict with Local Plan Pohcy E2 1 also
conclude that the housing element of the proposal would contribute towards the
Government’s objectives of creating high quality, sustainable, mixed and inclusive
communities

Other Matters

81.

82.

i have no doubt that the proposal would result in a sigmficant increase in the number of
traffic movements around the site, both for servicing purposes and by res:dents accessing
the parking spaces. This has to be set aganst the potential traffic ansing from the
authonised use of the buildings, although I acknowledge that local residents have
expertenced quite a long period when the bwldings have generated few vehicle visits
Given the satisfactorily amended senvicing arrangements, the restriction 1 the unilateral
undertaking on occuprers’ qualification for residents’ perking permuts and the overall
restriction mn the number of on-site parking spaces, I consider that the proposal would not be
harmful exther in terms of highway safety or additional fumes, noise or disturbance.

I accept that many of the proposed flats would have a view over nearby gardens and
towards existing houses The distances from whach those views would be obtained,
however, taken together with the context of the densely dzveloped urban area in which the
site 1s located where there 1s already an element of mutual overlooking, leads me to the
conclusion that no matenial harm would arise to the hiving conditions of existing residents.

Recommendation

File Ref: APP/D1590/A/06/2027683

83

I recommend that the appeal be allowed aud planning permission be granted subject to the
conditions set out in Annex 1

B J Juniper

INSPECTOR

Page 16
67



Report APP/D1590/A/06/2027683
APPEARANCES

FOR THE LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY.

Katy Skerrett of Counsel
She called

John Collins BA, MBA, MRTPI Planning Director DHA Planning

FOR THE APPELLANT
Rupert Warren of Counsel

He called.

Paul Kmight FRICS Director Dedman Professional Ltd

Steve Wilson BA(Hons), BTP, Director CgMs Ltd

MRTPI
INTERESTED PERSONS.
David Pidkington MRICS Director of Development. Renaissance Southend Ltd.
Mr C and Mrs A Murrell 107 Boston Ave, Southend-on-Sea, $S2 6JF
Paul Drinkwater 99A Baxter Ave, Southend-on-Sea, 82 6HX
Clir David A Norman Council member Victonia Ward
DOCUMENTS

1 [not used]
2 Council’s letter of notification and list of addresses to which 1t was sent
3 Folder of Supporting Documents submitted with the application

Council Proofs and associated documents

4 Proof of Evidence of John Collins
5 Folder of Appendices to Document 4
6 Proof of Evidence of Anthony Handfield [not called]

Appellants’ Proofs and Associated Documes!s

Proof of Evidence of Paul Kmght

Supplementary Appendices to Document 6

Proof of Evidence of David Parker [not called]

10 Proof of Evidence of Steve Wilson

11 Summary of Proof of Ev.dence of Steve Wilson

12 Appendices 1 to 8 to Proof of Evidence of Steve Wiison

13 Folder of Development Plan Folices appended to Proof of Evidence of Steve Wilson
14 Folder of additional policy documents appended to Proof of Evidence of Steve Wilson
15  Bundle 3 ‘History of Negotiations’ appended to Proof of Evidence of Steve Wilson

Third Party Proof
16  Proof of evidence of David Pilkington

At s |

Page 17
68



Report APP/D1590/A/06/2027683

Documents submtted at the Inquiry

17  Joint statement by the parties on highway matters

18  Core Strategy Hearing Paper 4 - Housing

19  Core Strategy Heaning Paper 5 — Employment

20  Council’s letter of 25 Apnl 2007 withdrawing reason for refusal No 2

21  Economic Scrutiny Commuttee Report on Economic Growth Aspirations for Southend —
January 2006

22 Letter from Renaissance Southend Ltd dated 16 June 2006

23 Extract from the Southend-on-Sea Core Strategy Development Plan Document 1
Delivering Regeneration and Growth

724  Extract from Southend-on-Sea Borough Local Plan Second Alteration — March 1999

25  Council’s Policy Section note ¢n employment data sources

26  Statement of Common Ground — final version

27  Outline closing submissions on behalf of the appellants {amended as delivered]

28 Unilateral Undertaking dated 22 June 2007 [subnutted in draft — with text finalised but
without signatures or date - at the inquiry and subseqaently provided 111 completed form]

PLANS

A Indexed folder of submutted and amended plans

Page 18
69



Report APP/D1590/A/06/2027683

ANNEX 1

Conditions Schedule

1)

2)

3)

4)

3)

6)

7

The development hereby permutted shall begin before the expiration of three years from
the date of thus decision

No development shall take place until details of the materials to be used n the
construction of the external surfaces of the buildings hereby permitted, including the
location of and materials for any balcomes but excluding shopfronts, have been
submutted to and approved m writing by the local planmng authority Details of any
shopfronts shall be submutted to and approved 1n writing by the local planiung authority
before being nstalled 1n the bullding Development shall be carnied out 1n accordance
with the approved details

No developraent shall take place until full details of both hard and soft landscape works
have been submitted to and azproved in writing by the local planning authonty and these
works shall be carmed out as approved These details shall include means of enclosure,
car parking layouts, other vehicle and pedesinan access and circulation areas, hard
surfacing materials, minor artefacts and structures (eg Street furmiture, refuse or other
storage unts, signs, lightiag ctc) All hard and soft landscape works shall be carred out
in accordance wrth the appioved detaiis prio: to the occupation of any part of the
development or in accordance with any programme agreed with the local pianming
authorty.

No development shall taks place until a schedule of landscape maintenance for a
minimum period of 5 years has been has been submutted to and approved in wnting by
the local planmng authority The schedule shall include details of the arrangements for
its implementation Development shall be carmed out 1 accordance with the approved
schedule.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planmng {General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (cr any order revoking and re-enacung that Order with or
without modification), no weiecommunications equipir.eat shall be instelled above the
highest part of the roof of either of the buildings

No dust or fume extracticn or filtration equipment or air conditioning, ventilation or
refngeration equipment shall be nstalled unt:! details of its design, siting, discharge
pomnts and predicted acoustic performance have been submitted to and approved 1n
writing by the local planning authonity The equipment shall be mstalicd 1n accordance
with the approved details and thereafter retained as such

Before occupation of any parts of the bwildings the related servicing manoeuvring, car
parking spaces and cycle stoiage facihitics shai! have been completed i accordance with
the approved drawings These facilities shail thereafter be kept available at all times for
their designed purpose

Page 19
70



Report APP/D1590/A/06/ 2027683

ANNEX 2

Drawings

The following drawings comprise the scheme as considered at the inquiry”

A-02-PL-001 REV A

Location Plan

A-02-PL-002 REV A Site Plan
A-PL-03P-000 REV C Ground Floor Plan
A-PL-03P-001 REV A 1 Floor Plan

A-PL-03P-002 REV A to -010
REV A (inclusive)

2™ Floor Plan to 10" Floor Plan (inclusive)

A-PL-70P-002 REV A

Typical Floor Plan

A-PL-05E-02 REV 02

Elevations 1 & 3

A-PL-05E-01 REV A

Elevations 2 & 4

A-PL-05E-03 REV A

Elevations 5 & 6

A-SK-05E-04 Link Fence Detall Stady

A-PL-SK-01 Supporting Itlustrations — Colour — Elevations 1&3
A-PL-SK-02 Supporting [llustrations — Colour — Elevations 2 & 4
A-SK-05E-03 Inset balconies

A-PL-SK-05 Supporting [lustrations — Perspective 3
A-PL-SK-06 Supporting Illustrations — Perspective 4
A-PL-SK-07 Supporting [Hlustrations - Perspective 5

L-PL-90-00 REV A

Iandscape Strategy - Ground Fioor and Public R.ealm

L-PL-90-01 REV A

Landscape Strategy — Roof Gardens

A-SK-05E-01 Active Frontage
A-SK-05E-02 Matenals and Signage
A-UU-003 Public Accessible Square

Page 20
71




72



....
: communities www communtties gov.uk

Y and Local Government community, opportunity, prospenty

ee®
3 QOctober 2007

Mr Steve Wilson Our Ref APP/D1590/A/06/2027683
White Young Green Your Ref

Academy House

36 Poland Street

London W1F 7LU

Dear Sir

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT: SECTION 78

APPEAL BY SOUTHEND PROPERTIES (GUERNSEY) LTD - HEATH HOUSE
AND CARBY HOUSE, VICTORIA AVENUE, SOUTHEND, §S2 6AR

APPLICATION REF: SOS/06/00598/FUL

1 | am directed by the Secretary of State for Ccmmunities and Local Government
to say that consideration has been given to the report of the Inspector, B J
Juniper, BSc DipTP MRTPI, who held an inquiry between 1¢ Aprit and 15 June
2007 nto your client's appeal against the decision of Southcend-on-Sea Borough
Council ('the Council') to refuse an applicaticn for redevelopment with part 4, 8,
10, 11 and 12 storey buildings, comprising 280 flats, with commercial uses at
ground floor level, the prowvision of 165 car parking spaces, cycle storage for 288
cycles, amenity space, refuse storage, and sccesses onto Harcourt Avenue and
Baxter Avenue, on land at Heath House and Carby House, Victoria Avenue,
Southend-on-Sea, $S2 6AR (Apphcaton Ref SOS/06/00568/FUL, dated 16 May
2006)

5 On 17 November 2006, the appeal was recovered for the Secretary of State's
own determination, in pursuance of secten 79 of, and paragraph 3 o Schedule 6
to, the Town and Country Planning Act 1830

Inspector's conclusion and recommendalons

3 The Inspector, whose report 1s attacted 1o s letter, recommended that the
appeal be allowed For the reasons given beow, the Secretary of State agrees
with the Inspector's recommendation and has decided to allow the appeal and to
grant planning permission  All references tc paragraph numbers 1n this letter,
unless otherwise stated, are to the inspector's report (IR)

Procedural matters

4 The Secretary of State, like the Inspector, has determined this appeal on the
basis of the drawings listed at Annex 2 to the inspector's report She agrees with
the Inspector that no party to the inquiry was prejudiced by the consideration of
the drawings and additional tlustrative matenal referred to in IR2

Department for Communities and Local Government Tel 020 7944 8721

1/H1 Eland House Fax 020 7944 5929

Bressenden Place Emait mark plummer@communities gsi gov uk
London SW1E 5DU 73

Website www communities gov uk



5 Following the Inquiry, the Secretary of State sought minor ctanfications from the
appellant on the affordable housing provisions of the Section 106 Unilateral
Undertaking She does not consider that the subsequent changes to the
Undertaking by the appellant are so material so as to constitute a need to refer
back to parties before she proceeds to a decision

6 At the inquiry, an application for costs was made by Southend Properties
(Guernsey) Ltd against the Councii This application is the subject of a separate
decision letter

Policy Considerations

7 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compuisory Purchase Act 2004 requires that
proposals be determined in accordance with the development pian unless
matenal considerations indicate otherwise In this case, the deveiopment plan
comprises the Regional Spatial Strategy for the South East (RR39), publizhed in
March 2001, the Essex and Southend-on-Sea Replacement Structure Plan 1896-
2011 (SP), adopted 1n 2001, and the Southend-on-Sea Borcugh Local Plan,
adopted in 1994 (LP) The Secretary of State considers that the relevant
development plan polictes in this particular case are set out in R10-11

8 The Secretary of State has had regard to emzrging policy, wh:ch Includes the
replacement regional guidance which will be in the Renional Snalial Strateqy for
the East of England (RSS14) As this ts at an advanced slage in its process
towards adoption, the Secretary of State considers that it can be accorded
significant weight. She considers that a key policy relevant to this particulzar case
ts Policy TG/SEZ2 (IR8)

9 The Council is also proceeding with the preparation of a Local Development
Framework, and has published a number of documens i this connection (IR12)
The Secretary of State has had particular regard to the Core Stiategy Dccument,
on which the examination In public closed on 7 Septemuar 206, The Secretary
of State understands that the Inspactor's repert 1s not yet potishad, although she
1s aware that the Inspactor considers the Care Strategy Docurrent to be sound,
subject to certain identified changes The Secretary of S 1o tierefors notina
position to take into account the detaried considerations 2f the mspecter Whilst
the ciose of the examination in public would, t1 normal circumstances, result in
the Core Strategy document baing given significant weight, &s w8 inspecior's
report 1s not yet available and detas of the issues whicn remamn outstanding are
not known to her, the Secretary of Stzte can cnly afford i imited weight in this
particular case

10 The Secretary of State agrees with the Inspector that the add.t.onal documents
submitted to the examination in public, 1 e the Issues and Cpuons report
prepared In connection with the Town Centre Area Action Pizan, and the Scuthend
Annual Monitoring Reports for 2005 and 2006, should all be aznorded hmited
weight (IR13) She also agrees that little weight can be accorded to the
“Redevelopment of Heath House and Carby House Project Management Brief”,
published in January 2004 (IR14), as it was not subject ‘o formal consultaton

11 Matenal considerations taken into account by the Secretary of State include
Planning Policy Statement 1 Creating Sustainable Communities (PPS1),

74



Planning Policy Statement 3 Housing (PPS3), Planning Policy Guidance note 4
Industrial, commercial development and small firms (PPG4), Planning Policy
Statement 6 Planning for Town Centres (PPS6), and Planning Policy Guidance
note 13' Transport (PPG13)

Main Issues

12 The Secretary of State agrees with the Inspector that, for the reasons setout In
IR69, the main considerations In this case are

(a) whether the proposal would unacceptably reduce the potential supply of
employment creating development in the Borough to a harmful extent, and

(b) whether the benefits of the proposal would be sufficient to clearly outweigh
any harm identified

Supply of employment creating development

13 For the reasons in IR70-74, the Secretary of State agrees with the Inspector’s
conclusion that the proposal would not unacceptably reduce the potential supply
of employment creating development in the Borough to a harmful extent (IR75)
Like the Inspector, she also finds no conflict with the relevant development plan
policies (IR75)

Benefits of the proposal

14 The Secretary of State agrees with the Inspector that, for the reasons n IR76-79,
the benefits of the proposal would be sufficient to ciearly outweigh any harm
identified, and that there 1s therefore no conflict with Local Plan Pohcy E2 (IR80)
She also agrees with the Inspector that the housing element of the proposal
would contribute towards the Government's objectves of creating high quality,
sustainable, mixed and inclusive communities (1R80)

Other matters

15 For the reasons set out in IR81, the Secretary of Siale agrees with the ircpector
that the proposal would not be harmful, ether i~ terms of highway safety, or from
additonal fumes, noise or disturbance (IR81) She a'so agrees with the inspector
that, for the reasons in IR82, no materal harm would anse to the living conditions
of existing residents (IR82)

Conditions and Unilaterat Undertaking

16 The Secretary of State considers that the list cf conditions in Annex 1 fo the
Inspector’'s report are both necessary and reasonabie, and that they take account
of the advice 1n Circular 11/95 Use of Conditions in Planning Permissions (IR62-

66)

17 The Secretary of State agrees with the Inspecior that, with the munor changes
made by the appellant as referred to In paragraph 5 above, the terms of the
unilateral undertaking are fairly related to the scale and nature of the
development proposed, and concur with the advice in Circular 5/2005 — Planning
Obligations (IR67-68)

75



Conclusion

18 For the reasons set out above, the Secretary of State concludes that the proposal
would comply with the development plan She considers that the proposal would
not reduce the potential supply of employment creating development in the
Borough to a harmful extent, and that the housing glement would contnbute
towards the Government's objectives of creating high quality, sustainable, mixed
and inclusive communities She concludes that the benefits of the proposal would
be sufficient to clearly outweigh any harm identified The Secretary of State
concludes that there are no matenial considerations of sufficient welght to suggest
that she should determine the appeal oiher than in accordance with the
development plan

Formal decision

19 Accordingly, for the reasons given above, the Secretary of State agrees with the
Inspector's recommendation She hereby allows your client's appeal, and grants
planning permission for the redevelopment of the site with part 4, 8, 10, 11 and
12 storey buildings, compnsing 289 flats, with commercial uses at ground ficor
ievel, the provision of 166 car parking spaces, cycle storage for 288 cycles,
amenity space, refuse storage and accesses onto Harcourt Avenue and Baxter
Avenue, at Heath House and Carby Hous=. Victoria Avenue, Scuthend-on-Sea,
S52 6AR, In accordance with Application Ref SOS/06/00598/FUL dated 16 May
2006, subject to the following conaitions

1) The development hereby permitted sha'l begin before the axpiration of three years
from the date of this decision

2) No development shall take place unt! cetals of the matenals to be used In the
construction of the external surfaces of the buiidings hereby permitted, including the
location of and matenals for any balcorias but e.ciuding shepfronts, have been
submitted to and approved in wrting by the local planning authority Details of any
shopfronts shall be submitted to and approved in wnting by the local planning
authonty before being nstalled in the bunding Development shall be carned out In
accordance with the approved cetals

3) No development shall take placc unsi full details of both hard and soft landscape
works have been submitted to and aporoved in writing by the local planning suthority
and these works shall be carned out as approved hese details shall include means
of enclosure, car parking layouts, other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation
areas, hard surfacing materiais, nunor aisfacts and structures {eg Street fuiniture,
refuse or other storage units, signs, fighting etc) Al hard and soft landscane works
shall be carried out 1n accordance wih the approved details prior to the occupation of
any part of the development or in accordznce with any programime agreed with the
local planning authonty

4) No development shall take place unhi a schedule or landscape maintenance for a
minimum period of 5 years has been has been submiited to and approved in writing
by the local planning authonty The schedule shall include detalls of the
arrangements for its implementation Development shall be carmed out in
accordance with the approved schedule

5) Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning {(General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or

76



without modification), no telecommunications equipment shall be installed above the
highest part of the roof of erther of the buldings

6) No dust or fume extraction or filtration equipment or air conditioning, ventiation or
refrigeration equipment shall be installed until detalls of its design, siting, discharge
points and predicted acoustic performance have been submitted to and approved in
wnting by the local planning authority ~ The equipment shall be installed n
accordance with the approved detalls and thereafter retained as such

7) Before occupation of any parts of the bulldings the related servicing, manoeuvring,
car parking spaces and cycle storage facitties shall have been completed In
accordance with the approved drawings These facilities shall thereafter be kept
availlable at all tmes for therr designed purpose

20 An applicant for any consent, agreement or approval required by a condition of
this permission for agreement of reserved matters has a statutory nght of appeal
to the Secretary of State if consent, agrcement or approval 1s refused or granted
conditionalty or If tne Loca! Planning Authortty fail to give notice of their decision
within the prescribed perod

21 This letter does not convey any approval or consent which may be reguired under
any enactment, bye-law, order of reguiation other than section 57 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 180

Right to challenge the decision

22 A separate note 18 attached satting out the circumstances In which the valdity of
the Secretary of State's decicions may be challenged by making an application to
the High Court within six weeke from the date cf thus letter

23 Copies of this letter are being sent 1o Southend-on-Sea Borough Council and
those other Parties who appeared at the Inquiry

Yours faithfully,

\r\/\ OJ\A»- P \/Lv.fw‘_e ~

Mark Plummer
Authorised by the Secretary of State
to sign in that behalf

77



This page is intentionally left blank



6.



This page is intentionally left blank



T8



This page is intentionally left blank



€8



This page is intentionally left blank



G8



This page is intentionally left blank



JAS

i
e

e e e e e —

=l

y  20M ABOVE ORDINANCE DATUM

|

CAAILIBLAAS ot | L T R WSS A

this dray P
c%;m:w R

Rev Pate Dm Chkd Dascel™g . €20 (0

A 09.0506 TW PP lssued for Planning

Pleasa Note: 3
Lecation of bolt on balconies are shown
Indicatively only and are subject to further
detailad slovational study

Elevation 1

_y _20M ABOVE ORDINANCE DATUM

A3 Usat name

Uive Flatarme

Elevation 5

N Crginal size 100mm Copyright Boadway Malyan Limited

Weghridge, Sy KTTS 25W
T: 441 (011837 845530

£ +44 {0193 855708

£ WepbRmadwapiatrin.iem

Chent

Southend Properties (Guernsey} Ltd
Feojed

Victoria Avenue, Southend
Desaripiion

Heath House B Carby House
Elevation1 &3

Sy

Flanning

Sale Srwn Date
1:500@A3 1200k TM April 06

2ol mapsber Dsmwing A Revisian

27855 A-PL-OSE-02 A




This page is intentionally left blank



68



This page is intentionally left blank



T6

PRINT USE: DATE:

REV: AMENDMENT: DATE:
W 00 LANDSCAPE PROVISIONAL 16.06.15
S, W Qo DESIGNS
A§~ Se 2: DL
10 HE > E H BT 0y g
% E DM - 8
? w
o / e £ BE
B 29 W9 | I
! 8278,
H9 'O T1IYMMOTdE
5141 140 139 138 137 136 %1358 i 433 4
w
3
<
(=]
o 132
O S %
130
145
8 151 150 149
8 M
oo 124
S
5o 123 | @
2 e @ | = §
@ S sou 2
T 3 4 F a
- 122 | &
zZ-3- =
‘ 3 2 BOUNDARY TREATMENT TO BE AGREED WITH ADJACENT OWNERS
HO ‘2 qavod 3soa ~ E HL'T 190198
. A 7 - 121_| __ | ___ — N 3
3 % s = A v ——
s R. v IS X \ \ N z @ R
h I 7 X 7 I & i & £ X
0 120 A N | s ¢ 1 e
) 2 2 g f COVERED CANOPY : ) y N v N )
- o dagtheg line of building gbove o 4Py i 39 038 037 036 035 034 033 032 031 9 028 027 024 023 022 010 009 008 007 006 0@5‘ il
i 165 164U) 163 1629) 161 160Y) 150 158U )z - — ’ R=F a0 o Prior building works must be instructed by the
=2 : 2o g : B 0§ oo client.
= o 51 - P @ K l:@"‘
= 5 , » ! H It is essential that all client/builders notes are
E . dashed line of building above [meR o 3 | i d by th li he Archi /
E E @ - D D D D D D D D‘ 3 = S ElStl’LlCte y t e Ct |ent as per t e rc IteCtS
[ - 3 S ngineers request.
Y = CcYC | K §
3 2 - = HiHh R | o7 1 ~A A 0042 Failure to complete these instructions could have a
. : 9 EE:-= . N ¥ = o O cost implication on the tender stage or even the
" o - - [ o 940 0415 042 0435 044 0455 0406 047 045 0437 050 0517 052 053 3 5 058 feasibility to deliver the project as proposed.
2 2 Nursery/ Medicaf$urgery/ ok E . - : ,
z 8 Community Room Residents' ) = smm’ . 59 It is solely the responsibility of the client to instruct
; N (combined total gross internal COmmu,ﬂ};l; E “ . ||aos i MIE these works so that the information is available prior
294.9sqm) Room CRERE: = = | 03 gl & % = to build.
| 273.sq.m now R EE CYQLES 960 . )
Hpvgui 8 g B = [] ] = O 117 1160 115 11400 113 11200 117 1700 109 1080 .t?::@ 4 4 A9
73 o R 2
= 7 . Client and Builder Notes 1 (CBN1)
o COVERED CANOPY r =11 o
H o 06T
7 D-054 . 2 8 Trial pits to be carried out to expose all interface
= L E f L K 062 & 0 areas between the existing and new building. To be
{4‘“"% g = = O checked by contractor prior to building works
S S g < [] commencing and information to be relayed back to
z|VO the Architect.
102 103 104 105 106 107 055 056 2 N
o o) ,j}—g O . -
p gu ~ P64 CRetaiA2 © Client and Builder Notes 2 (CBN2)
u ® (r(gross internal
s It (Dggj-izq’gg . Drainage search to be carried out. Client to instruct
Al g . ?) B cur,'emq' ol prior to formal planning submission. To be checked
- ] o . : s by contractor prior to building works commencing
Lk 4 == 8 sy : and information to be relayed back to the Architect.
- . 091 076 o5 Client and Builder Notes 3 (CBN3)
: R 8
o, o A : 092 077 s Client budget awaiting confirmation so that a cost
] P Retail 3 P ° ok 30 2 = plan can be commissioned.
-y B B (gross internal 3 =093 078
# 340.1sqm) 2 ) pi
o 094 3 5 079 Wi
) N — N STATUS: AWAITING APPROVAL
- {{"’"’“&\23 | _ . . OQ?DHH . TD(;‘H"u' ) Li%;gf\w 958;{5 o - 080 - MWQL »] ‘\/E]&T“Vdg . 070 A \ _ HO TONTIYY 913w PROJECT STAGE: DRAWNBY: CHKED BY:
. . ) ' i il i \ ‘ \ il tos S4 - Technical Design RB [ ISK
ﬁj P : gl NI e [ TR et oo
G wd 331109 X famii - \ A AN I .al > / '
| ST o e e _dwe  m NS \ L S a N g g ; Randall Watts
. H4 AS Hom o 0 A SEE & PROJECT: Postcode:
_ S i, : BT T T T LTI F \\ . 3 IS~ = &? Heath and Carby House, SOS XXXX
Heod DEve i \‘\‘\‘\‘\‘\‘\‘\m\‘\‘\‘\‘\‘\/ \ PROJECT NO: PAGE NO: REVISION:
w A\ SpS 279-03-15  22855-A-PL-03P-000 Rev E1 00
e R B Bi e LA AL - S ' DRAWING: :
: ’ e ’ SHELTER * 68 B+ L ETEETA Proposed Grd Floor Plan - Layouts PEACK
T i — Sg’ yﬂ u{: ‘53 JOWSVL SYo
/ ;: l]i( DIES Doy e [mEN zh\m\ . :cé\;gon A1

BUILDER INFORMATION:
DO NOT BUILD FROM ANY DRAWINGS PACKAGES THAT DO NOT SAY, BUILDING
CONTROL APPROVED OR IN CONSTRUCTION PACKAGES.

IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BUILDER TO CONTACT THE ARCHITECT TO
REQUEST/CONFIRM THE RIGHT DRAWING PACKAGE IS ON SITE. PLEASE BE
ADVISED THAT ALL DRAWING PACKAGES WILL ALSO HAVE STRUCTURAL
ENGINEERING WORKS ATTACHED. DO NOT BUILD WITHOUT ALL PAPERWORK

\ /A
2 w4/

5 o/ og h
, — . /
—— 019 \
N t \
D" e

/ u ‘
Se g/ IR oE o

A

AY1TId 1d

HE BE, 2E i

Bl

: |
TN Vi EE DY 2z ‘E&EEE%, A

DRAWING NOTES:
CF B ALL ITEMS, NOTES, DIMENSIONS AND GENERAL DESIGN CONTAINED IN THIS
VR DRAWING ARE FOR GUIDANCE PURPOSES ONLY. NOMINATED BUILDER AND
PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PROJECT SHOULD MAKE A THOROUGH CHECK
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORKS AGAINST SITE, DRAINAGE SERVICE
DRAWINGS, CURRENT BUILDING REGULATIONS, BRITISH STANDARDS AND
CODES OF PRACTICE. FAILURE TO DO SO WILL BE AT THE LIABILITY OF THE
BUILDER/CONTRACTOR NOT THE ARCHITECT

8l "B Dy S8 HE DY
]

BE B o€ gEr 00

a0 sdT

00 '19
3WIT

THE CONTRACTOR IS TO ALLOW WITHIN THEIR PRICE FOR ALL ITEMS NOT
\ LISTED BUT THAT WILL BE REQUIRED TO COMPLETE THE WORK IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ALL CURRENT LEGISLATION.

Ground Floor Plan o o -
ARCHITECTS

\\ 108 Leigh Road Tel: 01702 478195
Leigh on Sea Mobile: 07963 931 452

SS9 1BU E-mail: info@skarchitects.co.uk




This page is intentionally left blank



€6

SOUTH

oo

Laurel planting

a

@ O M
Laurel planting, 5
Community Facilities I = T | S
Residents' entrance | Q@L g H
iy . | \
waiting area & Concierge ) Jw
service, meeting room LR )
and gym ” N
| .
main scheme @ . |
car parking PP FF T 7 WEST
g
1 245/FUL . | - TR
8/00 k'5/ U —— ‘A)(B)(C) Air conditioning compressor
I = .
car parking i | £ equipment
T T .
N | P S VO S W N | © Total car parking spaces 180 plus
| R N Q_ \ ) .
19/01868/FUL Give Wor o 7/ public spaces within the square
. y —— (@)]
car parking Oncoming c
Traffic" sign \ ]
—— w . .
main scheme 5> Total cycle parking (bike
ﬁlﬁ_i ] GJ
. . LA
bicycle parking g racks) 294
K
15 B %
18/00245/FUL [ E
. . A 3
bicycle parking R
N Og
e |
14 E i
19/01868/FUL drRe [ S
bicycle parking o _
existing planting
° s | |l e e i
— 11 ca 77%\. — 75 .
g LEVEL AREA &’D 10 bike racks %
o K ‘ | T
% B - = || - )\ !(\\, g:: ‘ 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68 70 171 72 = = . - = 2 . = k * - f
N ' o’ 0’ ° o ’ 0 0" M " no. car parking spaces for
A =! —=([_ 13 AR 6 no. ground floor flats
- PARKING 6no. bike racks for 6 no. ground PARKING —
m ] } N : A floor flats in this location
L SR gjt U 139 140 D 141 142 l:l 143 144 D 145 6 D 147 148 lj 149 150 D 151 152 D
brr 5 - el e
% ] GFP)
% - ”‘\ I " ge ﬁlﬂﬂgf a %1]9 == T
S\ B O 0 0 0 u ] g ___|
S S . _ B e ke racks
o . @ Che [po 8no. bike racks for 8 no. floor 10 i REFUSE
£ | apartments in this location FFHW Il Bk 0] STORAGE AREA
= — 4 [— 88 Van
SHOP USE CLASS A1 gEgEiSSIS%NétASSZR/ECES :L ”4 PA/C?/?(I/?NG ﬁ i B B q G '.i ﬂ
——{ 7 il T » \f :I]w_ '_ 89 i‘: ‘Hﬁﬂh'ﬁ; rrrrr m \\‘-“
D D D ﬂ W‘ | % %DE 164 163 162 161 :‘l 160 159 j 158 157 156 155 j 154 153 “"Jl—l I_l C&“ 7
< £ 180 & LY ‘
1 1 - - ; ENTRANCE TO APARTMENTS g g JJ 1 8
—— - = R e = " = ot e - Tl
: - ’—‘q . PLANTING o 4+ v Uw EL!—\ ‘H—HH_\ ‘ H/\ D D D EI D D D Eﬂ 1l N
i l_‘—_,_‘ l_‘—_’_‘ — — — X i 165 165 166 167 168 169 170 171 172 173 174 175 176 177 |_ :|‘ 8
N:ﬁ ﬁ — ﬁ' « . 4 e - F “ ]
— = ::W: = 15| |
% V/ 0 o . 5 |1 16 bike racks 13 bike racks i S
o (& P o £ : ©
) PLANTING A . _ % j‘ 8 br ‘ 5 br U‘—‘ 3 bike racks L
VT % \5 l_‘—_,_‘ lﬁl ‘:: 7 4 ‘:: (.\ g@ g’ [ 7:7 ENTRANCETO\\\ — - |
| o~ % - _ C\g - - - - - - ENTRANCE ‘L APPARTMENTS /~ \
N V5 TG v / (8] SHOP USE CLASS At M ‘l‘ _
Q" ;:,J / C: . ] 132 125 111 104 % _“’T; kHAJf‘H;C“"b"’
v: va ﬁﬁ g % g O y, / O g ‘ ——:E 'L\/\
2” (TREE&PLANTING / / Il Cl j P :
Ew D 5 y 4 - | 133 ﬁ 126 119 112 105 97 ¢ N
Q‘: . <¥V/» PG i < | PARKING L | |FEL jq
M‘ ) / — — |:‘|7 N |1 M = 120 s 106 98 4 ~
M Cj ﬂ :’_‘ PN ‘r\ V4 / 44 /% % 136 128 121 114 107 99 % %
R - ) (@{E&F?LANTH\Q/ O g g
i \E/pu\mms - [ 137 129 122 115 108 100 § g
;i v / O . [ S — fv [:B] -
== e e e ey M DA L
D D 102

/PLANTING

PLANTING E

D (o B e Han CmOon BFmians OmO

&
3
&

CLIMBER PLANTS IN SURFACE MOUNTED PLANTERS TO GROW UP AND ALONG METAL FENCING

L

BLACK WIRE FENCE PANELS

pe=—==—— 8
012345

SCALE

SITE PLAN 1:230

"The-Square" e
green line -see drg.
279-03-15-6088E

|

gross internal
264Sq M (2841 sq. ft.)

ssible space
d by

O

See drawing [

279-03-15-6103A for

landscaping details

- EAST

O

8no. car-parking spaces markegholt A\

for 8 no. floor 10 apartments

Red boundary line
showing site ownership

~

Amendments By |Date

A Public accessible space planters and site RB |29.07.20

car parking areas adjusted.

See drawing
279-03-15-6103A for
landscaping details

BUILDER INFORMATION:
DO NOT SCALE FROM DRAWINGS. ONLY USE FIGURED DIMENSIONS.

Prior building works must be instructed by the
client.

It is essential that all client/builders notes are
instructed by the client as per the Architects/
Engineers request.

Failure to complete these instructions could have a
cost implication on the tender stage or even the
feasibility to deliver the project as proposed.

It is solely the responsibility of the client to instruct
these works so that the information is available prior
to build.

Client and Builder Notes 1 (CBN1)

Trial pits to be carried out to expose all interface
areas between the existing and new building. To be
checked by contractor prior to building works
commencing and information to be relayed back to
the Architect.

Client and Builder Notes 2 (CBN2)

Drainage search to be carried out. Client to instruct
prior to formal planning submission. To be checked
by contractor prior to building works commencing

and information to be relayed back to the Architect.

Client and Builder Notes 3 (CBN3)

Client budget awaiting confirmation so that a cost
plan can be commissioned.

PROPOSED

RIBA STAGE 5 RB
Randall Watts

Beaumont Court and Richmond House, SOS XXXX

279-03-15 6202 A

Proposed Site Plan - Car Parking, Bike Racks,.
Community Facilities & Landscaping

1:230 on A1 July 2020

@)
BUILDER INFORMATION:

DO NOT BUILD FROM ANY DRAWINGS PACKAGES THAT DO NOT SAY, BUILDING
CONTROL APPROVED OR IN CONSTRUCTION PACKAGES.

IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BUILDER TO CONTACT THE ARCHITECT TO
REQUEST/CONFIRM THE RIGHT DRAWING PACKAGE IS ON SITE. PLEASE BE
ADVISED THAT ALL DRAWING PACKAGES WILL ALSO HAVE STRUCTURAL
ENGINEERING WORKS ATTACHED. DO NOT BUILD WITHOUT ALL PAPERWORK

DRAWING NOTES:

ALL ITEMS, NOTES, DIMENSIONS AND GENERAL DESIGN CONTAINED IN THIS
DRAWING ARE FOR GUIDANCE PURPOSES ONLY. NOMINATED BUILDER AND
PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PROJECT SHOULD MAKE A THOROUGH CHECK
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORKS AGAINST SITE, DRAINAGE SERVICE
DRAWINGS, CURRENT BUILDING REGULATIONS, BRITISH STANDARDS AND
CODES OF PRACTICE. FAILURE TO DO SO WILL BE AT THE LIABILITY OF THE
BUILDER/CONTRACTOR NOT THE ARCHITECT

THE CONTRACTOR IS TO ALLOW WITHIN THEIR PRICE FOR ALL ITEMS NOT
LISTED BUT THAT WILL BE REQUIRED TO COMPLETE THE WORK IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ALL CURRENT LEGISLATION.

ARCHITECTS

853-855 London Road Tel: 01702 509250
Westcliff On Sea

Essex SS0 9SZ E-mail: inffo@skarchitects.co.uk



AutoCAD SHX Text
Carby House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Heath House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
201

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
302

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
303

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
EOT

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
EOT

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
EOT

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
(1.00)EOT

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
EOT

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
EOT

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
(0.90)

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
(1.20)

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
(0.90)

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
3W 0.35-

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
   0.60d

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
1W 0.15d

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
EMPTY

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
EOT

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
2W 0.45d

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
2W 0.50d

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
2W 0.50d

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
3W 0.20d

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
1W 0.55d

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
2W 0.55d

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
(1.50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
(2.00)EOT

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
(0.35)

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
UP TO

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
FIRST

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
UP FROM

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
BASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
Grosvenor Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
VICTORIA AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
CARNARVON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
110 to 114

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
70 to 76

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
5 to 15

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
86 88

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
Government Offices

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
90 92

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
HARCOURT AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
Richmond

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
VICTORIA AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
Beaumont

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
UP TO

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
FIRST

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
UP FROM

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
BASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
024

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
023

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
022

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
141

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
154

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
153

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
151

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
142

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
146

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
147

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
140

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
138

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
137

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
039

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
038

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
037

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
036

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
055

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
018

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
063

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
001

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
002

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
003

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
004

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
011

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
005

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
006

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
007

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
008

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
009

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
010

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
012

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
013

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
014

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
015

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
016

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
017

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
019

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
020

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
021

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
058

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
057

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
056

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
062

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
061

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
060

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
059

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
025

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
026

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
027

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
028

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
029

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
030

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
031

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
032

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
033

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
034

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
035

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
068

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
067

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
066

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
065

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
064

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
069

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
070

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
071

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
072

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
073

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
078

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
077

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
076

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
075

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
074

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
079

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
080

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
081

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
082

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
083

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
088

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
087

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
086

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
085

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
084

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
089

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
090

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
091

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
092

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
093

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
054

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
099

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
098

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
097

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
096

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
095

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
094

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
053

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
052

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
051

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
050

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
049

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
048

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
047

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
046

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
045

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
044

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
043

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
042

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
041

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
040

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
155

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
157

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
158

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
162

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
163

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
164

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
166


This page is intentionally left blank



G6



This page is intentionally left blank



L6

Amendments By |Date

A Landscaping revised along Victoria and RB |25.06.20
Harcourt Avenues.

>
—

1
|
J

AN 3&

N

CAR
PARKING

=
MR

O Nl Nl
\\

P amta Bl
e

L
15 bike racks

TS

z

O

O
1

=

| S \\*
=
oz | [ oz ) \\$§ >

i B \
T TITI T ‘ ’:‘;:::_;' F ! §§§§§\\\\?\§\\x\

ENTRANCE

o

A

m
LY
N
N
N E
SANE
k!

Y / J af N
£ =2 {
. \ |
i ) LANDSCAPE PLAN A LANDSCAP PLAN B ’ .
SITE PLAN 1:500 Red boundary line showing site ownership

1:100

CAR |
,,,,,, PARKING

129 122 115 108

1.2 dia x 0.75m high planter pot in light stone colour

1.6m x 0 .60m wide x 0.60m high rectangular planter from www.europlanters.com in light stone colour

1.0 dia x 0.60m high planter pot in light stone colour

»
A

BUILDER INFORMATION:
DO NOT SCALE FROM DRAWINGS. ONLY USE FIGURED DIMENSIONS.

Prior building works must be instructed by the
client.

15

14
LANDSCAPING PLAN B 1:100

It is essential that all client/builders notes are
instructed by the client as per the Architects/
Engineers request.

Failure to complete these instructions could have a
cost implication on the tender stage or even the
feasibility to deliver the project as proposed.

LANDSCAPING PLAN A 1:10

It is solely the responsibility of the client to instruct
these works so that the information is available prior
to build.

A - Amelanchier

B - Euonymus Emerald Gold
C - Lavandula 'Hidcote'

D - Hebe Tricolour

Client and Builder Notes 1 (CBN1)

Trial pits to be carried out to expose all interface

. ) . " -l ‘. . . : . b h isti d building. To b
et ol G e o E- Salvia Nem Caradonna Chosked by coniractor pror 0 buiding worka
s Sy x Sl SO SRR commencing and information to be relayed back to
; : k|11 the Architect.
T EC (LY O U A Client and Builder Notes 2 (CBN2)
PLANT'NG SCHEDULE Drainage search to be carried out. Client to instruct
prior to formal planning submission. To be checked
LANDSCAPING P-LAN A ELEVATION 1:100 by contractor prior to building works commencing
BLACK WIRE FENCE PANELS No Planter type Plant Species Quantity and information to be relayed back to the Architect.
1 Round 1.2m A,C,D,E,L 1 of each Client and Builder Notes 3 (CBN3)
2 1.6 Xx0.6m GIKMP 2 of each Client budget awaiting confirmation so that a cost
A plan can be commissioned.
o : 3 Round 1.0m | A,C,D,H 1 of each
G - Hedera helix 'Goldheart | 4 16x06m | GHMOP 2 of each
H - Honeysuckle ‘Dartsworld 5  Round 1.0m | AB,C,DN 1 of each
| - Sollya heterophylla 'Ultra Blue' 6 | 1.6x0.6m G,I,LLN,O,P 2 of each
J - Trachelospermum asiaticum 7 | Round1.2m | ACDEIP 1 of each _
e 8 1.6 x 0.6m G,J,M,0O,P 2 of each STATUS: PROPOSED
K - Trachelospernum Jasminoides ARl PROJECT STA O o
9 Round 1.2m | AB,C,D,EK 1 of each
10 | 1.6 x 0.6m G,H,L,N,0 2 of each rendallats
11 Round 1_Om B’C’D’E’J 1 Of eaCh Beaumont Court and Richmond House, SOS XXXX
L - Clematis armandii 12  16x06m | G,JKMP 2 of each e ’
M - Clematis cirrhosa 'Jingle Bells' 13 | Round 1.0m | A,C,D,E,O 1 of each
: ' H P 1:230 on A1 MAY 2020
N - Clematis montana 'Marjorie 14 Eounj 1-§m A,S,C,D,E 1 o: each A
. ' . ' 5 oun .um B, ,D,E 1 (0] eaCh DO NOT BUILD FROM ANY DRAWINGS PACKAGES THAT DO NOT SAY, BUILDING
O - Clematis urophylla 'Winter Beauty e TR S TR ICTON s
L o, 16 | Round 1.0m | B,CD,E 1 of each T R Ay
P - Clematls Early Sensatlon 17 Round 1.2m A’B’C’D’E 1 Of each ENGINEERINGWORKSATTAC:Ei.v:ZGNZLfEUSII:DWITHOUTALLPAPERWORK
L M N O P 19  Round 1.2m  AB,C,DE 1 of each e
20 | Round 1.2m | AB,CDE 1 of each s W e O A T
21 Round 1.2m A’B’C’D,E 1 Of each ACCORDANCE WITH ALL CURRENT LEGISLATION.

ARCHITECTS

853-855 London Road Tel: 01702 509250
Westcliff On Sea
Essex SS0 9SZ E-mail: inffo@skarchitects.co.uk



AutoCAD SHX Text_247
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
Grosvenor Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
VICTORIA AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
CARNARVON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
110 to 114

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
70 to 76

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
5 to 15

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
86 88

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
Government Offices

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
90 92

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
HARCOURT AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
Richmond

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
TUNBRIDGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
VICTORIA AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
Beaumont

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
UP TO

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
FIRST

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
UP FROM

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
BASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
024

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
023

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
022

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
141

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
154

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
153

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
151

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
142

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
146

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
147

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
140

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
138

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
137

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
039

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
038

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
037

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
036

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
055

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
018

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
063

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
001

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
002

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
003

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
004

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
011

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
005

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
006

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
007

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
008

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
009

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
010

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
012

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
013

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
014

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
015

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
016

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
017

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
019

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
020

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
021

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
058

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
057

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
056

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
062

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
061

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
060

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
059

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
025

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
026

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
027

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
028

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
029

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
030

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
031

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
032

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
033

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
034

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
035

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
068

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
067

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
066

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
065

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
064

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
069

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
070

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
071

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
072

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
073

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
078

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
077

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
076

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
075

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
074

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
079

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
080

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
081

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
082

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
083

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
088

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
087

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
086

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
085

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
084

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
089

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
090

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
091

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
092

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
093

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
054

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
099

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
098

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
097

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
096

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
095

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
094

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
053

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
052

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
051

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
050

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
049

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
048

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
047

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
046

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
045

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
044

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
043

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
042

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
041

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
040

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
155

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
157

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
158

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
162

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
163

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
164

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
Carby House

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
Heath House

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
580E

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
560E

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
540E

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
580E

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
575E

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
580E

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
575E

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
280N

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
265N

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
201

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
302

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
3W 0.35-

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
2W 0.45d

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
2W 0.50d

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
2W 0.50d

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
3W 0.20d

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
1W 0.55d

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
(1.50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
(2.00)EOT

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
(0.35)

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
(1.10)

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
(1.10)

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
UP TO

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
FIRST

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
UP FROM

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
BASEMENT


This page is intentionally left blank



4 \ - il — I
19 from column face | \ JJ |l GYM T ‘ ‘ ;T/ | | JJ | T ‘ ‘ ;T/
fﬂ/ ( ‘ \ (T from column face Entrance[ } W ( ‘ ( ‘ [ }
;, ‘ t‘_J J I h RFCEPTION = ‘ tr‘ I ) ‘ ‘
‘ B | W T o IS
e I '_ —77434§V i E e R Em— o e e Em— o %
T mew oS 01 2 3 4 5 01 2 3 4 5 8
[ \ i i I e BT
‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ;I | -l I‘ | I - L1l |B“E| | N N [ [ N N N N A | L1 1 | % | N Y I A o | é [ Y Y qIE | : | -l : ( ) S CA L E H S CA L E g H
1 \ \ \ [ [ | \ \ \ Py
R | [ ] 1 | BP8 5 x P1 - - PSH | S|
[ | \ \ \ [ ] \ ‘R'—i 8 x P2 [ 1 | \ \ [ | 2559 , 3766 2155 |, 1964 1264 1076, 1635, ||
\0‘\ ‘ \ ‘ \ ‘ ! \ ‘\ ‘ \ | \ ‘ 5xP3 | \ | \ | ! | ! | \ ‘ . . - T — 1 1 ‘ T 1 T T — 1 YN
‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ S S ) S S B B ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ } 7*7 7* “; iL ’—‘ ‘ [ ‘ ‘ L e 1 : ¢ % =
[ ] \ \ \ [ ] \ \ pSH | [ ] \ [ ] \ \ [ e TP g - — ¢ ° \
] e | ] — oo . 1 - T rrsH PR L I e
[ ] \ \ \ [ ] \ \ \ \ ] — T ] [ \ \ [ T 0 r T e ‘ T ‘
o —— | o —— T T = ~ | w1 T [ e H|
[ | \ [ PSH \ [ | \ \ \ \ [ I \ N N \ \ [ ] I I O iy ‘ \
[ 1] \ \ [ ] | \ \ \ A /1 | \ NI | \ I S T T |
[ [ 1 [ [ I/ N N AN . [ N o]
[ [ [T M T T H LT[ ] L] L]0 [ HBPL BE i A [ T
e “ifg% HT LT e e m | PSH | 1
o (U T TR N ™ ) : 1o 8 Tel
‘ “ ‘ ‘ ‘ “ S s ey T s s Y S ey ey O ; BE \ _| |X|Pu1| I S D B A / BE i B ‘ ‘ L,T,Aﬁ J,f S
I P L \ % H 1 sa \
I O O N N | / i psH |
||||||||||| ‘u ‘I i — “I - ‘I‘ |‘ |‘ i — |“ _7| b‘é‘ : T g;’l T TI |7| T |T T i [ : RL \\\\tii:jf/"/// ; BE I 1) i { D
L4 BP ey ——0 — I ‘
[ i 3 S exPAl - |
| ‘\ ‘ \‘ ‘\\‘ g W///ﬁ//;%f 1 PSH ' Sl
‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ : T \\ﬂ 1jii:l;jl d[l //;Y 7| Iil T Iil T 1T 1T 1T 1 777_ i IBIPH8| T T T T T T T T T 1T T T T ; !
\ \‘ \ ‘ [ \‘ Qf OHHH L H AL i 5x P1 i |
C T T T oY HMN O E i 2XF2 i L
T T T T || L BU) o ] 5x - —E
‘ § N N - ‘ T T T |‘ 1 |‘ T T |‘ H PSA\/ ] | | I — [ P S }i | T T T 7T T T T T T T T T ; P S H i
R I T T T e [T T : i
— T B N LA I — S S i T— |
‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ :H T T T I‘ 1T I‘ T T T H‘I I I‘ 1T T I}\ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ \ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ h
‘ | ] | \ [ ] \ \ [ ] | [ ] [ \ [ \ \ L [+ S
s T T T T i T T T T T T 1 e T T f
............ e T IL ol T I T UL T L [ Ll T T [ | pw = ' S
i I H TP I 1BP8 i ‘
— . o S s N e S s | O N 5 x P1 PSH [ |
S s ' < = A SR A= A R R R B NN 2 %P3 7 |
‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ \A /glél/-l// 4//%'% I/ 4 XEZ ) : : T T T T T T T T 1T T T T T T T T 7T ) PSH i
sy [ H ] T e A | -
SIS I S I o O I Y N B [ R | i )
\ ] 0l N N i \ | \ | \‘ [ /;fﬁt*:—;{ [ \‘ \ A } .
| O S D i /A Nl - \ o
B T S T o e B = S RN ) \ \ 1 i ‘
s s e e v A R R A e T 22 e o s e s v V. PSH [BPL |
| [ ] ‘\‘ 2 O O O I :/EPL i 6xP3 o | Lf ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
| | | | | 3 | H R u | (% T1 “ Y N S S i ]
‘\ ‘\ ‘\g A s s O O O O PSH | \:\QXPZ , BPL PSH } .
[ “ ‘ | ‘ “ il’SXL - 77 7—7* L \\\\\\\ / // 6 x P1 \ .
[ ] [T 11 B T F \\\ - PSH BE | .
S e w— A A 1 20 A U AE R A= R ! — e B SRR T
P I T e e e ey a7 | f————— N — — |
| T ] | I B 1 i T g~ [ ] T [ T ] @ e
T T T | T g e —— — - T | €
[ [ [ [0PSHL [ [ ] ] 1| 6xPS ¢ /A R A/ S R [ L[ T 5
i B i H 4
e BB S — 1 L 4 g i BE PsH | *=
I T T T T T ‘l L L L T LT LT T T T T T T T T T T — I T i T T T T T T 70 4 ' m ,‘_“‘ i Q)
o L H 1 H L CPS // 1564 | |
i—— T M PSH : L L
:l [ [ [ 0 |6u T ]I\A - —— ’ugéy/l T I I S B — %7 777777777777777 N T
LA HEH A L ~ lerL : |
il EEEEREEE i , S 5 x P1 i B . e Y AN |
'miiliginiiginiig [inli i 5xP2 I PSH }
Psv TP a i 5x P3 i ! )
PPV | /" PSH I I e )
H T~ L L — [ T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T ‘ -
_7|4|/7; T I‘ | TI T T T HTI 1T T T i ] 7: ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ { _ >
(18P OIETERET | | | S N O O A B — el /
(T m e Y T ke 1=
Tt e e e N D B 0O - 0 0 O 0 0O i P
1' — 7{;’/ / ] G ] T e
\\\ ° %LﬁmLDER INFORMATION:
\\ DO NOT SCALE FROM DRAWINGS.
-y < ONLY USE FIGURED DIMENSIONS.
\ J 4 |
<E ﬂj (') C] LI'J LI'- Pltior building works must be instructed by the
glg gL-) glg glg glz gg Ic“ei"t' ial that all client/build
v - . v . .- ins(r_ucted by the (iliem as per the Architects/
T O T T O S S
"= "= "= "= "= "= cost mplation on e tender Siage o sven he.
Q) Q) Q) Q) Q) Q) feasibility to deliver the project as proposed.
Itis solely the responsibility of the client to instruct
thesgk\;v.orks so that the information is available prior

Client and Builder Notes 1 (CBN1)

Trial pits to be carried out to expose all interface
areas between the existing and new building. To be

GA PLAN 1:100 Planting Schedule

_ _ - | ‘ s e e
Plant Type Quantlt Slze Form Client and Builder Notes 2 (CBN2]
R ) g y P I a n te r type B P L Dr_ainage search to I_Je carrie; oL_lt. (.:Iien! to instruct
KEY| TM = Tarmacadam T1 | Sorbus x Thuringiaca | 2 200cm Root Ball R
. R . . . . . (Hybrid Service ’(jginé::dbtgeeé;\:‘vra"i‘t;r;?oioegﬁrmalionsothatacosl
PSH PSH = Brett flamed granite paving in Silver Grey and Graphite Grey set out in horizontal Tree) |
staggered pattern
(size 1200,900,600x300x22). Colour mix 80% Silver Grey and 20% Graphite Grey randomly B1 Viburum Opulus 1 120-150cm| Root Ball
placed as indicated. (Guelder Rose) Amendments By |Date
. . . . . . A | Paving type changed and lighting type | RB [12/06/18
PSV PSV = Brett flamed granite paving in Graphite Grey in vertical P1 pecified. PLANNING
H H H . B Paving type and pattern amended. RB |22/06/18
staggered pattern as indicated (sizes 1200, 900, 600x300x20). B2 | Cornus Sanguinea 1 45-60cm Root & | Pranting information added. I RIBA STAGE 5 RB
. . . . . . . DO Wood D Bench image, planters & scale bars RB [10/07/18 n
T BP8 = Brick planter in Staffordshire or similar blue engineering brick (Dog ) added. Randal Wats
. . - . . E Car parking area remodelled. RB |23/10/18
- with wire cut finish and no holes. To be 11 B courses high making total F | Car parking area paving added B 061118 Beaumont Court and Richmond House, SO
| height 825mm. B3 | Amelanchier x 3 45-60cm Root 279.0945 6038 .
[ [ [ . ] . .. . . . grandlﬂora "RObIn HIIl" T1 Proposed Public Square Plan &
IBPL BPL = Brick planter in Stafordshire, or similar, blue engineering brick P2 Public Art Lighting Setting Out
N with wire cut finish and no holes. To be level with top of paving. U shaped Bench seat P1 | Cranesbill Geranium x 35 30-45cm | container 1:230 on A1
(J O h nSO n B I u S) 0 : 6 L ‘D;) I\‘IOT BUILD FROM ANY DBRL/I;\I/-VI:I’IESSINPFA%nggﬁHAT DO NOT SAY, BUILDING
1T 1 1T 11 BE = Divisions between paving to be in same brickwork as planters, and level with paving. .TR.ESQTUHEESg}%&gﬁ%ﬁ?gﬁi@%}%ﬁﬁE;Ef%%“f{g{&g;C&ES%TBTEO
. . . . . . . . P2 Rosa Pim ine”ifolia 49 45_GOcm Bare root ADVISEDTHATALLDRAWINGP/-\CKAGESWILLALSOHAVESTRUCTURAL
[ ] RL = Recessed light type Lutec Victoria Grille LED Outdoor brick light IP65 rated or similar (Burnet Rgse) PR, o T e A e
BL = Recessed light in barrier rail or bollard B1 B N e Ao s
PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PROJECT SHOULD MAKE A THOROUGH CHECK
— H H H H PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORKS AGAINST SITE, DRAINAGE SERVICE
FL = Recessed floor light type Forum Pan Ground Light IP67 rated or similar. P3 | Lavanadula Spica 41 45-60cm container DRAVINGS, CURRENT BULDING REGULATIONS, SRITSH STANDARDS A
. BUILDER/CONTRACTOR NOT THE ARCHITECT
BEE = 2000x490x500mm U shaped bench seat. Colour & type TBA Hidcote (Lavender) 0.6L P3 THE CONTACTOR O oW WM THER PRCE FORAL e o
ACCORDANCE WITH ALL CURRENT LEGISLATION.

ARCHITECTS

B2 B3 853-855 London Road Tel: 01702 509250
Westcliff On Sea
Essex SS0 9SZ E-mail: inffo@skarchitects.co.uk



AutoCAD SHX Text_487
302

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
302


This page is intentionally left blank



L M | | - | ﬁ u M | - d ﬁ
] [‘ Y D | ¥ T ] ! RECERTION ] [‘ Y [‘ ¥ D ] ] {
J . . 1 | 1 w DESK \_: 777777 ‘ %_) \_:
T T 1T T T T T T T T T T T T | 777 8 8
\ S = = c
\ \ \ \ [ 1 m — o)
\ [ ] \ H || s RECEPTION WAITING AREA O
| e - o £
— | | i L :
‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ T T L T T T T [T T LT T LT T T T I T T T gl T T T T T T T ! I T T T T T T T T T T T 1T 1T T T T T T T T T 1T T T T T T T T T H:
‘\ | 1 - | [ | BP8 1 ] 1 . S
:' - o | - 1 | 5xP1 : - - I Q
— A — — I E— 82 B - 1 2559 3766 , 2155 1964 1264 1076, 1635
| [] [ 11 - S B L FO— 17| = Fi| FL RY || R IR e e I — — (R FL) — FL L MWWGH
i ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ \PLI/\';‘T!NIGI I T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T I: ‘ ‘ \T/ ‘ 1 77 7* T O © (o] r u T D —
i — [ [ | [ 1 o [Eam] ] ] [T SR — o
% | 1 [ | 1 [ - [ 1 I — - ! | ol | | LI FI°
| - o | - o [ = 1 I — [ T T & e D g 3
] [ ] ] [ ] I i g N I I R N K o O o Olejo <
| [ 1 - | [ 1 I T [~ - T - 1 e
| [ 1 - | [ 1 [ T 7721 ] RSN I — 1 €D 9 5
[ 1 [ 1 - - [ 1 [ 1/ 71 sl [ [ ] [ ] [ = — ~ Dl 9
1 1 A HITTHTH I THHE AL [ert IR i ] - \
o o A A R L Y ; G oL
I ——— e N S T B2 0 e ] FL ) Q| o
r"“ 3 \‘ \ ‘ \ \‘ \ | ‘ “ ngn 7*77 7*77 Enn A i lPLANTING 1 j 1 6xP1 [ I D
‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘_ — — - — - e — \\—\ |||||||| T T T T T T TT \I':L\ Iy
T T T T T T L L i L TN ) B |
| Y A N S mENEEE Nl SNl ARSI ,// ) 8
| “ “ | “ “ | “ _BP8 // XF/ 6% P 0T - /> <> (]
L Lty | N s
— 6 [N O UHHT FL o BP8  o : B a |
NS P ———— " S S R ] 5 P2 I N O o s j]
’ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ [ [ ] B ] E PLANTING >xP3 E T
‘ ‘ ‘w ‘ “ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘I‘I I‘ T I‘I H‘ I I I‘I I‘I T ‘I I‘I‘\ V | <>

] | [ | | [ | | [ - R 4
T BP8 i @) i
1 5 x P1 i i - >
E gxlFD’:Z3 E Il O
[ PLANTING X [ / i
‘IHIIHIIII‘II‘HIIIII‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
T / >
N B
\‘\‘\‘ /yv Q Vam\
] I I - — / L
i BPL o
L PLANTING — /*7\\ i /
i b \\\
6 x P2 6 x P3 u/ / { BPL i
i T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T | “ "“‘ : : ‘\““
H - - ] i \ \ \ 1 NN A \ ]
‘ “ “ “ “ “ | S S S S S S S S o s s s s A _/// \ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ L;\\:l:ij_///j ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
I [ E— 0/ 4 [ T ] [ [~—TF 1 [ ] [ T ]
n ‘\‘\‘\ ‘\‘\‘\ ‘\:\‘\ ‘\ \‘\‘\ \‘/J‘H {BPL I [ ] [ ] [ ] [T ] [T ] -
[ [ [ T T 1 | L T i
[ . . | — H‘\‘\‘\‘u\\‘lu;@ ;
2 T T T [ [ e

I T T 1 T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T [ [T [ T T T ] 11 Y T T [ T T T 1T

T T T T T T [ [T T T T 1T ¥ I1/7F T T T T T T T T T TNST Y

=iiiisinlisinR i ERngR: ain ? (K B1
EREEREEEERERE R 1 | E PLANTIN 6 x P1
1 || || || || N1 77 : y I T T T T T T T T T T 1/1T /1 W
CIT T T 1T T T 1T T T 1T 1T T 1 —r ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘\\ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ J/
1|0 R — \ \ \ \ W\‘/\ \ \ N

Pr‘\)
[
[ [
[
\
[
[ [
\
[
\
[ [
\ <
N
[
\
Y
/]
/
\
\
\
o | |
o
m:
oo [ [
X X X M
wwUo [ | |
WN= [
III\IIHI N —
| [ |
|
| L
// 44
74

I == |

—

; - B A  —
4 x /%_ ‘ : i /
e e e s I s |<|| I I ] O O O i O @ O

i

/
B

®
BUILDER INFORMATION:

DO NOT SCALE FROM DRAWINGS.

ONLY USE FIGURED DIMENSIONS.

Prior building works must be instructed by the
client.

Itis essential that all client/builders notes are
instructed by the client as per the Architects/
Engineers request.

Failure to complete these instructions could have a
cost implication on the tender stage or even the
feasibility to deliver the project as proposed.

Itis solely the responsibility of the client to instruct
these works so that the information is available prior

H BP8 H H BP8 to build.
i 5xP1 [ i 5xP1
Q P Q . I g X IFD)% 1 I 3 X E% I . Client and Builder Notes 1 (CBN1)
L N . [l PLANTING X 1 [l PLANTING SX 1 P I a n tl n g S C h e d u I e Trial pits to be carried out to expose all interface
areas between the existing and new building. To be
| I ) A S I T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T 1 checked by contractor prior to building works

commencing and information to be relayed back to
the Architect.

Plant Type Quantity Size Form

P I t t B P L Client and Builder Notes 2 (CBN2)
a n e r y p e Drainage search to be carried out. Client to instruct
prior to formal planning submission. To be checked

K EY T1 Sorbus x Thurin g iaca 1 200cm Root Ball and miommatin 1o be relayed back {6 the Arohleet.

Client and Builder Notes 3 (CBN3)

. .

( H yb rl d Se rVI Ce Client budget awaiting confirmation so that a cost
plan can be commissioned.

Tree)

TM = Tarmacadam

PSH PSH = Brett flamed granite paving in Silver Grey and Graphite Grey set out in horizontal

B1 Viburum Opulus 1 120-150cm  Root Ball

staggered pattern (Guelder Rose) Amendments By |Date
(size 1200,900,600x300x22). Colour mix 80% Silver Grey and 20% Graphite Grey randomly P1 A | Paving type changed and lighting type | RB |12/06/18 PROPOSED
placed as indicated. B :pe'mﬁetd. d patt ded RB |22/06/18
: I : : : B2 | Cornus Sanguinea 1 45-60cm | Root 2VING s ane pater amendee: RIBA STAGE 5 RB
PSV PSV = Brett flamed granite paving in Graphite Grey in vertical D g C | Planting Information added. RE |2sios
. . . ench image, planters & scale bars
staggered pattern as indicated (sizes 1200, 900, 600x300x20). (Dogwood) added. Randall Watts
Car parking area remodelled. RB |23/10/18 . © Court and Richmond H sos
LI ] - : : : P : : : . F | Car parking area paving added IB |06/11/18 caumont Lourt and Tichmond Touse, 00
BP8 BP8 .B”Ck pl_a_nter In StaffordShlre or Slmllar blue engl_neerlng _brICk B3 AmelanCh|er X 1 45'600m ROO’[ G | Planters adjusted and moved. RB |30/07/20 279-03-15 6088 H
m with wire cut finish and no holes. To be 11 B courses high making total randiflora "Robin Hill" T1 Benching omitted. _
— helg ht 825mm g P2 H Plant legend indicated on plan. RB |25/09/20 iL%Ti(::s:?t t::gbl:ltti:ansu:tl;?nF:?uf‘
I . . . .. . . . i i - ; 1:230 on A1
BPL BPL = Brick planter in Stafordshire, or similar, blue engineering brick P1 | Cranesbill Geranium x| 42 30-45cm | container A
N with wire cut finish and no holes. To be level with top of paving. (Johnson Blus) 0.6L DO NOT BUILD FROM ANY DRAINGS PACKAGES THAT DO NOT 8AY, BUILDING
CONTROL APPROVED OR IN CONSTRUCTION PACKAGES.
* IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BUILDER TO CONTACT THE ARCHITECT TO
REQUEST/CONFIRM THE RIGHT DRAWING PACKAGE IS ON SITE. PLEASE BE
H 1 1 H ADVISED THAT ALL DRAWING PACKAGES WILL ALSO HAVE STRUCTURAL
‘ H H H ‘ ‘ BE e DiViSionS between paving to be in Same brickwork aS planters, and Ievel With paVing_ P2 Rosa leplnelllfO“a 56 45 GOcm Bare rOOt ENGINEERING WORKS ATTACHED. DO NOT BUILD WITHOUT ALL PAPERWORK
(Burnet Rose) B1 ALL ITEMS, NOTES, DIMENSIODNgA/Y\\II\IIgGGgSEEf\I:_ DESIGN CONTAINED IN THIS

DRAWING ARE FOR GUIDANCE PURPOSES ONLY. NOMINATED BUILDER AND
PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PROJECT SHOULD MAKE A THOROUGH CHECK
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORKS AGAINST SITE, DRAINAGE SERVICE
DRAWINGS, CURRENT BUILDING REGULATIONS, BRITISH STANDARDS AND

Q P3 LavanadU|a Sp|Ca 52 45-GOcm Container CODES OF PRACTICE. FAILURE TO DO SO WILL BE AT THE LIABILITY OF THE

BUILDER/CONTRACTOR NOT THE ARCHITECT

FL = Recessed floor Iight type Forum Pan Ground Light IP67 rated Or Similar. HidCOte (Lavender) O-6L P3 THE CONTRACTOR IS TO ALLOW WITHIN THEIR PRICE FOR ALL ITEMS NOT

LISTED BUT THAT WILL BE REQUIRED TO COMPLETE THE WORK IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ALL CURRENT LEGISLATION.

ARCHITECTS

B2 B3 853-855 London Road Tel: 01702 509250
Westcliff On Sea
Essex SS0 9SZ E-mail: inffo@skarchitects.co.uk


AutoCAD SHX Text_489
302

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
302


This page is intentionally left blank



€01

PLANNING APPROVAL REF 20/00686/AMDT

/

1
.
1

B
R

Il
|

||
L_| i ] nER | N
= I = = = — — = - =
“_ || — —_— — _ KEY
— — — — — CLADDING TYPE
| ‘=7 ; L — ] ; [ ] 1 | Bl \ MARLEY ETERNIT CLADDING TYPE
: 2 EQUITONE TEXTURA TEOO FS XTRA
[] I | W ALl LIGHT LOUR
— ; ‘ D — — = L — D D D — ; CALCO (LIGHT COLOUR) Rockpanel Woods |
L |- || D || || — Ll | colour Rhinestone Oak

ﬂ

Rockpanel Woods |
colour Rhinestone Oak

ROCK PANEL - FS XTRA
MINERAL RUST

| | [ B ROCKPANEL FS XTRA
| | RAL 7016 GREY COLOUR
[] i TO MATCH WINDOW

=
- -
|
|

[

|
[
—

Rockpanel Woods [
colour Rhinestone Oak

]
I
i
HE N

I .

[

L
S8 BB BE BS BS BE =¥

|
|
—
—
—
[
=
—
|
[

I M I M I M |
"B B
H N
|

[

[]
IH\

|
W
il
BN !

: FRAMES

L

\

[
1
_

T
[l

\

[
1
_

. . Planning approval
A | references indicated. |RB {21.09.20
H H Rev Comment By Date

Prior building works must be instructed by the
client.

It is essential that all client/builders notes are

EAST E L EVAT I O N instructed by the client as per the Architects/

Engineers request.

Failure to complete these instructions could have a
cost implication on the tender stage or even the
feasibility to deliver the project as proposed.

PLANNING APPROVAL REF 20/00686/AMDT It is solely the responsibility of the client to instruct

these works so that the information is available prior
to build.
12th
Client and Builder Notes 1 (CBN1)
[— Trial pits to be carried out to expose all interface
11th areas between the existing and new building. To be
checked by contractor prior to building works
commencing and information to be relayed back to
. | . R SO | the Architect.
10th
Client and Builder Notes 2 (CBN2)
9th Drainage search to be carried out. Client to instruct
— prior to formal planning submission. To be checked
by contractor prior to building works commencing
8th HE and information to be relayed back to the Architect.
D [] Client and Builder Notes 3 (CBN3)
7th — n = Client budget awaiting confirmation so that a cost
— — plan can be commissioned.
6th o =
5th |
4 - ) STATUS: CONSTRUCTION
2 RIBA STAGE 5 []
3rd | : | NP H X | L] Randall Watts
— = —
‘| Beaumont Court and Richmond House, SOS XXXX
! A
2nd W 05,
i 279-03-15 6203
JI Beaumont - East and North Elevations - -
W Cladding Colour Types
1st i Wi
1:200 on A1
BUILDER INFORMATION:
G rOU nd DO NOT BUILD FROM ANY DRAWINGS PACKAGES THAT DO NOT SAY, BUILDING
CONTROL APPROVED OR IN CONSTRUCTION PACKAGES.
v IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BUILDER TO CONTACT THE ARCHITECT TO
REQUEST/CONFIRM THE RIGHT DRAWING PACKAGE IS ON SITE. PLEASE BE

ADVISED THAT ALL DRAWING PACKAGES WILL ALSO HAVE STRUCTURAL
ENGINEERING WORKS ATTACHED. DO NOT BUILD WITHOUT ALL PAPERWORK

DRAWING NOTES:
ALL ITEMS, NOTES, DIMENSIONS AND GENERAL DESIGN CONTAINED IN THIS
DRAWING ARE FOR GUIDANCE PURPOSES ONLY. NOMINATED BUILDER AND
PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PROJECT SHOULD MAKE A THOROUGH CHECK

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORKS AGAINST SITE, DRAINAGE SERVICE
DRAWINGS, CURRENT BUILDING REGULATIONS, BRITISH STANDARDS AND
CODES OF PRACTICE. FAILURE TO DO SO WILL BE AT THE LIABILITY OF THE
BUILDER/CONTRACTOR NOT THE ARCHITECT
THE CONTRACTOR IS TO ALLOW WITHIN THEIR PRICE FOR ALL ITEMS NOT

LISTED BUT THAT WILL BE REQUIRED TO COMPLETE THE WORK IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ALL CURRENT LEGISLATION.

ARCHITECTS

853-855 London Road Tel: 01702 509250
Westcliff On Sea
Essex SS0 9SZ E-mail: info@skarchitects.co.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING APPROVAL REF 20/00686/AMDT

/

KEY
CLADDING TYPE
MARLEY ETERNIT CLADDING TYPE
[ [ ] EQUITONE TEXTURA TEOO FS XTRA
CALICO (LIGHT COLOUR)
! Rockpanel Woods |
= colour Rhinestone Oak
i [ ]
_! *>‘ ROCK PANEL - FS XTRA

MINERAL RUST

Rockpanel Woods I
colour Rhinestone Oak

| | ROCKPANEL FS XTRA

Rockpanel Woods |
colour Rhinestone Oak

! ﬂ \\ RAL 7016 GREY COLOUR
— T e TO MATCH WINDOW
FRAMES
] ] N
I T N T -
|

Planning approval

A references indicated. |RB [21.09.20
D D D Rev Comment By Date

SOT

Prior building works must be instructed by the
client.

It is essential that all client/builders notes are
instructed by the client as per the Architects/
Engineers request.

S O U T H E L EVAT I O N Failure to complete these instructions could have a

cost implication on the tender stage or even the
feasibility to deliver the project as proposed.

It is solely the responsibility of the client to instruct
these works so that the information is available prior
to build.

PLANNING APPROVAL REF 20/00686/AMDT

/ Client and Builder Notes 1 (CBN1)

Trial pits to be carried out to expose all interface
areas between the existing and new building. To be
checked by contractor prior to building works
|||||||| ) |H commencing and information to be relayed back to

| - % the Architect.
‘lﬁ m T ﬁ _— [ ] Client and Builder Notes 2 (CBN2)

—

.
. |
|

|
|

Drainage search to be carried out. Client to instruct
= prior to formal planning submission. To be checked
by contractor prior to building works commencing

and information to be relayed back to the Architect.

L

|

| B

Client and Builder Notes 3 (CBN3)

=

Client budget awaiting confirmation so that a cost
plan can be commissioned.

|
il
il

| BN
N
MWW

| (N STATUS: CONSTRUCTION

RIBA STAGE 5 L]

|
u
—
—

ﬂ

Randall Watts

E E E j Beaumont Court and Richmond House, SOS XXXX

279-03-15

EE B
| |
il
il
L
|
| |
|
| |

6204

Beaumont - South and West Elevations - -
Cladding Colour Types

|

[
-
—

|

u

|

1:200 on A1

—

J L ﬂ BUILDER INFORMATION:
DO NOT BUILD FROM ANY DRAWINGS PACKAGES THAT DO NOT SAY, BUILDING
— CONTROL APPROVED OR IN CONSTRUCTION PACKAGES.
IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BUILDER TO CONTACT THE ARCHITECT TO

I
EE BN
|
|
I N
|

-

REQUEST/CONFIRM THE RIGHT DRAWING PACKAGE IS ON SITE. PLEASE BE
ADVISED THAT ALL DRAWING PACKAGES WILL ALSO HAVE STRUCTURAL
ENGINEERING WORKS ATTACHED. DO NOT BUILD WITHOUT ALL PAPERWORK

DRAWING NOTES:
= _ ‘ o | ] ] | — ALL ITEMS, NOTES, DIMENSIONS AND GENERAL DESIGN CONTAINED IN THIS
B DRAWING ARE FOR GUIDANCE PURPOSES ONLY. NOMINATED BUILDER AND

. . PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PROJECT SHOULD MAKE A THOROUGH CHECK
Louvre colour Oyster White RAL 1013 Louvre colour Oyster White RAL 1013 PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORKS AGAINST SITE, DRAINAGE SERVICE

DRAWINGS, CURRENT BUILDING REGULATIONS, BRITISH STANDARDS AND
CODES OF PRACTICE. FAILURE TO DO SO WILL BE AT THE LIABILITY OF THE
BUILDER/CONTRACTOR NOT THE ARCHITECT

THE CONTRACTOR IS TO ALLOW WITHIN THEIR PRICE FOR ALL ITEMS NOT
LISTED BUT THAT WILL BE REQUIRED TO COMPLETE THE WORK IN

ACCORDANCE WITH ALL CURRENT LEGISLATION.

ARCHITECTS

853-855 London Road Tel: 01702 509250
Westcliff On Sea
Essex SS0 9SZ E-mail: info@skarchitects.co.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



L0T

PLANNING APPROVAL REF 20/00672/FUL

PLANNING APPROVAL REF 20/00672/FUL

LTI

|
e

= [T WMTINT WTINTINT TR

(T ]

R IR [ |
(1|

=
|

East Elevation 1:200

PLANNING APPROVAL REF

PLANNING APPROVAL REF 19/01868/FUL

19/01868/FUL

PLANNING APPROVAL REF 20/00672/FUL South Elevation 1:200

= E=

I BN BN BN NN e .

3 [—

PLANNING APPROVAL REF

19/01868/FUL

KEY
CLADDING TYPE

MARLEY ETERNIT
EQUITONE TEXTURA TEOO
CALICO (LIGHT COLOUR)

ROCKPANEL FS XTRA
RAL 7016 GREY COLOUR
TO MATCH WINDOW
FRAMES

ROCK PANEL - FS XTRA
MINERAL RUST

PLANNING APPROVAL REF 20/00672/FUL

North Elevation 1:200

PLANNING APPROVAL REF
19/01868/FUL

1

West Elevation 1:200

PLANNING APPROVAL REF
19/01868/FUL

CLADDING TYPE
FS XTRA

Rockpanel Woods =

colour Rhinestone Oak

Rockpanel Woods | —

colour Rhinestone Oak

Rockpanel Woods )

colour Rhinestone Oak

Notes:

Planning approval
A | references indicated. |RB [21.09.20

Rev Comment By Date

Stage:

Client:
Randall Watts

Project:

Beaumont & Richmond
Richmond House

73 Victoria Avenue
Southend on Sea

SS2 6EB

Drawing Title:

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

Drawing no: Revision:
279-03-15-6205

Project no: Drawn by:
279-03-15 RB

Scale: 1:200 @ A2 Chkd by:

SKARCHITECTS

853-855 London Road
Westcliff-on-Sea
SS0 9z

Tel: 01702 509250
Email: info@skarchitects.co.uk

NB.
Do not scale from this drawing
Drawing to be read in conjunction with all other issued drawings, documents and

or guidance purposes only. All dimensions must

ject to Building Control requirements and the requirements
of all relevant statutory authorities and service providers.

© SKArchitects Ltd 2018




This page is intentionally left blank



60T

TV balcony
]

7 Z 7 Z I,

Z S %% A

A o A o o A o A, 7

9 i 7, " /) 7 /) 77 // 0/ 7 4 /) 7 / /) 7 " &

Z Z Z Z 7 Z Z 7 Z 7 7 Z Z Z Z Z 7 Z 7

T A s s i 4
X0

7 7 74
000 7
7/ 00 000

N

. 7

N X
nlninne
AMhinnaa
R

NN

T
N

0 L7077 7

7% G A 7

7 Z 7 7 % % Z % Z

7 77 7/ A
7

A

~
AN

NN
M
N

NN

\\\ Q

Q
\;\:
N
MR

Q

AR
NNV

NN,
MANNR

200

NN
N

1200 %

N\ NN
NN
\
Y
\\

2896
2674
¥
\\

RN
N

N

N

N

QN

D
N

NN
N N
N

_
A

N

777 777 2 777 T 70 T 270 D 2
A A A A A A A
I 00 0000000000000 000 7 e 07 i S i 00000 7
LA P, A

AR
\\ NN
R
N\

7
7% T Z Z

7 7 00 o/

G % G, G,

70 D 7
7 /7, 7 /7 /) 7 /7 Y,
A %
"///’//
%
7 LA

77
74

PV THIN FILM CELLS

B

stair
AOV

Ao

.. ‘

TV balcony

TV balcony

see drawing 279-03-15-6084
for details of roof garden on
floor 11

see drawing 279-03-15-6085 .

for details of roof garden on
floor 3

ROOF PLAN (as seen above floor 11

TV balcony

1:200

TV balcony

0 5m 10 15 20

IEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE NN

SCALE

Notes:

A PV arrangement adjusted

RB

28/07/2020

Rev | Comment

By

Date

Stage:

Client:
Randall Watts

Project:

Beaumont & Richmond
Beaumont Court

61 - 71 Victoria Avenue
Southend on Sea

SS2 6EB

Drawing Title:

ROOF GARDEN PLANS (as seen from floor11)

Drawing no:

279-03-15-6206

Revision: A

Drawn by:
4 RB

Project no: 279_03_1 5

Chkd by:

Scale: 1:200

SKARCHITECTS

853-855 London Road
Westcliff-on-Sea
SS09sZ

Tel: 01702 509250
Email: info@skarchitects.co.uk

NB.
Do not scale from this drawing

Drawing to be read in conjunction with all other issued drawings, documents and

relevant consultants' information.

All information on this drawing is for guidance purposes only. All dimensions must

be checked onsite.

This information is subject to Building Control requirements and the requirements
of all relevant statutory authorities and service providers.

© SKArchitects Ltd 2018



AutoCAD SHX Text_491
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
SVP


This page is intentionally left blank



/G991

TTT

Amendments By |Date

28427
209 423 5478 9800 800
| N
51
R 32
©
(@)
N
S B3
N
J EARRE
é // ’11
U 2114
B4
N //// O il
) A
2 & i =l
e } 2 = %
O © -~ = S T
2 2 J 3
U U w
(@)}
o
O O
w) (@) w
R 3 09 B R
~
o
N
B2
1;3
R B
X
Q
L
B
Q
Q
B
13854 424 1661 800

Raised planters 1.2m x 1.2m - 1000 kg per planter (incl soil)

300 x 300mm paving (7sg.m)

600 x 600mm paving (buff) 257sq.m

Artificial sanded grass adhesive and stapled down through 25mm Marine Ply (157m2)
Seating Area - Built around AOV - TBA

Metal mesh box around AOV - TBA

25925

PLANTING SCHEDULE

Taxus Baccata Pyramid 180cm
Taxus Baccata hedging

Taxus Baccata Ball

60cm

Taxus Baccata Pyramid 180cm + Buxus
Sempervirens

A | Materials and pattern amended following

discussion with Tim Fenn. RB 17.10.17
B | Materials and pattern amended following B 18.10.17
C | Material pattern amended to TF comments IB 19.10.17
D | Material pattern amended to TF comments B 19.10.17
E Planting schedule added following meeting with RB 20.12.17

Tim Fenn on 18/12/17.

CONSTRUCTION

PROJECT STAGE: DRAWN BY: CHKED BY:
RIBA STAGE 5 [ ISK
CLIENT:

Randall Watts

PROJECT: Postcode:
Beaumont Court and Richmond House, SOS XXXX
PROJECT NO: DRG NO: REVISION:
279-03-15

DRAWING: REV:
SCALE:

BUILDER INFORMATION:
DO NOT BUILD FROM ANY DRAWINGS PACKAGES THAT DO NOT SAY, BUILDING
CONTROL APPROVED OR IN CONSTRUCTION PACKAGES.

IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BUILDER TO CONTACT THE ARCHITECT TO
REQUEST/CONFIRM THE RIGHT DRAWING PACKAGE IS ON SITE. PLEASE BE
ADVISED THAT ALL DRAWING PACKAGES WILL ALSO HAVE STRUCTURAL
ENGINEERING WORKS ATTACHED. DO NOT BUILD WITHOUT ALL PAPERWORK

DRAWING NOTES:

ALL ITEMS, NOTES, DIMENSIONS AND GENERAL DESIGN CONTAINED IN THIS
DRAWING ARE FOR GUIDANCE PURPOSES ONLY. NOMINATED BUILDER AND
PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PROJECT SHOULD MAKE A THOROUGH CHECK
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORKS AGAINST SITE, DRAINAGE SERVICE
DRAWINGS, CURRENT BUILDING REGULATIONS, BRITISH STANDARDS AND
CODES OF PRACTICE. FAILURE TO DO SO WILL BE AT THE LIABILITY OF THE
BUILDER/CONTRACTOR NOT THE ARCHITECT

THE CONTRACTOR IS TO ALLOW WITHIN THEIR PRICE FOR ALL ITEMS NOT

LISTED BUT THAT WILL BE REQUIRED TO COMPLETE THE WORK IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ALL CURRENT LEGISLATION.

ARCHITECTS



AutoCAD SHX Text_503
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
B4

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
B4

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
B4

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
B1

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
B2

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
B3

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
B2

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
B1

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
B1

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
B2

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
B3

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
B2

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
B1

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
PLANTING SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
B2

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
B3

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
B4

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
Taxus Baccata Pyramid 180cm

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
Taxus Baccata Ball 60cm

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
Taxus Baccata Pyramid 180cm + Buxus Sempervirens

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
B1


This page is intentionally left blank



€17

| |
column

| | | |
column column

Fositio!ns

positions positions
| | |
| |

|

|
TV projection

qum* qum¢
positions positions
| | |

Amendments By |Date
A | Materials and pattern amended following
discussion with Tim Fenn. RB 17.10.17
B |Planting schedule added following meeting with
Tim Fenn on 18/12/17. RB 20.12.17

PLAN 1:50

A - Raised planters - 1000 kg per planter (incl soil)

Raised planters - 200 kg per planter (incl soil)

Millboard uPVC Lasta Grip Plank Decking - Golden Oak (161sg.m)

Artificial sanded grass adhesive and stapled down through a suitable underlay bonded to Millboard
uPVC Plank Decking or 25mm Marine Ply that has been fixed to the Millboard sub framework (113m2)

D | | Paving slabs 500 sq x 38mm thick (79m2)

E Millboard Porcelain Esterno Elements - Golden Quartz ENT66GQ (58m2)
F [ Millboard Porcelain Esterno Earthstone - Pumice ENTE6PM (27m2)

G % Bench 4no.

H === 1.5m high fence fixed to sides of planter (8 linear metres)

i;i:;f Meadow grass mix in trays 65kg/m2 (28m2)

%224 Sedum mix in trays 65 kg/m2 (47m2)

and to the planters sides | |
| |

| | 32388
1 1 |
|
7Sy 7Sy 7 /Sy 7Sy Ny / 7 /Sy 7Sy 7 /Sy 7Sy 7Sy 7Sy A /
7/ g 7/ s / 7/ s / 7/ s / 7/ s 4 | | | 7V s YV / 4 / YV / YV / 7/ s / S A / ‘S, / 4
S S S Sl S A / s/ 7/, 7’/ / 7/, 7/, s/, </, s/, 77, SN S S S S SN S o
/ / / / / / / / / / / /] / / / / / /
////// LSS S S s /%3{)/ 5SS S //Zéﬁé /% o /A/ S S s 6:368// s /A SN g S /7// S S S S S S S A S
// VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV I | | |
/ 7 J/)IVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV
/ VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV
7 / fFVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVYVVVVYVY | |
/ / /VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV
7 / FVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVY \%
// N, yvvvVVVVVVVVVVVVvVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV Vvvv | |
// VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV vvVvv
, g / / VVVVVVVVVVVvVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV VVVV \ | |
/ FVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV vvv T f T T T T T T T T T
yVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV vv | / | | | | | | | | | | |
VvVvVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV VV VVVV —X
/JIVVVVVVVVVVVYVV vv /(| | | | | | | | | | | |
MAAAAAAA AL/ @vv vy 7, ZL LI LT
MAAASARAR . P8 F S ) ALITLIT T[] ]
MAAAAAARAV AL - ) ZL I LI
S [TITTTITTTTITITIT]
AAAAI AL ~ ZILLI LTI
vvvv vVVvy
o [TT T T T T I T TTTTTITTT]
SOPAE R N I I oy
SZaAA N HEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEN
S/ — — HEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE
P v
PLANTING SCHEDULE
| % A1 1 nr.2m high Quercus ilex + 12 nr.
Agapanthus
/ | S
s A2 1 nr.1.5m high ThUja. ochentalls
Sy ‘columna’ +12 nr. Kniphofia
/
oy A3 1 Nr. 2m high Gleditsia 'sunburst' + 12
g /// nr.Kniphofia
(©)) 7S A
2 0 ] A4 1 nr.2m high Quercus ilex + 12 nr.
© LN Agapanthus
7/ s . o
//// g A5 1 Nr. 2m high Gleditsia 'sunburst' + 12
g . .
s nr. Kniphofia
7 /S g . .
o y A6 1 nr.2m high Quercus ilex + 12 nr.
7 // / Juniperus Horizontalis
/ . . . .
N A7 1 nr. 1.5m high Thuja occidentalis
VN 'columna’ +12 nr. Agapanthus
S s
PG A8 1 Nr.2m high Gleditsia 'sunburst' + 12
s nr. Juniperus Horizontalis
/ v
7/ g AAAA A9 1 nr. 2m high Quercus ilex + 12 nr.
s g AAAAAAAL Juniperus Horizontalis
// VVVVVVVV 9
N YTV YTV A10, 1 nr. Taxus baccarat pyramid 180cm
/ N py
N 2AAAAAAAAAAASAAAA A11, 1 nr. Taxus baccarat sphere 60cm
// / [ SAAASAAAASAAAS AMAAS \ 4 A12 1 nr. Taxus baccarat pyramid 180cm
y / / AN VVVVVVVVVVVVVVV vvvyVvyVvyv )
/ VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV
/ / ™ VVVVVVVVVVYVVVVVV vvvvvvyvy
/ / VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV vVvVvvVvvvVVYV v
/ . VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVYVV
V2 7 / VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVYV vVvVvvVvvvVVYV vv
/ VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVYV vvvvvvyvy vvyv
/ / ™ VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVYV
7 / / VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV vvvvvvyvy vvvVvyVvyvy
/ / VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVYV vVvVvvVvvvVVYV vvvyvvyv
/ v VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV
/ v / VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVYV vVvVvvVvvvVVYV vVVvVvVvvVvvVVVYV
s VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVYV vvvvvvyvy VvVVvVvVvvVvVVVYV STATUSI CONSTRUCTION
/ / / VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVYV n
/ VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV AR ARVAR VAR VAR VAR V4 VVVVVVVVVV
., / g / - / v VVVVVVVVVvVvVvVvVvVVVVVVVvVVVvVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV VVVVVVVVVVVVVVV VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV v P ROJ ECT STAG E : D RAWN BY: C H KE D BY
// / > VV VVVVVVVVVvVvVvVvVVVVVVVVVVVVVvVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV VVVVVVVVVVVVVV VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV v RIBA STAGE 5 RB D SK
S 7 % T TN I ST 7 CLIENT:
/ / / / / / / / / / :
// S S S A // s // s // S // s // /s // s // S Randall Watts
S s s N ¥ /S s /S s 7S s S s /S s S s ‘S s
2/, 7/, s S S NS S NS SN S S S S
s 7 e ’ ’ ’ ’ - - ~ 7 I 7 g oss s 7 PROJECT: Postcode:
‘S S | | | } S S S S Beaumont Court and Richmond House, SOS XXXX
T T T T
| PROJECT NO: DRG NO: REVISION:
| | | | ' ' ' ' 279-03-15 6084
: 1 DRAWING: REV:
| | | | Rot prd|of frarﬂ|1ework required to the %ntlre H|oof e ;
| | | | : : . Beaumont
TV P roj|ecti on | | area and is to be fixed to the perimeter wall
1:50 @ A1
I

K BUILDER INFORMATION:

DO NOT BUILD FROM ANY DRAWINGS PACKAGES THAT DO NOT SAY, BUILDING\
CONTROL APPROVED OR IN CONSTRUCTION PACKAGES.

IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BUILDER TO CONTACT THE ARCHITECT TO
REQUEST/CONFIRM THE RIGHT DRAWING PACKAGE IS ON SITE. PLEASE BE
ADVISED THAT ALL DRAWING PACKAGES WILL ALSO HAVE STRUCTURAL
ENGINEERING WORKS ATTACHED. DO NOT BUILD WITHOUT ALL PAPERWORK

DRAWING NOTES:

ALL ITEMS, NOTES, DIMENSIONS AND GENERAL DESIGN CONTAINED IN THIS
DRAWING ARE FOR GUIDANCE PURPOSES ONLY. NOMINATED BUILDER AND
PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PROJECT SHOULD MAKE A THOROUGH CHECK
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORKS AGAINST SITE, DRAINAGE SERVICE
DRAWINGS, CURRENT BUILDING REGULATIONS, BRITISH STANDARDS AND

CODES OF PRACTICE. FAILURE TO DO SO WILL BE AT THE LIABILITY OF THE
BUILDER/CONTRACTOR NOT THE ARCHITECT
THE CONTRACTOR IS TO ALLOW WITHIN THEIR PRICE FOR ALL ITEMS NOT
LISTED BUT THAT WILL BE REQUIRED TO COMPLETE THE WORK IN
K ACCORDANCE WITH ALL CURRENT LEGISLATION. J

853-855 London Road Tel: 01702 509250

Westcliff On Sea

Essex SS0 9SZ E-mail: info@skarchitects.co.uk



AutoCAD SHX Text_536
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
SVP


This page is intentionally left blank



Patio

ROV
fan

RG

RG

RG

ROOF PLAN 1:200

RG = ROOF GARDENS AT FLOOR LEVEL 1

Client: Stage: Drawing no:

Randall Watts 279-03-15-6207

Revision | Comment By Date | Project: Project no: Drawing Title:
i 279-03-15 Roof Garden Plan
NB. Beaumont & Richmond
Do not scale from this drawing. Drawing to be read in conjunction with all other issued drawings, documents and relevant Richmond House Drawn by: Revision:
consultants' information. All information on this drawing is for guidance purposes only. All dimensions must be checked 73 Victoria Avenue -
onsite. This information is subject to Building Control requirements and the requirements of all relevant statutory authorities
and service provid Southend on Sea ;
providers. _ 1 105kd by: Scale:
SKArchitects Ltd SS2 6EB I - 1:200 @ A3

2018

SKARCHITECTS

853-855 London Road
Westcliff-on-Sea
SS09szZ

Tel: 01702 509250
Email: info@skarchitects.co.uk




This page is intentionally left blank



Beaumont Court and Richmond
House



8Tl



6TT

Public square



Entrance to Beaumont Court
approved under 15/01147/NON



Amended Highways Layout



Front boundary — to be landscaped
New bus stop



Front boundary to be landscaped



Richmond House including cycle
parking



Rear of buildings



Rear internal boundary screened
by buildings



Baxter Avenue boundary



External and Undercroft cycle storage
Further cycle parking within building



Reference: 20/01146/FUL

Ward: Shoeburyness ;
Erect dwellinghouse adjacent to existing dwellinghouse;

Proposal: install two vehicular accesses onto Aylesbeare, associated
layout parking to front and rear (Amended Proposal).

Address: 15 Aylesbeare, Shoeburyness, Essex SS3 8AE

Applicant: Mr Thompson

Agent: BGA Architects

Consultation Expiry: 24.08..2020

Expiry Date: 09.10.2020

Case Officer: Scott Davison
Location Plan 0-001, Site Plan 0-002; Site Plan 0-100;
Existing Plans and Elevations 1-001; Proposed Plans and

Plan Nos: Elevations 1-100; Proposed Plans and Elevations 1-105; 3D

Views 2-002; 3D Views A4 Landscape Mono - 2-102 &
Design & Access Statement

Recommendation:

REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION

Development Control Report

Page 1 292




1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Site and Surroundings

The site contains a two storey detached dwellinghouse located on the eastern side
of the road. The application site is located at the junction of Aylesbeare and a cul-
de-sac limb. The detached dwelling has an integral projecting garage to the front of
the dwelling. To the rear of the detached dwelling are a part width single storey
conservatory and a rear garden area. The detached dwelling has a pitched roof
and with a brick external appearance. A 1.8m close boarded timber fence has
been erected to the side of the dwelling.

The surrounding area is residential in character, comprising detached and semi-
detached dwellings, of similar age, style, size and design and with a characteristic
degree of spacing and separation between properties. A number of properties in
the vicinity of the site have front extensions which integrate with original integral
projecting garages.

The site is not located within flood zones 2 or 3 and is not subject to any site
specific planning policies.

The Proposal

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a two storey dwelling
to the side of the donor dwelling. The proposed dwelling would be attached to the
donor dwelling.

The dwelling would be a two storey pitched roof house, some 6.6m high to ridge
height, 5m to eaves, 5.7m wide and 9.9m deep. The front building line would be
set some 1m behind the main front elevation of the donor dwelling and project 4m
beyond the rear building line including the 3.2m deep single storey rear projection.

The proposed dwelling would have an internal floor area of some 81.3 square
metres (sgm) with a lounge, kitchen/dining room and WC at ground floor and two
first floor bedrooms measuring some 13 sgm and 8.1sgm. Two off street parking
spaces are proposed, one to the front of the dwelling and one to the rear with
access from Aylesbeare. Each would be accessed by a new vehicle crossover.
The new accesses would require re-siting of a lamp column. A refuse store is
proposed to the rear of the dwelling and cycle store to the side. The dwelling would
have a rectangular shaped rear garden area of some 45 sqm.

The external finishing materials proposed include facing brickwork, roof tiles and
UPVC windows and doors. The plans show solar panels on the rear roofslope.

This application follows the refusal of application 20/00332/FUL; Erect dwelling on
land adjacent to 15 Aylesbeare and extend existing Vehicular Access on to
Aylesbeare. The application was refused for the following reasons:

01 The proposed development by reason of its size, design and siting would
conflict with the grain of the local area, and would be out of keeping with and
detract from the character and appearance of the site and wider locale. The
proposal is therefore unacceptable and contrary to the National Planning Policy
Framework; Core Strategy (2007) policies KPZ2 and CP4; Development
Management Document (2015) policies DM1 and DM3 and the advice contained

Development Control Report Page 2 of 12

130



within the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

02 The proposed development would, by reason of the excessive width of the
proposed vehicular crossover, be detrimental to highway and pedestrian safety.
The proposed development is therefore unacceptable and contrary to policy CP3
of the Core Strategy (2007), policies DM3 and DM15 of the Development
Management Document (2015) and the Vehicle Crossing Policy and Application
Guidance (2014).

2.6  The main differences between the proposal and the refused scheme are
e The proposed dwelling would have a single storey rear projection and would
be deeper than the refused scheme
e The proposed dwelling would have a greater floorspace (some 10 sqm)
e The position of the both vehicular crossovers has been moved from the
main road to the limb of the cul de sac
e Relocation of bin store to the rear of the dwelling
3 Relevant Planning History
3.1 20/00332/FUL. Erect dwelling on land adjacent to 15 Aylesbeare and extend
existing Vehicular Access on to Aylesbeare. Refused
4 Representation Summary
Public Consultation
4.1 Councillor Cox has called the application in for consideration by the Development
Control Committee.
4.2 A site notice was displayed and 14 neighbours were notified of the application. Ten
letters of objection have been received and they are summarised as follows:
e The proposed 2 bedroom dwelling would be out of character
e Proposed dwelling would block vision of drivers within cul-de-sac
e Proposal would result in loss of space to side of dwelling which is
characteristic of area and provides amenity space to the donor dwelling
e Proposal is overdevelopment of the site
e The proposed dwelling would impact on neighbouring amenity through loss
of light, outlook and privacy
e The proposal would not appear in keeping with surrounding area
e The proposal would result in a loss of on street parking exacerbating
existing on street parking problems and would be located close to a road
junction in an area where there is already parking problems.
¢ Building works would block access to properties in Aylesbeare
¢ No need for the development
44  [Officer Comment: Issues relating to design, character and appearance and
amenity issues have been addressed within the report. The above issues have
been taken into account in the assessment of the proposal.]
Development Control Report Page 3 of 12

131



Environmental Health

4.5  No objections subject to a construction hours condition.
Highways

4.6  Objection. It is not considered appropriate to relocate the existing lamp column.
The height of the boundary treatment could lead to visibility issues when the
vehicle crossovers are in use.

Parks

4.7 No objection subject to conditions requiring details of trees to be retained and
removed and landscaping
Essex Fire

4.8  No objections

5 Planning Policy Summary

5.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), (2019).

5.2  Core Strategy (2007) KP1 (Spatial Strategy) and KP2 (Development Principles),
CP3 (Transport and Accessibility), CP4 (Environment & Urban Renaissance) CP8
(Dwelling Provision).

5.3  Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 (Design Quality), DM2
(Low Carbon Development and Efficient Use of Resources), DM3 (Efficient and
Effective Use of Land), DM7 (Dwelling Mix, Size and Type), DM8 (Residential
Standards) and DM15 (Sustainable Transport Management).

5.4  Design & Townscape Guide (2009).

5.5  Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule

5.6  Nationally Described Space Standards (2015)

5.7  National Design Guide (2019)

5.8  Vehicle Crossing Policy and Application Guidance (2014)

6 Planning Considerations

6.1 The main considerations in the determination of this application are the principle of
the development, design and impact on the character of the area, impact on
residential amenity of neighbouring residents, the standard of accommodation for
future occupiers, traffic and highways issues, Community Infrastructure Levy
implications and whether the proposal overcomes the previous reasons for refusal

7 Appraisal
Principle of Development

71 This proposal is considered in the context of the Borough Council policies relating
to design. Also of relevance are NPPF sections 124, 127 & 130 and Core Strategy

Development Control Report Page 4 of 12

132



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

Policies KP2, CP4 and CPS8.

Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy requires that new development contributes to
economic, social, physical and environmental regeneration in a sustainable way
through securing improvements to the urban environment through quality design,
and respecting the character and scale of the existing neighbourhood. Policy CP4
requires that new development be of appropriate design and have a satisfactory
relationship with surrounding development. Policy CP8 requires that development
proposals contribute to local housing needs.

Policy CP8 of the Core Strategy identifies that the intensification of the use of land
should play a significant role in meeting the housing needs of the Southend
Borough, providing approximately 40% of the additional housing that is required to
meet the needs of the Borough. Policy CP8 also expects 80% of residential
development to be provided on previously developed land.

Policy DM3 of the Development Management Document promotes “the use of land
in a sustainable manner that responds positively to local context and does not
lead to over-intensification, which would result in undue stress on local
services, and infrastructure, including transport capacity.”

Policy DM7 states that the Council will look favourably upon the provision of family
size housing on smaller sites. Policy DM8 says that the Council seeks appropriate
flexibility and dimensions within the internal accommodation to meet the changing
needs of residents. Policy DM15 states that development will be allowed where
there is, or it can be demonstrated that there will be, physical and
environmental capacity to accommodate the type and amount of traffic generated
in a safe and sustainable manner. The Design and Townscape Guide seeks to
promote a high quality of design in new developments.

The existing site is occupied by a detached dwelling located on the eastern side of
the road. The surrounding area is characterised by residential development where
the fronts of dwellings line the street with private gardens located at the rear of the
dwellings and a residential use could be considered acceptable in this location. It
is not considered that a two storey building would appear at odds with the
established character of the area in principle and the broad principle of residential
development on the site is considered to be acceptable. However, the suitability of
the site to accommodate the dwelling as proposed should be assessed; in this
regard, other material planning considerations, including character, living
conditions, residential amenity, design and parking availability.

Design and Impact on the Character of the Area

Good design is a fundamental requirement of new development to achieve high
quality living environments. Its importance is reflected in the NPPF, in Policies KP2
and CP4 of the Core Strategy and also in Policy DM1 of the Development
Management Document. The Design and Townscape Guide also states that “the
Borough Council is committed to good design and will seek to create attractive,
high-quality living environments.”

Paragraph 124 of the NPPF stipulates one of the twelve core planning principles is
that planning should “Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development,

Development Control Report Page 5 of 12

133



7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

creates better places in which to live and work and helps make development
acceptable to communities”. Paragraph 127 of the NPPF advises that planning
policies and decisions should ensure that developments are visually attractive as a
result of good architecture, are sympathetic to local character and history, including
the surrounding built environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or
discouraging appropriate innovation or change, and create places with a high
standard of amenity for existing and future users. Paragraph 130 states;
“Permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails to take the
opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way it functions, taking into account any local design standards or style guides in
plans or supplementary planning documents.”

The importance of good design is reflected in Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy and also in Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document. These policies seek to maintain and enhance the amenities, appeal and
character of residential areas.

Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy states that new development should “respect the
character and scale of the existing neighbourhood where appropriate”. Policy CP4
of the Core Strategy requires that development proposals should “maintain and
enhance the amenities, appeal and character of residential areas, securing good
relationships with existing development, and respecting the scale and nature
of that development”.

Policy DM1 of the Development Management Document states that all
development should “add to the overall quality of the area and respect the
character of the site, its local context and surroundings in terms of its architectural
approach, height, size, scale, form, massing, density, layout, proportions, materials,
fownscape and/or landscape setting, use, and detailed design features”.

The Design and Townscape Guide confirms the commitment of the Council to good
design and that it “will seek to create attractive, high-quality living environments”
and that “proposed development [should] make a positive contribution to the local
area”. At para.64 the above guide states that development should reflect the
positive characteristics of its surroundings. Para.79 confirms the expectation that
appropriate architectural language should be used reflecting the use of the building.
Para.85 of the Guide establishes that appropriate scale, height and massing are
essential to the successful integration of new development. Para.115 of the Guide
seeks cohesive design which responds positively to local context.

Paragraph 199 of the Design and Townscape Guidance: Development of Existing
Rear and Side Gardens says: Gardens are by their nature open spaces that have
not previously been developed. Preserving gardens is as important as preserving
open space between and around dwellings, as they provide amenity space for the
dwelling, rainwater soak up areas and areas for wildlife. Paragraph 200 states:
There is a general presumption against the redevelopment of existing private
gardens especially where they are a significant part of local character. Piecemeal
development of gardens in areas of strong uniform character would disrupt the
grain of development and will be considered unacceptable.

The application site is located within a residential estate and this section of
Aylesbeare is wholly residential in character. The position and character of

Development Control Report Page 6 of 12

134



7.15

7.16

7.7

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

dwellings within the area is reasonably uniform and made up mainly of detached
and semi-detached houses of various designs. The eastern side of Aylesbeare is
defined by detached dwellings with a regular and spacious pattern of development.
They are of a similar scale with pitched roofs and a degree of cohesion is provided
by the scale of frontages, the materials including brick render and tiled roofs. To the
side of the dwelling, the open space is a characteristic feature of the Aylesbeare
street scene.

The proposed development would be a corner property set slightly behind the front
building line of the dwellings. In terms of its appearance in the street scene, the
proposed dwelling would have a pitched roof and its height, (ridge and eaves),
together with the use of traditional materials and entrance to the street (providing
an active frontage) would not be out of character in this respect however the width
of the proposed dwelling at 5.7m, although slightly wider than the refused scheme
(5.3m) would be at odds with detached dwellings in Aylesbeare that are typically
some 8.5m wide. The dwelling would have a prominent appearance in the street
scene at this road junction as it would significantly reduce the open and spacious
character of this junction with the flank elevation being some 1.1m from the back
edge of the highway pavement. The layout and arrangement of dwellings does
vary, however, in layout terms, given the strong character of this section of
Aylesbeare and that the dwelling would remove the characteristic space to the side
of the host dwelling, the provision of a two storey dwelling, as proposed, in this
location would be out of keeping with the character and at odds with the urban grain
and overall cohesion of the area. The proposal would fail to overcome the previous
reason for refusal in this regard.

The matter of materials could be dealt with as a condition of any planning
permission.

The application site is already partially hard surfaced to the front. Given that a
number of properties in the street scene are also hard surfaced to their front this
would not be out of character.

Taking into account the above, the proposal is unacceptable and contrary to policy
in those regards.

Impact on Residential Amenity.

Policy DM1 of the Development Management Document states that development
should “Protect the amenity of the site, immediate neighbours, and surrounding
area, having regard to privacy, overlooking, outlook, noise and disturbance, visual
enclosure, pollution, and daylight and sunlight.”

The proposed dwellinghouse would be attached to the flank elevation with No.15
Aylesbeare and would sit some 1m back from the front elevation of No.15 and
project a maximum of 4m beyond its main rear elevation, including the 3.2m deep
single storey rear projection, which would contain no windows in its flank elevation.
It is considered that this element of the proposal would not give rise to a loss of
outlook, light, privacy or would adversely impact upon the amenities of the host
property in terms of undue sense of enclosure and an overbearing impact.

To the rear (east) of the site are dwelling houses in Aylesbeare. No0.17 is the nearest

Development Control Report Page 7 of 12

135



7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

7.26

dwelling to the site at range of some 15m but it sits behind No.11 Aylesbeare and is
not set directly behind the proposed development. Given this distance, the dwelling
and its rear facing windows and doors are not considered to give rise to any
materially different impacts than those which presently exist nor result in any
detrimental overbearing, perceived or actual dominant impacts upon this
neighbouring property.

Directly to the rear of the dwelling, there would be a separation distance of some
30m between the proposed dwelling and dwellings to the east of the site, No’s 33 &
35 Aylesbeare. First floor rear windows are proposed for the new dwelling that
would face towards No’s 33 & 35. It is not considered that this relationship would
give rise to any detrimental overlooking or loss of privacy which would be materially
worse than the present relationship between host property and No’s 33 & 35 nor
would it have any overbearing, perceived or actual dominant impacts upon these
dwellings or result in any of loss of light.

In regard to the properties to the south of the site there would be a separation
distance of some 16m between the flank elevation of the proposed dwelling and the
front of properties in 53 & 55 Aylesbeare. The flank elevation would be blank and. it
is not considered that this this relationship would not give rise to any detrimental
overlooking or loss of privacy nor would it have any overbearing, perceived or
actual dominant impacts upon the dwellings to the south of the site or result in any
of loss of light.

To the west of application site, the nearest dwelling is No.22 Aylesbeare with a
separation distance of some 25m between the front of the proposed dwelling and
the front of No.22. Windows are proposed at first floor of the dwelling that would
face west however it is not considered that this relationship would give rise to any
detrimental overlooking or loss of privacy materially different than that the present
relationship with host property nor would it have any overbearing, perceived or
actual dominant impacts upon the dwellings to the south of the site or result in any
of loss of light. No other properties would be materially affected by the proposed
development to an extent that would justify the refusal of the application on those
grounds.

The proposal would be acceptable and policy compliant in the above regards.
Standard of Accommodation:

Paragraph 127 of the NPPF states that “Planning policies and decisions should
ensure that developments: create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible
and which promote health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for
existing and future users”. It is considered that most weight should be given to the
Technical Housing Standards that have been published by the government
including those set out below :

- Minimum property size for a 2 storey 2 bedroom (3 person bed space)
dwelling shall be 70 square metres.

Bedroom Sizes: The minimum floor area for bedrooms to be no less than
7.5m? for a single bedroom with a minimum width of 2.15m; and 11.5m? for a
double/twin bedroom with a minimum width of 2.75m or 2.55m in the case of

Development Control Report Page 8 of 12

136



7.27

7.28

7.29

7.30

7.31

7.32

a second double/twin bedroom.

Floorspace with a head height of less than 1.5 metres should not be counted
in the above calculations unless it is solely used for storage in which case
50% of that floorspace shall be counted.

Weight should also be given to the content of policy DM8 which sets out standards
in addition to the national standards including.

- Provision of internal storage

- Amenity: Suitable space should be provided for a washing machine and for
drying clothes, as well as private outdoor amenity, where feasible and
appropriate to the scheme.

- Suitable, safe cycle storage with convenient access to the street frontage.

- Refuse Facilities: Refuse stores should be located to limit the nuisance
caused by noise and smells and should be provided with a means for
cleaning, such as a water supply.

The gross internal floorspace for the dwelling and bedroom sizes would exceed the
minimum size required by the technical housing standards. All habitable rooms will
be provided with sufficient windows and openings to provide adequate light,
ventilation and outlook.

Policy DM8 states that new dwellings should make provision for usable private
outdoor amenity space for the enjoyment of intended occupiers. A 45 sq.m
amenity area for the proposed dwelling is located to the rear of the new building.
The proposed amenity space would be acceptable and policy compliant.

Facilities for refuse storage are shown to the rear of the dwelling which would be
acceptable and refuse waste could be transported to the Highway on the day of
collection. Details the refuse storage could be secured via condition.

Policy DM8 of the Development Management Document states that all new
dwellings should meet the Lifetime Homes Standards, which from the 1st October
2015 have been substituted by Building Regulation M4(2). The Design and Access
statement states that the proposal would comply with M4 (2) and would have step
free access to and from the parking space at the front of the house, to the entrance
of the house and that the W/C and private outdoor space will also be step free.
Subject to a condition requiring the development to be built in accordance with
Building Regulations M4 (2) standard no objection is therefore raised on this basis.

Subject to conditions, the proposal is therefore acceptable and policy compliant in
the above regards.

Highways and Transport Issues:

Policy DM15 states that a 2+ Bedroom Dwelling (house) should provide a minimum
of two spaces per dwelling. Policy DM15 states that “Residential vehicle parking
standards may be applied flexibly where it can be demonstrated that the
development is proposed in a sustainable location with frequent and extensive links
to public transport and/ or where the rigid application of these standards
would have a clear detrimental impact on local character and context.”

Development Control Report Page 9 of 12

137



7.33

7.34

7.35

7.36

7.37

The existing dwelling has an integral garage and hard surfaced area to the front of
the house accessed from an existing vehicle crossover. The arrangement to the
existing dwelling would remain unchanged The refused scheme would have
extended the existing crossover and the width of the new crossover was contrary to
policy and unacceptable in highway safety terms. The current plans show that the
new dwelling would have a hard surfaced area to the front of the property that
would be capable of accommodating at one vehicle and second parking space
would be provided to the rear of the application plot. The proposed crossover to
the front of the dwelling would be some 4.6.m wide and the crossover to the rear
would be 3.9m which would be policy compliant. The provision of the new
crossover would require relocation of an existing lamp column to the side of the
dwelling and there is a highway objection to this proposal as it is not considered
appropriate to relocate the existing lamp column. The Vehicle Crossing Policy and
Application Guidance states a proposed vehicle crossing must not result in the
need to remove or relocate that is considered unsafe or substandard. The
movement of the column may have a detrimental impact on the surrounding area in
the hours of darkness. Furthermore the 1.8m height of the proposed boundary
treatment would result in visibility issues for drivers using the vehicle crossovers
and for pedestrians. The proposal would therefore be detrimental to highway and
pedestrian safety and is unacceptable and contrary to policy in the above regards.

The location of the proposed vehicle crossovers would remove two on street
parking spaces within this limb of Aylesbeare. Representations received indicate
that this would exacerbate on street parking problems within Aylesbeare and that
there is a high demand for parking spaces. Dwellings on the southern side of this
limb of Aylesbeare appear to have each have two off street parking spaces in the
form of integral garage and single or double spaces to the front of the properties.
Two other dwellings within this section of Aylesbeare have a garage and a parking
space in front of the garage and it is understood that the two remaining dwellings
with no off street parking to the front have access to a parking space in a separate
parking court off Aylesbeare. On balance, given that most of the dwellings in
Aylesbeare have off street parking within the curtilage of individual properties, it is
considered that the loss of off street parking would not give rise to an unacceptable
increased demand for spaces

The submitted plans show a cycle storage facility to the side of the proposed
dwelling however limited details have been provided. The site has sufficient space
to accommodate a secure cycle parking store and the location of this could be
achieved via a condition should the proposal otherwise be deemed acceptable.

The highways and parking implications are considered unacceptable and would fail
to comply with policy in the above regards.

Sustainability

Core Strategy Policy KP2 and the Design and Townscape Guide require that 10%
of the energy needs of a new development should come from on-site renewable
resources, and also promote the minimisation of consumption of resources. No
details have been submitted to demonstrate this proposal would provide 10% of the
energy needs however there is space to provide this, e.g. PV cells on the roof
slopes which are shown on the submitted plans and it is considered this could be
required by condition should the proposal otherwise be deemed acceptable.

Development Control Report Page 10 of 12

138



7.38

7.39

8.1

01

02

Policy DM2(iv) of the Development Management Document requires all new
development to provide “water efficient design measures that limit internal water
consumption to 105 litres per person per day (Ipd) (110 Ipd when including external
water consumption). Such measures will include the use of water efficient fittings,
appliance and water recycling systems such as grey water and rainwater
harvesting.” No detailed information has been submitted but this could be achieved
by condition if the application were otherwise deemed acceptable.

Community Infrastructure Levy

This application is CIL liable. If the application had been recommended for
approval, a CIL charge would have been payable. If an appeal is lodged and
allowed the development will be CIL liable. Any revised application would also be
CIL liable.

Conclusion

Having taken all material planning considerations into account, it is found that the
proposed development would be unacceptable and contrary to the objectives of the
relevant development plan policies and guidance. The proposal would conflict with
the grain of the local area and would be out of keeping with and detract from the
character and appearance of the site and wider locale. The location of the proposed
vehicle crossovers and relationship to the boundary treatment would result in
limited visibility for vehicles exiting the site and this would be detrimental to highway
and pedestrian safety. The removal of a lamp column has not been justified and its
relocation is not considered to be acceptable. The identified harm is not
outweighed by public benefits including the proposal’s limited provision of additional
housing. For the above reasons, the proposed development is unacceptable and
fails to comply with planning policy. The application is therefore recommended for
refusal.

Recommendation
REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION for the following reasons

The proposed development by reason of its size, design and siting would
conflict with the grain of the local area and would be out of keeping with and
detract from the character and appearance of the site and wider locale. The
proposal is therefore unacceptable and contrary to the National Planning
Policy Framework; Core Strategy (2007) policies KP2 and CP4; Development
Management Document (2015) policies DM1 and DM3 and the advice
contained within the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

The proposed development would, by reason of the height of the proposed
boundary treatments and relationship to the proposed vehicular crossovers
create conditions detrimental to highway and pedestrian safety. The proposal
would also require the relocation of a light column which has not been
justified. The proposed development is therefore unacceptable and contrary
to policy CP3 of the Core Strategy (2007), policies DM3 and DM15 of the
Development Management Document (2015) and the advice contained in the
Vehicle Crossing Policy and Application Guidance (2014).

Development Control Report Page 11 of 12

139



01

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in
determining this application by identifying matters of concern with the
proposal and determining the application within a timely manner, clearly
setting out the reason(s) for refusal. The detailed analysis is set out in a
report prepared by officers. In the circumstances the proposal is not
considered to be sustainable development. The Local Planning Authority is
willing to discuss the best course of action and is also willing to provide pre-
application advice in respect of any future application for a revised
development, should the applicant wish to exercise this option in accordance
with the Council's pre-application advice service.

Informatives

Please note that this application would be liable for a payment under the
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) if planning
permission had been granted. Therefore if an appeal is lodged and
subsequently allowed, the CIL liability will be applied. Any revised application
might also be CIL liable.

Development Control Report Page 12 of 12

140



Garden
125 sgm

Site Plan - Proposed

1

Grain of built form

locally similar to
that proposed

1:200

AWAITING TOWN PLANNING APPROVAL

Reproduced from OS Plan by
permission of the ordnance survey
on behalf of her majesty's
stationery office (C) Crown
Copyright License No. LIG 0288

General Notes

Please only scale from this drawing using the
scale bar where provided,however drawings
should not be scaled to obtain critical setting
out dimensions. If no scale is provided, refer to
stated dimensions only.

Contractors are to check dimensions of all
issued drawings and to notify the Architect
immediately of any discrepancy.

All illustrated material is copyright. Unless
otherwise agreed in writing,all rights to use this
document are subject to all Architect's charges.
This document may only be used for the express
purpose and project for which it has been
created and delivered, as notified in writing by
the Architect. This document may not be
otherwise used or copied. Any unathorised use
of this document is at the user's sole risk and
without limiting the Architect's rights the user
releases and indemnifies the Architect from and
against all loss so arising.

All parties must ensure that cross referenced
drawings and specifications are checked on a
regular basis to ensure that the latest revisions
are used.

- Site Area = 447sqm

Scale 1:200
A PH 46/07/20 Cycle Store Added
Rev |By/Chk |Date Description

Chartered Practice

bg a architects w

The Gallery, The Old Gasworks, 43 Progress Road,
Leigh on Sea, Essex, SS9 5PR

01702 471057
info@bga-architects.com QC/V5
www.bga-architects.com © Copyright Reserved

BGA Architects is the trading name of Bernard Gooding Associates LLP

Client:
Propitious Day Ltd

Project Description:
Land Adjacent to 15 Aylesbeare
Shoeburyness, SS3 8AE

Drawing Title:
Site Plan - Proposed

Project No.: Dwg No.:

20-017 O_ 1 OO

Date: Drawn By: | Chk By:
26-02-2020 JS PH
Scale: Revision:

1:200 @ A3 | A




This page is intentionally left blank



(0

(@)

o 2 o - Ty
= = f= o [Yol)
0, % £ 5.8 = wes I |8 2t
£ . o - w O =5 @ - Qca - 2 O g £
WEET TS 3 JYELE 2 2 o< < |& °¢ ¢ S
€385 w= To0w8EEE T oxg gB o o 3 t & @
= o c K s € T ® Q oo e )
wn © - T £ -~ =] @ o C oo O v - [ T L
S5 80 a9 Us.ae.w.mm.vu.ataa voB — 2 3 S < X
PyEs 6% E£E£298s3<iPge 2% s & g 3 o O
R 22y WILEEL -0 CEAGR 8o - 4 S 2
sfca G658 S=-Poc8PTOLEDE foyg o © = 2] ..
To®Y EZF @< > 20529 o 8% c noog g 9 sOQ&@ g
S —_ = o — ©o = O c O = = = o o4 bt = »n m c
2589 TEEg OPTIES2FOZ8ZyE 2cs £ S 9 : g 220g |8
£ T 0@ . X & = [ = 0 .- =T O = .0 a Q) ~ 5 K]
T8o9s 908 =ELe2EEoaE8 0¥ o g boog 9 = SleT |3, 8
£ .= ¥ = - = T 3+ @@ QT '=S h~4 = 2 =3 = £ = c |2 = Q
ot £ ¥3m ¢ 13} T oL O 5.8 z x g o AT 0= |x
63826 0T CC0EgcEYS <5 BE 3 Q = ga S PR P
s 2L g o0t L=753885552TEL c o 2 o 88 g P o |§ 0 =
o 28— ¢C =05 ST 58 aTvEC o Se< v 90 e 598 89 ® Sls 5 w =
TeR4L CHe EfAgSeL2dlZoe. B0 o 2 . 92 S0l J189 % =
P — . = = Lo v > = -
§ 32382 SE£2 HLedFLeES2PSEY 2o, 8 °f 3t | ZTL | o @
8 > £ £ ° ) > 83 £ ] y
2 2332g 538 5°2E85%2%0988 ,G8 - g8 LEz e .88 | T4 I
S 652¢5 To8 (85,5508 EQ30Es Lo o & . =g 855§ 229 |wL|Z S
S gozmfg SpT SBELTEIwWeSa8Eg EL R i E = 54 See tle=s|B8L €28 N 4.8
g pe3Te £gg =Zgzroo2faofiEgy, 85353 = a 86 42 t|Ea|eX 2|0 olgS|Es
& 0mosE §2E CZcL380ufglgooy 8w o > 5 £9: Z|2olo8 |B2|T &8s 8-
6 a98%3% O2E IEs6£2:22584£e Ics 3 & £e CE: g0 |a 0 dla OJ|B—
~ AN
e
AN
Iy N
~
.
//
.
.,
s
N
7 ™~
7 AN
AN
[ h
////
N
~ AN
H /.. //
o
c
MAAIIAII AR =y
““““““““““““““““ 2
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ X
AT HH AR X
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ 1
A c
“““““““““““““““““““““ — & S
N \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ .
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ N 5| T
A B gl-
ittt hhe @
AR
\HHHHHNHHNHHNHmHHHNNNNMWNNNMNWf [ [H IHHHHHHHHHH!
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ L[ 15
A T T T T e TS HHHEHHHHHARH
GO e—— ]y | — — .
wwwwwwwwww e _—
S A e UMY _—
“““““““““““““““““““““““““““““ s - AN
IR e—— | _— \
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ u Iiglalzlsiisishslzl P - ™
HHHHHHHHHHHHAHEHHHHHHHHHHAE HHHHHHHHAAH -~
m‘H‘H‘H‘H‘H‘H‘H‘H‘H‘H‘H‘Hmmmm‘wwwwwwmmH AR HHHH / ™.
T HHHHH
el B CLN @‘ﬁm \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ \\\ __ ™
I  [HHHE N\
=t | iy -
I H H = S HHH R / .
I O | T /
[+ {mi: -
i N
. \
a AN
a <
I £ -
. ot £.
u O~ o E
| T ° ~] oo
| ) - .m @
o m 2
r [a2]
. [n] b
a | ~ g
a o \ 7
| 1
a w L .
| (=] FrrrnrT
H £ =t
H 9 e =RERR
H e T Ll ™
i £ - o
il =} T .
u © ] .
§ ] /
o ~ )
< £ | E. - £
C h o 5 ] ~ Ot I v
i S 3 £ o 3
A 2z n S 592 w
L] 1 1 m ) - '
i [ c m ~
5 L . M _ S
u =} -~
m| © © -0
Ol S S w o
r w 1T} 2 -
m | O | O w|
u L0 i=ile)
fme L& b ‘Ql-v —
- 2| .. 0| | °
x| x| I
(&) (<)
_— ™
AN
/~
7 h
A
..................... - \
AR bl /
H Lt h
HHRRHH it | h
HHHHH R HHHHA AN
[ L If [ h
Iy AN
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ I y.
““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““ ———
e ey ey N HAARAA AR AAAAAAAAAAARAAARAAAAARRA j .
__ _ et | || HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHEHHHHHHHHHHHHHH] ¥/ m
s || HHHHHHHHHHHHHHH A Gy ikslstils e > £
T I [ o g 2
O it Itilety E e £
O] it O s E°
= O e i Al | @ < 8=
iy 1 10 il 3N S 2
L] | 11111 i 0 L . O -
THARRAA A E HHHHHY H HHH [l THHHEH " o 2
“““““““““““““““““ ‘ it I \ -
| A L mﬂzw T
“““““““ H T =
RN I ot : |
HHH e R g ~
LiHHH HHH 15051z005050500su=0s0a0s0a .
EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE \\\\\\\\\\\ //
““““““ 3 .
“““““ 2t //
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ u o™ ™, “
OOONAAAAAAeeee | HHHHHHHAHRH c T~ N ~
i i R I g = 1 >~ [Z]
uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu H o UL HHHHH » o - = | = =
HHHHHH 1 = HHHHHHHHEH &S £ : £
[ = _ i < 2
| Il I s UHHHHHHHHHH c x
e i L it S w
1 | | N 1 B _
L I et el e o ®r|HHAAHAHAAH -
| ———— 1 20 OOROOHEEHEH > =}
| I Q. Q9 [¢]
|| L I T et w i
1HH? | o o o i
T bt g ¥3 1
FHHHHHE I sl= Bl = 3|~
8 - L. Y 2 .. o -
X - X - Sl

143

(&)




This page is intentionally left blank



148

General Notes

Please only scale from this drawing using the
scale bar where provided,however drawings
should not be scaled to obtain critical setting
out dimensions. If no scale is provided, refer to
stated dimensions only.

Contractors are to check dimensions of all
issued drawings and to notify the Architect
immediately of any discrepancy.

All illustrated material is copyright. Unless
otherwise agreed in writing,all rights to use this
document are subject to all Architect's
charges. This document may only be used for
the express purpose and project for which it
has been created and delivered, as notified in
writing by the Architect. This document may
not be otherwise used or copied. Any
unathorised use of this document is at the
user's sole risk and without limiting the
Architect's rights the user releases and
indemnifies the Architect from and against all
loss so arising.

i
i
I

I
i

10
10
[ ]
i

lilililalalalilalalalilil

|

Eeemee] PARTY WALL

Ui All parties must ensure that cross referenced
drawings and specifications are checked on a
regular basis to ensure that the latest revisions

are used.
@ Proposed Elevation - West @ Proposed Elevation - North Q Proposed Elevation - East Q Proposed Elevation - South
1:100 1:100 1100 1:100
Flat Roof Flat Roof we
GROUND FLOOR GIA 49
Living Room FIRST FLOOR GIA 3
21.4m?
— SECOND FLOOR GIA
W THIRD FLOOR GIA
—| & r 1 FOURTH FLOOR GIA
Bathroom’
i _ FIFTH FLOOR GIA
Bedroom 2 So[ar panel; t,O TOTAL GIA 82
8.1 me provide a minimum
: : : : : : of 10% renewable 0 1 2 3 4 5
T— energy for the —— —
development Scale 1:100
f. l _I_
~\‘r . L | Bedroom 1
Kitchen / Dining | 13.0 m?
11.7 m? —‘
N IIEEPEFL‘_
- o T o
:&l ' |
Q Ground Floor - Proposed Q First Floor - Proposed Q Roof Plan - Proposed Rev |By/Chk |Date Description
1:100 1:100 1100

bg a architects RIBA W

Chartered Practice

The Gallery, The Old Gasworks, 43 Progress Road,
Leigh on Sea, Essex, SS9 5PR

01702 471057
info@bga-architects.com QC/Vs
www.bga-architects.com © Copyright Reserved

BGA Architects is the trading name of Bernard Gooding Associates LLP

Client:
Propitious Day Ltd

Project Description:

Land Adjacent to 15 Aylesbeare
Shoeburyness, SS3 8AE
Drawing Title:

Proposed Plans & Elevations

AWAITING TOWN PLANNING APPROVAL

Project No.: Dwg No.:

20-017 1 - 1 OO

Date: Drawn By: | Chk By:
4/3/20 MP PH
Scale: Revision:

1:100 @ A2




This page is intentionally left blank



out dimensions. If no scale is provided, refer to

Please only scale from this drawing using the
stated dimensions only.

scale bar where provided,however drawings
should not be scaled to obtain critical setting

General Notes

0 — T o
— (%] —
— ] o0
S 5ef> = geos - |8 58 3
_ wo ¥ET 5@ - Scy g g ¢ 2
R 88 BELE 2 2 £ oS < |& SR o
5= m.m.s.m..mﬁ.m t2vg ammm - © en B % 2 @
0 O = + [ >0 % £ = k7 i 5 T w ~
€% L2885 EC 0wy 83 5 3 g < 5=
22, EBEx2833:£8F 458 s £ g oF
c £ > £ cH 09T gE o o - < 2 &
QO+ 0 wumowm.aenm»m%m mmnm 5 2 ©m o 5..
E>5 oI >gr.2a8a5=79go ©®5 wo@ © @© eI
.I.Im Ouwl.arehow.trr = ¢ e m e a 3 m |0 o <
d..n.v.e Cnﬂ.qmp.WTcour” |anana - g B~} < 1%} @ [%] oOlZzT—|¢c .9
¥E€5 2E0-006,5T°28% =25 -~ o £ BN © < Blaw | |2 |2
902 FTELGETRgexr3dl LR w - 2 s ] g x| 3|3 0|3
S50 £39goe2Bsse= 395 2 3 8 'S &% z I3 AT afe
o c. b ] - 3] vk g z = =5 > g w© w
oz T=EF38e55:T= c o 2 2 w . o B £ ¥ - - 0
S ] 3] 6 20C g G 9 3 B > T &5 S5 = 2l 9 & =
egf EFROERBx838E7 . 58 i % g - o P 5 %% 88 E| Slges| G <
— . 2 = L e Y = AN
a.mw. dorom.wpa.m.mu.w.m.ummb So o s % 8 H " a o3 ot 2 WNM$em ©
P22 a0 catT0T 508G Ec3 . E 3 < R 22 3 Olp S ol= o | o
5290 BHowEmooLloeveBd 4,08 ® o 2 o S x sd NS5E 3% c|iE ] S
€68 £85,0caEEoBES fSgfo & 3 g E & s &52 £ 2105 2/L 32 S
K 2 = = - ] o - o T G
So8 83c8S8weo08Eo EL5Q 3 S 3 ° 5 e 3 g@ Sh tluo|823|E 88 N a8
E8g Zgg3FeoE8gvEs, 8333 5 i 3 £ 3 E 7 N 88 g7 £|52|&2g|3 2% 2lEORT
Q@ =S o0228c8c8LByg =8 po w5 2 s = & o 3 s f9: 2 20|1952/B 09 L858
2 € < c 0 ') © @ o 2 = = 4 B © o e
O2E Qo oOoxL£3c3533AQLEL AT s = - = < G | o 3 & =9 SE: 10aja w0 o | OV VT

TVAOUddY ONINNVId NMOL ONILIVMV

et e T e |
% A
7 L
» T ol
¢ PR S
P Py -
{ (70w P.w
Ul sy
e |
a
M ﬁ\)}a\..J Bl L~
L

- 100

1

Roof Plan - Proposed

=)

9

T
PARTY WALL

]

AN / .EI nm _
2 " — S
E S - £.
/ o O £ 1
L o ® o
i % ....\|| .vuu 2] _
[T]
_\ m
a—

OO OO OO OO OO T
.

Landing
1.4m?

HHHHHHHHHHHRHHHH] HHH] Ly |_,l i -
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ - UL m " — _
“““““““““““““““““““““ Il Ly il o} . |
A G ) R /]
iy i i il m\ o A i : _ n
I I HHH] Hl T %,W_ . s
il iannnn il f ko) > B! A Y papelddn nem Aed suisixg
nm HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH v o .JJ 7 |
HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH L 1 I
- d HMHHAHHRHHAHHHARHHAAHHRHAARHHHHH 2 2] ] ﬁ];
i ._‘vxw...f._vantxr._w.»xrn.u..r..x....f.«xzr..,rnrn.xrxf..ﬁwn.....r 1 I O . A e < - a/
_ THHHHHHHHHHHH! Armml.r..x.r.r.;ﬂuw.w.m THHHHH ! %. M Nw \W;W o ._ At
C HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHE u = J e b |
HHAHHA AR A AR AR o \ X\ o J 4 |
" HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHEHT HUHHHUHULUL 'l 1 N
; THHH HHH HIHHHH HHH ww HHHI i _N P S _ i)
[ HHHHHHHHHHHHHH Wi HHHHH o 1J HU 3 i W 7
HHHHHHHH] 1 HHHH H d . L
i HHHHHHEHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH 1 o S5 ._ gy
£ - ..M.H,r”.,.,uLW THHHT THHHHH H1 1 H,r..,r HHH] ” ,\/)ﬂ\r..._ B L~ 3 .«%
MY b il Iy e
1...H.__r._.r ...1...Y 1 THHAR HH. 1H H
HHIHHHHH) ] H] «
ﬁ ! ! 1 il
I _ il |

£ £
S 3 |ﬁ
—~ | .. N S id d
1 1 i)
__ v c c _H 3
m .0 .0 ! 3
] C - - i °
_ g g ﬁ 5
3 9 3 o
w w _ | “
i iE ° T 8
n (@} (@} e}
H 8lo 4ke) \ Lo
d QT o T | vl
= o) [ _ =
ey el - =
o o ic

()
(&)
(&

@ [ENNEEENN] x_._x_._.._.l_._‘qv‘q.‘:_vfﬁ.‘v F./ .. m W "
0 ) St
2 / o [N &A
n_Q.W .______ © 10 & w . | /m/
g G oy | « e
E (]
o i = -
O T pd
_ T M _/

—

m
qra ___A

i

— N

_ papesddn 1em Aled 3uiisixg

AMU e O )

2 ~

7 aa s 7
Mv _\_vw .M.xv r\\nu _.r,(\r»
) & <Y &
v AL AT
G o1 4
1 3 W& 7

=
\.ﬂ\)\m_‘._\_ ~ L .

1S

=
c
o) T P
n © {
> Lo E
O © N /
k7] T 4 O~ L =
(] - % _
W QQ.W i N
1 o 1 rJ w
c o c b
8 ] 8 o
ks o ks )
> > -
k] k] a
I1] (1T} 1
ki ki 5
@S @S | S
o [o R TS
Q. Q.
N o= < 218
sl &l 3=
ol --
=
Gq‘

O
(o)

(s

147




This page is intentionally left blank



67T

(HHHHHARHH
-

o

i

m

|‘|i

\!

il

HH]

7

=

i
L

i
HHH

i
E{EJI

@ 3D View - Front

T
T
ity
iyt

|
i
"

{}
1
L

1
W
I

!

=

S

F P

@ 3D View - Rear

AWATING TOWN PLANNING APPROVAL

General Notes

Please only scale from this drawing using the
scale bar where provided,however drawings
should not be scaled to obtain critical setting
out dimensions. If no scale is provided, refer to
stated dimensions only.

Contractors are to check dimensions of all
issued drawings and to notify the Architect
immediately of any discrepancy.

Allillustrated material is copyright. Unless
otherwise agreed in writing,all rights to use this
document are subject to all Architect's
charges. This document may only be used for
the express purpose and project for which it
has been created and delivered, as notified in
writing by the Architect. This document may
not be otherwise used or copied. Any
unathorised use of this document is at the
user's sole risk and without limiting the
Architect's rights the user releases and
indemnifies the Architect from and against all
loss so arising.

All parties must ensure that cross referenced
drawings and specifications are checked on a
regular basis to ensure that the latest revisions
are used.

Rev |By/Chk |Date Description

D QA wenieree: RIBASE

Chartered Practice

The Gallery, The Old Gasworks, 43 Progress Road,
Leigh on Sea, Essex, SS9 5PR

01702 471057
info@bga-architects.com QC/V5
www.bga-architects.com © Copyright Reserved

BGA Architects is the trading name of Bernard Gooding Associates LLP

Client:
Propitious Day Ltd

Project Description:
15 Aylesbeare Shoeburyness, SS3 8AE

Drawing Title:
3D Views
Project No.: Dwg No.:
20-017 2 - OO 2
Date: Drawn By: | Chk By:
26-02-2020 MP RR
Scale: Revision:
@ A3




This page is intentionally left blank



General Notes

Please only scale from this drawing using the
scale bar where provided,however drawings
should not be scaled to obtain critical setting

- Il out dimensions. If no scale is provided, refer to
] - -
@ 1 stated dimensions only.
E:::Jj D Contractors are to check dimensions of all
issued drawings and to notify the Architect
|:| |:| D immediately of any discrepancy.
E =1
===

Allillustrated material is copyright. Unless
' \tzw of 5
‘ I L I I

otherwise agreed in writing,all rights to use this
document are subject to all Architect's
charges. This document may only be used for

I the express purpose and project for which it

: has been created and delivered, as notified in
T writing by the Architect. This document may
: not be otherwise used or copied. Any
unathorised use of this document is at the

i

|

C o

___————_____#I ] : . user's sole risk and without limiting the
——————— g o ] Architect's rights the user releases and
e — | indemnifies the Architect from and against all
. " loss so arising.
L — I : All parties must ensure that cross referenced
B o drawings and specifications are checked on a
regular basis to ensure that the latest revisions
| L are used.

@ 3D View - Front

16T

Rev |By/Chk |Date Description

b g d avenitects RIBA #¥

Chartered Practice

The Gallery, The Old Gasworks, 43 Progress Road,
Leigh on Sea, Essex, SS9 5PR

01702 471057
info@bga-architects.com QC/V5
www.bga-architects.com © Copyright Reserved

BGA Architects is the trading name of Bernard Gooding Associates LLP

Client:
Propitious Day Ltd

Project Description:
Land Adjacent to 15 Aylesbeare
Shoeburyness, SS3 8AE

i
AWAITING TOWN PLANNING APPROVAL

Drawing Title:
3D Views
Project No.: Dwg No.:
3D View - R 20-017 2-102
@ lew - Rear Date: Drawn By: | Chk By:
26-02-2020 JS PH
Scale: Revision:
@ A3




This page is intentionally left blank



15 Aylesbeare

20/01146/FUL



Application site No.15



Application site No.15



Looking south along Aylesbeare



No.15 - Application site



Flank Elevation No.15 &
Application site



55 Aylesbeare
— opposite application site



Application site from rear



T9T

Rear elevation — application site



17 Aylesbeare — neighbour to east of
Site



Southern side of Aylesbeare 47 - 55



22, 20, 18 Aylesbeare
Opposite application site - west



11 Aylesbeare



Eastern side of Aylesbeare 9 - 1



Reference:

20/01018/FULH

West Leigh 8

Ward:

Proposal: Raise roof height and erect roof extension, erect front and rear
extension at first floor level, convert loft into habitable
accommodation with dormer windows to front and side, install
balconies to rear at first floor level and second floor level with
bi-fold doors, rooflights to side elevation, alterations to front
and rear elevations and alter bay window to first floor at rear
(Amended Proposal) (Part Retrospective).

Address: 115 Tattersall Gardens, Leigh-On-Sea, Essex, SS9 2QZ

Applicant: Mr J Moore

Agent: N/A

Consultation Expiry: 24.08.2020

Expiry Date: 09.10.2020

Case Officer: Scott Davison

Plan Nos: 1200 010 Revision E & 1200 012 Revision J

Recommendation:

GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to conditions

Development Control Report

Tz

2 =
48.2m
MARNE CLOSE

1z

187 150, 148

—43.6m
MARINE PARADE

167




1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

Site and Surroundings

The application site is the most southerly house on the western side of Tattersall
Gardens and is located some 50 metres north of its junction with Marine Parade. It
is a detached house with a large rear garden with several outbuildings, decking
and patio areas. The rear garden is bordered on each side by neighbouring
gardens, 113 Tattersall Gardens to the north and 164, 165 & 166 Marine Parade,
to the south. Tattersall Gardens is located within a residential area and slopes
down from north to south. To the rear (west) there are views towards Hadleigh
Country Park and Hadleigh Castle and the ground level also drops away at the
rear of the dwelling.

The site is not the subject of any site specific planning policies.
The Proposal

The application seeks planning permission for material alterations and extensions
to the application property. There is a current enforcement investigation concerning
the application property and this scheme has been submitted retrospectively to
address deviations from the approved scheme 18/01234/FULH which was allowed
on appeal by the Planning Inspectorate and has been built out but not fully in
accordance with the approved plans. A copy of that appeal decision is attached as
Appendix 1. There are also two new rooflights proposed.

The different elements of the application are set out below.

e Change to the rooflights in the south facing and north facing roof slopes
(retrospective). One larger roof light has been installed in the south facing
roof slope instead of the two roof lights shown on the approved scheme.
The roof light on the north facing slope has been installed in a different
positon to that shown on the approved scheme.

¢ New square rooflight on south facing roof slope (Proposed).

e New rooflight window on rear gabled projection south facing roof slope.
(Retrospective)

e Change to the rear facing bi-fold doors in the 2nd Floor rear elevation to a
two door arrangement from a three door arrangement (Retrospective)

¢ Change in design and size of the glazing in the bay window in the first floor
rear elevation from panelled bay window to a larger single large glazed
panel window and increase in vertical height of windows by some 0.8m
(Retrospective)

e Reduction in the size of the window in first floor front elevation above the
garage and change to a 2 panel window from a 3 panel window
(Retrospective).

e Change in the materials to the front elevation above the garage to hanging
tile cladding from herringbone facing brick design (Retrospective)

Development Control Report 168



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.1

e Alteration to the roof on the south facing roofslope with a catslide section
above the two bay windows (Retrospective)

e |Installation of black band feature on the south facing elevation above two
bay windows and below catslide section (Retrospective)

e Replace existing rooflight with new larger rectangular rooflight window on
front gabled projection south facing roof slope. (Proposed).

Relevant Planning History

20/00760/FULH Erect first floor rear extension and extend balcony to rear-
Permission granted.

19/01443/AD Application for approval of details pursuant to condition 4 (details of
Obscure Glazing) and 5 (Details of Privacy Screens) of planning permission
18/01234/FULH allowed on appeal 11/01/19. Details Agreed.

18/01234/FULH. Raise roof height and erect roof extension, erect two storey front
extensions, rear extension at first floor level, install balconies to rear at first and
second floor, convert part of existing garage into habitable accommodation and
alter elevations (Amended Proposal). Refused — Allowed on appeal Ref:
APP/D1590/D/18/3217734.

17/02071/FULH: Raise roof height, erect two storey front extension, rear extension
at first floor level, install balconies to rear at first and second floor, convert part of
existing garage into habitable accommodation and alter elevations — Application
Refused

16/01868/FULH: Erect decking to rear and Bamboo fences to both side boundaries
(Retrospective) - Permission granted

Enforcement History

On 7th March 2012, the Council served an Enforcement Notice. The breach of
planning control alleged in the notice was the erection of a single storey rear
extension including a balcony at first floor level. On 17th August 2012, two appeals
against the enforcement notice (Ref: APP/D1590/C/12/2173815/6) were dismissed
and the notice was upheld. The requirements of the notice were subsequently
complied with.

Representation Summary
Public Consultation
7 neighbouring properties were notified of the application. 6 letters of

representation have been received from 3 parties, which object on the following
grounds:

e A previous enforcement notice was upheld and an appeal dismissed in
relation to a single storey rear extension and first floor balcony in 2012.

Development Control Report 169



4.3

4.4

The dwelling is used as an AirBNB property.

The proposed development does not reflect the scheme approved under
permission 18/01234/FULH.

The proposed development would result in material harm to neighbouring
residential amenity including from overlooking, loss of privacy and noise
disturbance.

The larger roof light in the south facing elevation opens and, allows views
over neighbouring properties resulting in overlooking, loss of privacy and
noise disturbance.

The larger bay window allows views over neighbouring properties resulting
in overlooking, loss of privacy and noise disturbance

The band above the windows in the south facing elevation has not been
built in matching materials.

The hanging tiles above the garage on the front facing elevation have not
been built in matching materials.

The rooflight in the north facing elevation has not been finished in obscure
glazing.

The roof shape different to the approved scheme.

The proposed development is not in accordance with previously approved
application and applicant has breached planning conditions

The proposed development would hinder the ability of neighbouring
residents in Tattersall Gardens and Marine Parade in enjoying their rear
gardens.

The application potentially invokes the Human Rights Act in regard to Article
6 (the right to a fair trial or hearing), Article 8 (Right to respect for private
and family life, home and correspondence),) and Article 1 of Protocol 1
(Right to peaceful enjoyment of possessions and protection of property).

[Officer Comment: The concerns raised are noted and have been taken into
account in the assessment of the proposal but have not been found to justify
refusal of planning permission in the circumstances of this case].

Councillor Evans has called the application in for consideration by the
Development Control Committee.

Highways

No objections

Development Control Report 170



5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

Planning Policy Summary
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019)

Core Strategy (2007) Polices KP2 (Spatial Strategy) CP3 (Transport and
Accessibility) and CP4 (Development Principles)

Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 (Design Quality) and
DM3 (Efficient and Effective Use of Land) & DM15 (Sustainable Transport
Management).

Design and Townscape Guide (2009)
Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule (2015)
Planning Considerations

The key considerations in relation to this application are the principle of the
development, the design and impact on the character of the area, traffic and
parking implications, the impact on residential amenity and CIL implications. The
basis of previous decisions, irrespective of the eventual outcome of the
applications in question, carry significant weight in the determination of this
application as the site circumstances and relevant planning policy context have not
changed significantly in the interim.

Appraisal
Principle of Development

This proposal is considered in the context of the NPPF and Core Strategy Policies
KP2 and CP4. Also of relevance is Development Management Document policy
DM1 which relates to design quality. These policies and guidance support
extensions to properties in most cases but require that such alterations and
extensions respect the existing character and appearance of the building. Subject
to detailed considerations, and consistent with the basis of previous application
decisions for the site, extensions to the property are considered to be acceptable in
principle.

Design and Impact on the Character of the Area:

The importance of good design is reflected in policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy and also in Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document. These policies seek to maintain and enhance the amenities, appeal
and character of residential areas. The Design and Townscape Guide also states
that “the Borough Council is committed to good design and will seek to create
attractive, high-quality living environments”.

In Paragraph 124 of the NPPF, it is stated that “Good design is a key aspect of
sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps
make development acceptable to communities”. Policy DM1 of the Development
Management Document states that all development should; “add to the detailed
design features.”

Development Control Report 171



7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

Policy DM3 (5) also advises that; ‘Alterations and additions to a building will be
expected to make a positive contribution to the character of the original building
and the surrounding area through:

(i) The use of materials and detailing that draws reference from, and where
appropriate enhances, the original building, and ensures successful integration
with it; and

(i) Adopting a scale that is respectful and subservient to that of the original
building and surrounding area; and

(iii) Where alternative materials and detailing to those of the prevailing character of
the area are proposed, the Council will look favourably upon proposals that
demonstrate high levels of innovative and sustainable design that positively
enhances the character of the original building or surrounding area.’

The application is part retrospective and includes number of alterations to the
extended dwelling. These include changes to the size and position of rooflights in
the south facing and north facing roof slopes and the introduction of new roof
lights. Other changes include an extension to the south facing roof slope, changes
to the external south facing side elevations and detailing of the front extension and
changes to the fenestration to the front and rear elevations. In this case, the 2018
permission granted on appeal was found acceptable by the Inspector at that time,
based on its individual merits. The Local Planning Authority should similarly assess
the current proposal on its individual merits, taking into account any factors of
material weight to the appeal decision or other previous planning decisions made
for this site.

The roof light on the north facing slope has been installed in a different positon to
that shown on the approved scheme. It is a smaller window and set at a materially
lower level and closer to the approved dormer. It is not considered to be materially
out of character with the approved features on the dwelling found acceptable by
the Inspector and the impact of the development on design and character is
considered acceptable.

On the front roof elevation, the first floor window above the garage has been
reduced in width the arrangement of windows in the opening changed from three
panels to two and the window is a casement. The header above the garage has
been changed from brick to render. It is proposed to install a larger roof light on the
south facing slope of the front projecting gable feature. Hanging tile cladding has
been installed to the front elevation of the extension. The gable end of the front
projection has been extended down to meet the top of the first floor bay window.
Whilst the changes to hanging tile from the approved herringbone pattern is
regrettable given that it would have replicated the detailing to the front bay,
hanging tile cladding is evident on dwellings in the street scene and on balance, it
would not appear out of character within the dwelling and street scene. It is not
considered that the proposed roof light and changes to the fenestration or gable
are materially out of character with the approved features on the dwelling found
acceptable by the Inspector and the impact of the development on design and
character is considered acceptable.

Development Control Report 172



7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

On the south facing side elevation, on the main roof slope a single roof light has
been installed and a further smaller rooflight is proposed. The approved scheme
contained two matching roof lights and whilst the single roof light is larger and in a
different position on the roof slope, on balance, it would not appear out of character
within the dwelling and street scene and nor would the proposed rooflight. The roof
form has been changed with a catslide roof section and a “black band” section
directly below the eaves. These elements are located above a pair of side facing
bay windows. It is considered that these features are contained within the built
general parameters of the dwelling and from wider views to the south and east of
the site these elements of the development are contained within the backdrop of
the approved extended building. A roof light has installed on the south facing slope
of the rear roof extension at second floor level and it would not appear materially out
of character with the approved features. The impact of the extended roof and bay
are not materially out of character with the approved features on the dwelling found
acceptable by the Inspector and the impact of the development on design and
character is considered acceptable.

To the rear elevation, the changes to the first floor rear bay window would result in
an increase in the height of the window and is modestly scaled. The window would
have a contemporary appearance and would not project any further rearwards than
the former bay window, but would be higher overall, finishing at the same level of
the second floor balcony. The approved scheme ref; 18/01234/FULH included rear
facing doors and window openings at second floor level and the development as
constructed has resulted in a reduction from three doors to two doors. From wider
views across farmland to the west these elements of the development are
contained within the backdrop of the approved extended building. Attaching
significant weight to the basis of the appeal decision it is considered that the
changes to rear elevation would not add materially to the built form of the dwelling
nor be materially out of character with the approved features on the dwelling found
acceptable by the Inspector. The impact of the development on design and
character is therefore considered to be acceptable and policy compliant on
balance.

The development is considered to be acceptable and policy compliant in the above
regards.

Impact on Residential Amenity:

Paragraph 127 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that Planning
policies and decisions should ensure that developments create places that are
safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and well-being, with a
high standard of amenity for existing and future users.

Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy seeks to secure improvements to the urban
environment through quality design and states new development should; “respect
the character and scale of the existing neighbourhood where appropriate”. Policy
CP4 of the Core Strategy seeks to maintain and enhance the amenities, appeal
and character of residential areas. It requires that development proposals should;
“‘maintain and enhance the amenities, appeal and character of residential areas,
securing good relationships with existing development, and respecting the
scale and nature of that development”

Development Control Report 173



7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

717

Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document seeks to
support sustainable development “which is appropriate in its setting, and that
protects the amenity of the site, immediate neighbours, and surrounding area,
having regard to matters including privacy, overlooking, outlook, noise and
disturbance, sense of enclosure/overbearing relationship, pollution, daylight and
sunlight’.

Paragraph 343 (Alterations and Additions to Existing Residential Buildings) of The
Design and Townscape Guide states that “extensions must respect the amenity of
neighbouring buildings and ensure not to adversely affect light, outlook or privacy
of the habitable rooms in adjacent properties”.

Because of the topography of the area, the application property is set at a
materially higher level than the dwellings in Marine Parade. The existing two storey
southern flank elevation is set 0.7m off the shared boundary and is a visible feature
in the street scene of Tattersall Gardens & Marine Parade and the rear garden
environment of 164 and 165 Marine Parade. The proposed alterations would not
increase the size and form of the dwelling closer to the shared boundary.

The southern facing flank elevation includes an additional catslide section to the
roof changing the shape of the roof. A black coloured band has been installed
directly above two existing bay windows. A larger rooflight window has been
installed in the roof slope and a new smaller roof light is proposed. Attaching
significant weight to the Inspector’s findings it is considered, on balance, that the
changes to the roof form, the rooflights and black band above the side facing bay
windows would not cause any material harm to neighbour amenity through any
loss of light, outlook, overshadowing or sense of enclosure. It is not considered
that the rooflights would result in any materially harmful overlooking of rear
elevations and garden areas of neighbouring occupiers to the south of the site in
Marine Parade than that which already exists nor would it result in additional noise
and disturbance to neighbouring dwellings.

In the rear elevation, the vertical height of the first floor bay window has been
increased by some 0.8m and the rear facing glazed panels have been replaced by
a single large window. The top of the bay is at the same level of the second floor
balcony which gives rise to potential concerns about increasing the size of the
balcony. Subject to a condition preventing the use of the roof of the bay as an
extension to the second floor balcony, it is not considered that this element of the
scheme would give rise to materially harmful impacts on neighbouring occupiers.
The approved scheme ref; 18/01234/FULH included a rear balcony and a rear
facing door openings at second floor level. The arrangement of bi-folding doors in
the second floor has been reduced from three doors to two. A rectangular shaped
rooflight window has been installed in the south facing slope of the rear gabled
feature. It is not considered that the changes to the first floor bay window and the
arrangement of doors at second floor level would result in materially different
relationships with neighbouring dwellings than those that already exist. It is not
considered that this element of the scheme would result in any materially harmful
overlooking of rear elevations and garden areas of neighbouring occupiers to the
north or to the south of the site in Marine Parade bearing in mind the basis of
decision for 18/01234/FULH.

Development Control Report 174



7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

In the front elevation, the approved scheme ref; 18/01234/FULH included a new
first floor window in the front extension above the garage. The arrangement of
windows has been reduced from three glazed panelled window to two panels and
a fanlight. A larger rectangular shaped rooflight window is proposed to replace an
existing square shaped roof light in the south facing slope of the front gabled
feature. It is not considered that the changes to the first floor window and the
proposed larger rooflight window would result in materially different relationships
with neighbouring dwellings than those that already exist. It is not considered that
this element of the scheme would result in any materially harmful overlooking of
dwellings on the eastern side of Tattersall Gardens or the rear elevations and
garden areas of neighbouring occupiers to the to the south of the site in Marine
Parade bearing in mind the basis of decision for 18/01234/FULH.

On the north facing roof slope, a roof light window at second floor level formed part
of the approved scheme as well as dormer window. A roof light has been installed
in a different positon to that approved and is located lower on the roof slope next to
the dormer and is not obscured glazed unlike the dormer. The roof light also
opens. The Inspector considered that a subject to a condition to require obscured
glazing to prevent any overlooking of No 113, the relationship between the dormer
and No.113 would be acceptable. Given the distance between the repositioned
rooflight element of the scheme and neighbouring dwelling to the north and subject
to a similar planning condition to secure the obscure glazed window for rooflight in
perpetuity, it is not considered that it would result in any impacts on the amenity of
the immediate neighbours to the north of the site materially worse than the
relationship approved by the Inspector under ref: 18/01234/FULH in regard to loss
of privacy or overlooking.

The proposal is therefore on balance acceptable and policy compliant in the above
regards.

Traffic and Transport Issues

Policy DM15 of the Development Management Document states that new
development will only be permitted if it makes provision for off-street parking in
accordance with the adopted vehicle parking standards. For a dwelling of 2+
bedrooms, a minimum of 2 off-street parking spaces should be available. No
parking details are provided with the application. The proposal would not result in a
net loss of parking spaces nor does it result in additional demand for parking. No
objection is raised with regard to parking space provision and the proposal is
acceptable and policy compliant in this regard.

Community Infrastructure Levy

The proposed extension(s) to the property equate to less than 100sgm of new
floorspace therefore the development benefits from a Minor Development
Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as
amended) and as such no charge is payable.

Development Control Report 175



01

02

03

Conclusion

Having taken all material planning considerations into account, it is found that
subject to compliance with the attached conditions, the proposed development
would be acceptable and compliant with the objectives of the relevant development
plan policies and guidance; consistent with the basis of decision made on the
previous application and subsequent appeal, to which significant weight is
attached. The principle of the development is found to be acceptable and the
proposal would have an acceptable impact on the character and appearance of the
application site, and the streetscene more widely. On balance the proposal would
not have detrimental impact on the amenities of neighbouring occupiers subject to
the planning conditions requiring the installation of an obscure glazed window to
the second floor north facing rooflight window and preventing the new window
being openable and the use of the first floor bay window as a balcony, roof garden
or similar amenity area. There are no adverse highways implications. This
application is therefore recommended for approval subject to conditions.

Recommendation

Members are recommended to: GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to
the following conditions :

The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years
from the date of this decision.

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans: 1200 010 Revision E & 1200 012 Revision J.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with
the provisions of the Development Plan.

All new work to the outside of the building must match existing original work
in terms of the choice of materials, method of construction and finished
appearance. This applies unless differences are shown on the drawings
hereby approved or are required by conditions to this permission.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that the appearance
of the building makes a positive contribution to the character and
appearance of the area. This is as set out in the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF), Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2 and CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) policy DM1, and the advice contained in the
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Development Control Report 176



04

05

06

07

Prior to first use of the balcony shown on the plans hereby approved
obscure glazed privacy screens shall be installed to the north and south
sides of the balcony at a height of 1.7 metres above the balcony finished
floor level in accordance with details that have previously been submitted to
the local planning authority and approved in writing and these screens shall
be glazed in obscure glass (the glass to be obscure to at least Level 4 on the
Pilkington Levels of Privacy). The screens shall be permanently retained
thereafter.

Reason: To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring
residential properties, Core Strategy (2007) policy CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) policy DM1 and the advice contained in the
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Notwithstanding the details shown on the drawings submitted and otherwise
hereby approved within 4 months of the date of his decision details of a
scheme requiring the new second floor north-facing rooflight window to be
fitted with obscured glazing (the glass to be obscure to at least Level 4 on
the Pilkington Levels of Privacy) and that no part of that window which is
less than 1.7 metres above the finished floor level in the room in which it is
installed shall be capable of being opened, shall be submitted to in writing to
the local planning authority for approval. The approved scheme shall be
implemented within 3 months of the local planning authority's approval, shall
be retained thereafter in accordance with the approved details in perpetuity.

Reason: To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring
residential properties, Core Strategy (2007) policy CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) policy DM1 and the advice contained in the
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

The extensions hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the new second
floor north-facing dormer window has been fitted with obscured glazing (the
glass to be obscure to at least Level 4 on the Pilkington Levels of Privacy),
and no part that window which is less than 1.7 metres above the floor of the
room in which it is installed shall be capable of being opened. Details of the
type of obscured glazing shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority before the window is installed and once installed
the obscured glazing shall be retained thereafter in accordance with the
approved details in perpetuity.

Reason: To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring
residential properties, Core Strategy (2007) policy CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) policy DM1 and the advice contained in the
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

The roof of the first floor bay window hereby approved shall not be used as a
balcony, roof garden or similar amenity area or for any other purpose unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. The roof can
however be used for the purposes of maintenance or to escape in an
emergency.

Reason: To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring
residential properties, in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007), Policies

Development Control Report 177



10

DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015) and the
advice contained within the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in
determining this application by assessing the proposal against all material
considerations, including planning policies and any representations that
may have been received and subsequently determining to grant planning
permission in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable
development, as set out within the National Planning Policy Framework. The
detailed analysis is set out in a report on the application prepared by
officers.

Informative

01 You are advised that as the proposed extension(s) to your property
equates to less than 100sqm of new floorspace the development benefits
from a Minor Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable. See
www.southend.gov.uk/cil for further details about CIL.

02 You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during
construction works to the highway in implementing this permission, that the
Council may seek to recover the cost of repairing public highways and
footpaths from any party responsible for damaging them. This includes
damage carried out when implementing a planning permission or other
works to buildings or land. Please take care when carrying out works on or
near the public highways and footpaths in the borough.

Development Control Report 178



| @@Lﬁﬁ The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision

Site visit made on 2 January 2019

by Simon Warder MA BSc(Hons) DipUD(Dist) MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State

Decision date: 11 January 2019

Appeal Ref: APP/D1590/D/18/3217734
115 Tattersall Gardens, Leigh on Sea SS9 2QZ

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

The appeal is made by Mr J Moore against the decision of Southend on Sea Borough
Council.

The application Ref 18/01234/FULH, dated 26 June 2018, was refused by notice dated
17 September 2018.

The development proposed is described as ‘Two storey front extension with
accommodation within new raised roof.’

Decision

1.

The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted to raise the roof height
and erect roof extension, erect two storey front extension, rear extension at first
floor level, install balconies to rear at first and second floor, convert part of
existing garage into habitable accommodation and alter elevations at 115
Tattersall Gardens, Leigh on Sea SS9 2QZ in accordance with the terms of the
application, ref 18/01234/FULH, dated 26 June 2018, subject to the following
conditions:

1) The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years from
the date of this decision.

2) The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the
development hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building.

3) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: 1200/010 Rev B and 1200/012 Rev E

4) The extensions hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the new second
floor north-facing window has been fitted with obscured glazing, and no part of
that window which is less than 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which
it is installed shall be capable of being opened. Details of the type of obscured
glazing shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority before the window is installed and once installed the obscured
glazing shall be retained thereafter.

5) The development hereby permitted shall not commence until details of the
glazed screens around the new second floor balcony have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The glazed screens
shall be installed in accordance with the approved details prior to the
occupation of the extensions hereby permitted and retained in place
thereafter.

179



Appeal Decision APP/D1590/D/18/3217734

Preliminary Matter

2.

The description of development used in the application form was changed in the
Council’s decision notice and adopted in the appeal form. Since the revised
description more fully describes the proposal, I have used it in paragraph 1 above.

Main Issue

3.

The main issue is the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of
the existing dwelling and the surrounding area.

Reasons

4.

The appeal property is a substantial detached two storey dwelling. Its general
form is, therefore, typical of the area, although there are also semi-detached pairs
and some variation in the scale and appearance of the properties locally.
Tattershall Gardens slopes down towards Marine Parade and the heights of the
buildings generally fall with the road.

The appeal property has a gabled front projection, behind which the short
ridgeline of the main roof runs parallel with the road frontage. The proposal
would raise the height of the main roof by some 1.9m, bring its front slope further
forward, push its rear slope further back, and turn its ridgeline through 90°. An
existing first floor dormer would be removed and a new second floor level dormer
created in the front slope of the main roof. A new gabled projection would take
up most of the rear slope of the main roof.

The proposal would, therefore, add considerably to the height and bulk of the roof.
The front and side of the main roof would be visible in public views from Tattersall
Gardens. Nevertheless, the building would retain a reasonable degree of
articulation which would help to break up its bulk. The gabled front projection
would also remain the most prominent element in views from the road. As such, I
consider that the proposed roof form would not dominate the building. The scale
and orientation of the extended main roof would also be broadly comparable with
that of No 113. Moreover, given that No 113 is at a higher level and has a larger
roof and that there is significant gap to Nos 164 and 165 Marine Parade, I
consider that that the height of the proposed roof would not look out of place in
the street scene.

The rear projection would have a glazed gable wall with doors giving access to a
balcony surrounded by 1.7m high glazed screens. Although these elements are
not characteristic of the original design of properties in the area, the appellant has
drawn my attention to a number of examples of more recent similar features,
including a rear gable projection to 85 Tattersall Gardens and the large front gable
features on three properties in Marine Parade. Notwithstanding the size of the
proposed rear gable projection, its ridgeline and roof slopes would be set down
from the main roof. This would give it a degree of subservience to the main roof.

Moreover, with the exception a glimpsed view between Nos 164 and 165 Marine
Parade, the rear of the property is not visible in short or medium range public
views. The proposal would have a negligible effect on long range public views
from areas to the west of the farmland which borders the rear of the property.
There is nothing to suggest that the farmland itself is publicly accessible. Nor
would the alterations to rear of the property be unduly prominent in private views
from the rear of the small number of neighbouring properties.

280



Appeal Decision APP/D1590/D/18/3217734

Overall therefore, I find that the proposal would not have a harmful effect on the
character and appearance of the existing dwelling or the surrounding area. As
such, it would not conflict with Policies KP2 or CP4 of the Council’s Core Strategy
2007 or Policies DM1 or DM3 of its Development Management Document 2015.
Amongst other things, these policies require development to achieve a high
quality of design which maintains the character of residential areas and have a
good relationship with existing development in its architectural approach, height,
size, scale and form. Policy DM3 also requires alterations and additions to
buildings to respect and be subservient to the scale of the original building and
surrounding area. Nor would the proposal conflict with the design advice in the
National Planning Policy Framework. It would also comply with the advice on
balconies, rear and roof extensions in the Council’s Design and Townscape Guide
2009 Supplementary Planning Document.

Other Matters

10.

11.

12.

13.

Concern has been expressed locally that the proposal would have a harmful effect
on the living conditions of the occupiers of neighbouring dwellings to the north and
south of the appeal site. Reference has been made to two dismissed enforcement
appeals for a rear extension and balcony at the appeal property® and a
subsequent enforcement notice. Neighbouring occupiers feel distrustful of the
appellant as a result of these matters and the behaviour of builders undertaking
work at the property. However, my decision is based on the planning merits of
the current proposal.

The balcony in the enforcement appeal case was in essentially the same position
as the first floor Juliet balcony in the current appeal proposal. However, unlike
the current appeal scheme, that balcony gave external access to a flat roof area.
That area is close to the common boundary with the rear gardens of the adjoining
Marine Parade properties. Notwithstanding the then proposed 1.55m high
obscured glazed screens, the external area allowed direct views into the
neighbouring gardens. Whilst the proposed doors would be larger than the
window they would replace, they would not allow external access to the flat roof.
The view from the room they serve would be more confined and directed
rearwards in much the same way as the existing window, rather than in the
direction of the Marine Parade gardens to the side of the appeal property.
Consequently, I consider that the proposed Juliet balcony would not materially
reduce the privacy of neighbouring occupiers compared with the existing window
in that position.

The proposed second floor balcony would be enclosed by 1.7m high obscured
glazed screens. These would be sufficiently high to prevent direct views to
neighbouring properties. A condition to could be used to secure further details of
the screens. This would ensure that they would not have gaps which users of the
balcony could look through and that their appearance would be appropriate.
Whilst the balcony would be reasonably large, it would be accessed from a second
floor bedroom and, therefore, is unlikely to be used by a large number of people.
Consequently, it would be unlikely to lead to undue noise and disturbance to
neighbouring occupiers.

The proposal would increase the length of the southern flank wall of the appeal
property at first floor level and would increase the overall height and bulk of the
roof. However, the detached garage located adjacent to the southern boundary of

! Appeal references APP/D1590/C/12/2173815 and APP/D1590/C/12/2173816

181 3



Appeal Decision APP/D1590/D/18/3217734

14.

15.

16.

17.

the appeal site would provide occupiers to the south with a reasonable degree of
separation from the visual effect of increasing the length of the flank wall. The
increase in the bulk and height of the roof would slope away from the
neighbouring dwellings to the south and north. Consequently, I consider that the
proposal would not have an oppressive effect on the outlook from those
properties.

It has also been argued that the increase in the height of the roof would reduce
the sunlight reaching the solar panels installed on the roof of No 113. However, I
have already noted the slope of Tattersall Gardens. No 113 is at a higher level
than the appeal property. As such, the proposed increase in the roof height of the
appeal property would not be sufficient to significantly reduce the amount of light
reaching the solar panels. The increase in the height of the roof would adjoin the
flank wall of No 113 and, therefore, would not materially affect the amount of light
reaching the rear garden of that property.

It has also been suggested that the proposal would give rise to more windows
which could affect the privacy of the occupiers of No 113. However, the only
additional window on the north side of the appeal property would be at second
floor level and serve a landing. A condition could be used to require obscured
glazing to prevent any overlooking of No 113.

Taking all these matters into consideration, I conclude that the proposal would not
have a detrimental effect of the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers.

Concern has also been expressed that the appellant works from home and uses
the property for Air B and B lettings and that these activities put pressure on on-
street parking. However, the appeal proposal is to extend a single dwellinghouse
and there is no substantive evidence to indicate that it would lead to insufficient
parking for that purpose. Any material change of use of the property occurring as
a result of the appellant’s activities would need to be considered as a separate
matter.

Conditions

18.

19.

The Council has suggested a list of three conditions. In addition to the time limit
for commencement of development, a condition requiring the external materials
used in the development to match the existing building is necessary to safeguard
the character and appearance of the area. A condition specifying the approved
plans is necessary in the interests of certainty.

In addition, I consider that conditions to control the details of the glazed screens
around the second floor balcony and to ensure that the north-facing dormer
window is obscured glazed are necessary to protect the privacy of neighbouring
occupiers. Control of the screens around the second floor balcony is also
necessary to safeguard the character and appearance of the existing building.
The appellant and the Council were given the opportunity to comment on these
conditions.

Conclusion

20.

For the reasons set out above, the appeal should be allowed.

Stmon Warder
INSPECTOR

482



€81

This drawing is copyright and shall not be
reproduced nor used for any other purpose
without written permission of the author.

Do not scale from this drawing, use figured
dimensions only.

The drawing must be read in conjunction
with all other project related drawings and
documentation issued by the Architect and
Appointed Consultants.

It is the contractor's responsibility to ensure
compliance with the Building Regulations.

DINING

It is the contractor's responsibility to check
all dimensions on site, any discrepancy to
be reported immediately.

Details and sizes shown are indicative only
and are subject to confirmation by the
relevant Specialist contractor &
sub-contractors.

BALCONY

SITTING

BEDROOM

This drawing is not to be used for Land
Registry or sales purposes.

|

|

|

|

|

|

\

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

\

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

\

|

|

: The Author is not responsible for any
| changes to the drawings as implimented
| on site without prior approval in writing.
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
\
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
\
|
\
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
\
|
|
\

———————

KITCHEN BATHROOM

A  Site Plans added 21.11.17
77777 B Revised planning 25.06.18
GARAGE
C Revised planning 27.05.20
D Revised planning 24.06.20
E Revised planning 14.07.20

BEDROOM

LIVING ROOM BEDROOM

|/

\

L44444444444444447

1
1
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
P
|
|
|
|

Loft Plan !
N S o J
I

m areas below | 800mm head height I N B v

| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
! !
| |
! !
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
! !
| |
| |
| |
! !
| |
\ \
| |
! !
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
\ \
! !
\ \
! !
! i !
| BEDROOM _ |
| . |
| |
! !
| |
! !
| |
| |
| |
! !
| |
! !
| |
! !
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
! !
| |
! !
| |
! !
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
! !
| |
! !
| |

EXISTING PLANS L LT e ———— e ——0

A “\
- N > X =
A\ % %\i > / _ ‘§‘\ -
— % N — —
7 N \% %
%M —

| 0

A
A
A
s 4]
8%
8
N2
¥
N
s {]
%
N

— T N '
R NOSS KA
(R4 NSNS 8589 |-

iNaNaaNaNaNaNaNaNaa N a NNl

: &

Side Elevation

Front Elevation Rear Elevation Side Elevation

knight gratrix architects

suite 1

royce house
630-634 london road
westcliff on sea
essex

ss0 9hw

t 01702 715517

e mail@knightgratrix.com
w www.knightgratrix.com

TATTERSALL GARDENS

Mr J Moore

TATTERSALL GARDENS

MARINE PARADE

115 Tattersail Gardens

°
. % Existi L ti Pl 1:1250 p d Block Pl 1:500 Proposed Alterations
: xisting Focation Tian ] ropose oc an *S Existing Plans & Site Plans
1
0 20 40 60 80 100 0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40
Planning
1:50/100 nr/ mt 24.10.17

1200 010 E



This page is intentionally left blank



G8T

| [ ‘ [ '| This drawing is copyright and shall not be
\ | | | | reproduced nor used for any other purpose
| | | | without written permission of the author.
| A \ | | Do not scale from this drawing, use figured
| | | | dimensions only.
| o | e - | |
******* S \ | } } | The drawing must be read in conjunction
| | \ e gl \ \ | | with all other project related drawings and
| | } } } } | | documentation issued by the Architect and
| | \ | ! \ \ Appointed Consultants.
‘ \ \ \ \
‘ ffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffff ‘ ‘ | | | tis the contractor's responsibility to ensure
‘ \ | | | ‘ ‘ ‘ Itis th . ibili
| | | } } \ | | | compliance with the Building Regulations.
\ \
\ \
| | } \ \ } | | | It is the contractor's responsibility to check
| | ! } — } \ \ — | all dimensions on site, any discrepancy to
‘ | | L D | be reported immediately.
| ] o | | |
\ DINING | } } } } | | Details and sizes shown are indicative only
| \ | \ \ \ \ and are subject to confirmation by the
\ | | | o | | || relevant Specialist contractor &
**************************************** b-contractors.
| | ! o | |
| ‘ | \
| | } } } } | | This drawing is not to be used for Land
| \ \ | Registry or sales purposes.
| | | |
‘ ‘ \ ‘ ‘ ~on ‘ The Author is not responsible for any
\ \ changes to the drawings as implimented
on site without prior approval in writing.
| | ite with . ¥ o
\ \ BALCONY
‘ E Revision Date
‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ I . R | ‘ A Amended following client meeting 09.11.17
‘ ‘ ‘ [ ‘ B Amended to suit client comments 09.11.17
\ C Amended 6ft heights to main roof ~ 09.11.17
‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ N ‘ D Planning information added 21.11.17
N s ‘ | N S iRitanecnaacnecs: R EEEEE — - | E Revised planning 25.06.18
SITTING | é] . BEDROOM | } AR T‘ -7 F  Revised planning 27.05.20
| | \ | B NN 4 N AN ey | G Revised planning 24.06.20
‘ 5 ‘ \ [ NN \ \ P fJ ‘ H Amended to suit planners comments 26.08.20
‘ 3 ‘ } } AN X } i } Py \ J  Amended to suit planners comments 11.09.20
| | ) — | | o AN - \ o | |
2431 | N ‘ . !
‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ N | / | ‘
| | L | |
| | — | | e N N 077, T \ |
\ N N s \
‘ ‘ \ [ N [ _" | ‘
N~ — | N ‘ |
| | 5 BEDROOM | V | \ | g |
| | | AN | @ o |
[ NN ‘ [
‘ ‘ ‘ =2 ! v \ \ ‘
| | | 5NN | , o
‘ | | | } \\\\\\ } ///// \ } |
el | e !
‘ } ‘/L - ﬁj‘ AN | s -
| BATHROOM | | | | AN NN L |
| KITCHEN | | o | i NN L ‘
‘ ‘ \ } | 1 \Y/ P
K [ \
| | | | R /A l | | |
\
| GARAGE | | | o i T | | |
‘ ‘ | | |
‘ ‘ ‘ | \ \ ‘
| ‘ | ~ \
\ | | | | \ -
| | | | | | 1 |
| \
| \ | | N .
| \ Lo \ \
| © | o
| 2 |
- | 3 | - o
f | : :
I
| | BEDROOM | ] }
— \
S | | | o |
o \ \
- | . | . ‘ |
| | ] | L |
N v
: d ‘ | | } } L/
| | | | | L / |
| ! | 3641 | e
| 5 ‘ | BEDROOM | | 7 |
| m LIVING ROOM | | | | - |
| | = | i i | v o | |
e — (s I \ | | | |
| | | | | i l |
2 \ |
| | | | | | |
| | | |
| | ] ! | - .
| .~ First Floor Plan | . Loft Plan | | |
. Ground Floor Plan | ‘ | ‘ | | | |
74 \ \
| % | | @ | | m areas below | 500mm head heght L N o S i |
| | | |
*
e | ) |
\ ‘ ‘
0 1 2 3 4 5
suite 1
N royce house
A New plain clay tiles < New plain clay tiles 630-634 london road
New plan clay tiles to match existing = to match existing westcliff on sea
to match exist \
o match existing ; AN\ ; ; ; ,/// ‘\\\ New aluminium rooflights. zzze;(hw
| e | D = | | N
} [ ] ————7\ o } L = = New double glazed 1 A } X t 01702 715517
| | New | 700mm min obscure ;‘ ‘ glniows to mateh | | ‘ ‘ R New | 700mm min obscure . . .
[ —— / [ glazed screens adjacent to X XoHng [ [ [ ] \E\ glazed screens adjacent to e mail@knightgratrix.com
| / = | boundary New glazed quarding z ‘ boundary w www.knightgratrix.com
| A | to balconies - note | |
| > 4 AN | [ guarding adjacent to | ————> S = |
84 T ~ | T boundaries to be mn = | Client
| | I 700mm high
New double glazed 1 H‘ } N o to b sered obscure glass } ] } Mr \J Moore
d t tch ew walls to be rendere
vev;?st?nvés o } L] } to match existing. L] } } . Project
— A RAA NoN7 :
New timber cladqul §$§ E$§$ ! §$§$§ ! I I ! E§$§$ 1 15 Tattersall GardenS
‘ NSRS oSS | RASA | | 8589
to match existing N 1989 SN 987 _— .
} k" "&‘ } "&‘: } } Q‘&‘ — Description
— e E —
| | |- | |
New front door ¢ | T T | ‘ ‘ - |
gurage door to | A | L - | | — Proposed Alterations
matcn exis H’lg
| | | | Proposed Plans
| e | 1 |
I I f f ]
} i } ) ) 1 . } . . Status
Front Elevation Side Elevation Rear Elevation Side Elevation Planning
Scale Drawn Date
e 1507100 June 18
Job number Drawing no. Revision
0 2 4 6 8 10 1200 012 J




This page is intentionally left blank



115 Tattersall Gardens

20/01018/FULH



Front Elevation



Front Elevation — hanging tile cladding
and reconfigured window



North facing flank elevation



Northern Flank Elevation



Dormer and rooflight
in north facing elevation



Rear Elevation — first floor bay window



Side elevation- catslide roof section &
black band above bay window



Rear elevation including first floor bay
window and bi-folding doors



South facing elevations — roof lights



L6T

Flank elevation



Flank Elevation



Rear of 164/165 Marine Parade



Opposite site — Eastern side of
Tattersall Gardens



View of site between 164 & 165
Marine Parade



This page is intentionally left blank



Reference:

20/01048/FULH

Ward: Blenheim Park 9
Proposal: Erect dormers to front

Address: 1 Highwood Close, Leigh-On-Sea, Essex, SS9 4AS
Applicant: Mr K Buck

Agent: Mr Paul Seager

Consultation Expiry: 30t September 2020

Expiry Date: 8t October 2020

Case Officer: Hayley Thompson

Plan Nos:

Drawing number 01 Revision D, Drawing number 02, Drawing

number 03 Revision D

Recommendation:

GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to conditions

203




1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

3.1

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

Site and Surroundings

The application site contains a detached chalet on the western side of Highwood
Close. The application side has been previously extended with a hip to gable roof
extension and rear dormer and a rear extension.

The streetscene in Highwood Close is characterised predominantly by bungalows
and chalets of varying styles and design but similar characters. There are individual
flat roof dormer windows of modest size located to the front elevation of some of
the dwellings in the immediate streetscene of Highwood Close.

The site is not located within a designated conservation area and is not a listed
building.

Proposal

Planning permission is sought to erect two connected dormer windows to the front
elevation to form additional habitable accommodation within the extended
roofspace.

The proposed development constitutes two individual dormers which would be
connected by a shared flat roof element. The individual dormers would measure 1.4
metres high, 1.25 metres wide, would measure 1.65 metres deep with the roof
connecting the dormers set back a further 0.5cm at 1.65 metres deep. The
proposed materials are render and hanging tiles to match the existing building.
Relevant Planning History

20/00811/CLP - Single storey rear extension - Application lawful.

Representation Summary

Public

9 neighbouring properties were notified and no letters of representation have been
received at the time of writing the report.

This application is presented to the Development Control Committee, as the
applicant is a Councillor.

Planning Policy Summary

The National Planning Policy Framework (2019) (NPPF).

Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP1 (Spatial Strategy), KP2 (Development Principles
and CP4 (Environment and Urban Renaissance).

Development Management Document (2015): Policies DM1 (Design Quality), DM3

(Efficient and Effective Use of Land) and DM15 (Sustainable Transport
Management).

204



5.4

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

The Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
CIL Charging Schedule (2015).
Planning Considerations

The key considerations in relation to this application are the principle of the
development, design and impact on the character of the area, impact on residential
amenity, any traffic or transport issues and CIL (Community Infrastructure Levy)
contributions.

Appraisal
Principle of Development

The dwelling is situated within a residential area and an extension or an alteration
to the property is considered acceptable in principle, subject to the detailed
considerations discussed below.

Design and Impact on the Character of the Area

The key element within all relevant policies is that good design should be a
fundamental requirement of new development in order to achieve high quality living
environments. Its importance is reflected in the NPPF, in Policies KP2 and CP4 of
the Core Strategy and also in Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development
Management Document. The Design and Townscape Guide also states that “the
Borough Council is committed to good design and will seek to create attractive,
high-quality living environments”.

Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the
Development Management Document advocate the need for development to
secure good relationships with existing development and to respect the existing
scale. The Design and Townscape Guide states that alterations to existing buildings
with particular reference to extensions should appear subservient and must be
respectful of the scale of the present building.

Policy DM1 of the Development Management Document states that all
development should “add to the overall quality of the area and respect the character
of the site, its local context and surroundings in terms of its architectural approach,
height, size, scale, form, massing, density, layout, proportions, materials,
townscape and/or landscape setting, use, and detailed design features”.

Paragraph 366 of the Design and Townscape Guide states ‘Proposals for additional
roof accommodation within existing properties must respect the style, scale and
form of the existing roof design and the character of the wider townscape. Dormer
windows, where appropriate, should appear incidental in the roof slope (i.e. set in
from both side walls, set well below the ridgeline and well above the eaves)...Large
box style dormers should be avoided, especially where they have public impact, as
they appear bulky and unsightly. Smaller individual dormers are preferred.’

205



7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

713

The application site is set within a residential area which is host to a mix of semi-
detached and detached bungalows and chalets, some of which include examples
of individual dormer windows located to the front elevations. The proposed
extension is not identical to the other dormers in the area as it comprises two main
sections with a setback ‘connecting’ roof element. However, the extension
proposed, is small in scale and is reasonably consistent with other front dormers
within the immediate locality and would not therefore appear materially out of
keeping with the surrounding area.

In relation to the existing dwelling the proposed extension would be modest and
proportionate in size and scale and would appear incidental in the roof slope. Details
of external materials have been specified, including hanging tiles and white render.
Although the proposed render would not match the adjacent roof slope it would
correspond to the walls of the host dwelling and would not be materially harmful.

The proposal is therefore acceptable and policy compliant in the above regards.
Impact on Residential Amenity

The Design and Townscape Guide Paragraph 343; under the heading of Alterations
and Additions to Existing Residential Buildings states that amongst other criteria,
that ‘extensions must respect the amenity of neighbouring buildings and ensure not
to adversely affect light, outlook or privacy of the habitable rooms in adjacent
properties’. In addition to this Policy DM1 of the Development Management
Document also states that development should “Protect the amenity of the site,
immediate neighbours, and surrounding area, having regard to privacy,
overlooking, outlook, noise and disturbance, visual enclosure, pollution, and
daylight and sunlight.”

The proposed extension is situated within the front roof slope and does not extend
beyond the roof plane of the existing dwelling. The dormers face towards the public
domain and as such, the proposal is not considered to result in material harm to
residential amenity in any regard.

The development’s impact on residential amenity is therefore acceptable and policy
compliant.

Traffic and Transport:

Policy DM15 of the Development Management Document states that new
development will only be permitted if it makes provision for off-street parking in
accordance with the adopted vehicle parking standards. For a dwelling of 2+
bedrooms, a minimum of 2 off-street parking spaces should be available.

The development does not affect the availability of car parking spaces and does not
increase the parking requirements over and above the existing requirements. The
front driveway of the site is hardsurfaced providing at least two parking spaces. The
impact on traffic, transport and parking is therefore acceptable and policy compliant.

206



7.14

8.1

8.2

01

02

03

Community Infrastructure Levy
CIL Charging Schedule 2015

The development equates to less than 100sgm of new floorspace. As such, the
development benefits from a Minor Development Exemption under the Community
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and no charge is payable.

Conclusion

Having taken all material planning considerations into account, it is found that
subject to compliance with the attached conditions the development is acceptable
and compliant with the objectives of the relevant development plan policies and
guidance.

The development has an acceptable impact on the amenities of neighbouring
occupiers and the character and appearance of the application site, the street scene
and the locality more widely. There are no adverse highway implications. This
application is therefore recommended for approval subject to conditions.

Recommendation

MEMBERS ARE RECOMMENDED TO GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION
subject to the following conditions:

The development hereby permitted shall begin no later than three years from
the date of the decision.

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

The development shall be undertaken solely in accordance with the approved
plans: Drawing number 01 Revision D, Drawing number 02, Drawing number
03 Revision D.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
provisions of the Development Plan.

All new work to the outside of the building must match existing original work
in terms of the choice of materials, method of construction and finished
appearance. This applies unless differences are shown on the drawings
hereby approved or are required by conditions to this permission.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that the appearance
of the building makes a positive contribution to the character and appearance
of the area. This is as set out in the National Planning Policy Framework
(2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 and DM3 and the advice
contained within the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

207



01

02

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in
determining this application by assessing the proposal against all material
considerations, including planning policies and any representations that may
have been received and subsequently determining to grant planning
permission in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable
development, as set out within the National Planning Policy Framework. The
detailed analysis is set out in a report on the application prepared by officers.

Informatives

You are advised that as the proposed extension(s) or change of use to your
property equates to less than 100sqm of new floorspace, and does not involve
the creation of a new dwelling (Class C3), the development benefits from a
Minor Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable. See
www.southend.gov.uk/cil for further details about CIL.

You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek
to recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land.
Please take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and
footpaths in the borough.

208



Location Plan
' M @ Scale: 1:1250

SCALE 1:1250

Rev D 15/09/2020 Car port removed
o 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100 [M Rev C 14/09/2020 Car port reduced and dormer amended
[ ] RevB | 17/08/2020 | Car port and dormer amended
Scale: 1:500 REVISION DATE AMENDMENT

APS DESIGN ASSOCIATES LTD

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGNERS AND PLANNING CONSULTANTS
od 100 [M] PROJECT STAGE: DRAWN BY: DATE:

Town Planning A.D. September 2020
[ — | | | — | I | | | | —

CLIENT:

PROJECT:
1 Highwood Close

JOB NO: DRAWING NO: REVISION:
3032 01 D

DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING. WORK TO FIGURED DIMENSIONS

DRAWING TITLE: SCALE:
ONLY. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT OF APS DESIGNS AND Site and Location Plans 1:1250 & 1:500 @ A3
SHOULD ONLY BE REPRODUCED WITH THEIR EXPRESS PERMISSION.

The Design Studio Tel: 01702 469 769 - 01702 337328

CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. ANY DISCREPANCIES SHOULD 1 Cambridge Road (Rear) Email: admin@apsdesignsuk.com
BE REPORTED TO APS DESIGNS PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT. Nelson Street designteam@apsdesignsuk.com
Southend-On-Sea planning@apsdesignsuk.com

Essex Website: www.apsdesignsuk.com

SS11ET


AutoCAD SHX Text_539
28.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
12c

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
12b

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
HIGHWOOD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
BLENHEIM PARK CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
AVONDALE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
33.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
42a

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
42b

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
STONEHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
10b

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
STONEHILL CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
37a

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
Nursing

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
Mountdale

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
Home

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
MOUNTDALE GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
12c

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
12b

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
HIGHWOOD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
10b

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
37a

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
Mountdale

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
MOUNTDALE GARDENS


This page is intentionally left blank



TT¢



This page is intentionally left blank



€T¢

_Hanging Tiles to match

r~Render as existing roof tiles

r—Render
r~Render

— (=[] /\

— | LU

|
[ 1]

L]
L1

Scale: 1:100 Scale: 1:100

@ Proposed Front Elevation @ Proposed Right Elevation

~Render

Il

@ Proposed Rear Elevation

@ Proposed Left Elevation

Scale: 1:100 Scale: 1:100

| Dining o Breakfast \\
2000 area N
2
i Bath
Kitchen Bedroom 1 a room’_
/
I/', \\\“
N H___sho I
_ \\ “ Study
al 7] SCALE 1:100
[ |
[ O 1 2 3 45 6 7 8 9 10 [M]
[ - S S S S S .
N

Bedroom 3 ‘“‘
2550

Bedroom 2

DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING. WORK TO FIGURED DIMENSIONS
ONLY. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT OF APS DESIGNS AND
SHOULD ONLY BE REPRODUCED WITH THEIR EXPRESS PERMISSION.
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. ANY DISCREPANCIES SHOULD
BE REPORTED TO APS DESIGNS PRIOR TO COMMENGCEMENT.

@ Proposed Ground Floor Plan @ Proposed First Floor Plan @ Proposed Roof Plan

Scale: 1:100 Scale: 1:100 Scale: 1:100
Rev D 15/09/2020 Car port removed
Rev C 14/09/2020 Car port reduced and dormer amended
Rev B 17/08/2020 Car port and dormer amended
RevA | 07/07/2020 | Lenght of the car port amended
REVISION DATE AMENDMENT

APS DESIGN ASSOCIATES LTD

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGNERS AND PLANNING CONSULTANTS

PROJECT STAGE: DRAWN BY: DATE:

Town Planning A.D. September 2020
CLIENT:

PROJECT:

1 Highwood Close

JOB NO: DRAWING NO: REVISION:
3032 03 D

DRAWING TITLE: SCALE:
Proposed 1:100 @ Al

The Design Studio

1 Cambridge Road (Rear)
Nelson Street
Southend-On-Sea

Essex

SS11ET

Tel: 01702 469 769 - 01702 337328
Email: admin@apsdesignsuk.com
designteam@apsdesignsuk.com
planning@apsdesignsuk.com
Website: www.apsdesignsuk.com



This page is intentionally left blank



1 Highwood Close



Application site

9T¢



yANA



8T¢



61¢



0ce



Reference: 20/01221/FULH

Application Type: Full Application - Householder 1 O
Ward: Thorpe

Proposal: Erect single storey front extension, install balcony to front
Address: 159 Burges Road, Thorpe Bay, Essex

Applicant: Mr Roger Humphrey

Agent:

Consultation Expiry: 31st August 2020

Expiry Date: 9th October 2020

Case Officer: Kara Elliott

Plan Nos:

Location plan, Site Plan, 01

Recommendation:

GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to conditions

221




1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

41

4.2

5.1
5.2

5.3

54
5.5

Site and Surroundings

The site is occupied by a detached two storey dwelling on the north side of Burges
Road, Thorpe Bay. The application site is set within a residential location which is
characterised by traditional, large, detached dwellings of a varying appearance.

The site has no specific allocation within the Development Management Document’s
Proposal Map.

The Proposal

The application seeks planning permission for a single storey front extension providing
an entrance porch to the dwelling. The extension would have a width of 3.3 metres
and would have a depth of 2.35 metres, projecting a metre deeper than the existing
front building line, with its roof reaching a height of 2.8 metres to its flat roof, with
balcony above, enclosed by 1m high glazed panels.

The extension would be finished with a brickwork dwarf wall, upvc windows and doors
and with glazed panels enclosing the balcony at first floor. A single door is proposed
at first floor from the existing dwelling to access the balcony.

Relevant Planning History
95/0466 — Single storey rear extension — Granted 28.06.1995;

99/0019- Erect Single Storey Rear Extension and Erect First Floor Side Extension —
Granted 10.03.1999.

Representation Summary
Public Consultation

Eight neighbouring properties were notified by letter. No letters of representation were
received.

The application is presented to the Development Control Committee for determination
as the applicant is a Southend Borough Council member of staff.

Planning Policy Summary

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019)

Core Strategy (2007) Policies CP4 (Environment and Urban Renaissance) and KP2
(Development Principles)

Development Management Document (2015): Policies DM1 (Design Quality), DM3
(Efficient and Effective Use of Land) and DM15 (Sustainable Transport Management)

The Design & Townscape Guide (2009)
CIL (Community Infrastructure Levy) Charging Schedule (2015)

222



6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Planning Considerations

The key considerations in relation to this application are the principle of the
development, design and impact on the character of the area, impacts on residential
amenity, parking and highways and CIL contributions.

Appraisal
Principle of Development

The principle of extending the dwelling and providing facilities in association with
residential accommodation is considered acceptable. Other material planning
considerations are discussed below.

Design and Impact on the Character of the Area

Good design is a fundamental requirement of new development to achieve high quality
living environments. Its importance is reflected in the NPPF, in Policies KP2 and CP4
of the Core Strategy and also in Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development
Management Document. The Design and Townscape Guide also states that; “the
Borough Council is committed to good design and will seek to create attractive, high-
quality living environments.”

Paragraph 124 of the NPPF states that; “The creation of high quality buildings and
places is fundamental to what the planning and development process should achieve.
Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better places in
which to live and work and helps make development acceptable to communities.”

Policy DM1 of the Development Management Document states that all development
should; “add to the overall quality of the area and respect the character of the site, its
local context and surroundings in terms of its architectural approach, height, size,
scale, form, massing, density, layout, proportions, materials, townscape and/or
landscape setting, use, and detailed design features”.

Policy DM3 (5) also advises that; ‘Alterations and additions to a building will be
expected to make a positive contribution to the character of the original building and
the surrounding area through:
(i) The use of materials and detailing that draws reference from, and where
appropriate enhances, the original building, and ensures successful integration
with it; and
(i) Adopting a scale that is respectful and subservient to that of the original
building and surrounding area; and
(i)  Where alternative materials and detailing to those of the prevailing
character of the area are proposed, the Council will look favourably upon
proposals that demonstrate high levels of innovative and sustainable design
that positively enhances the character of the original building or surrounding
area.’

Paragraph 360 of the Design and Townscape Guide under the heading of ‘Front
Extensions’ states that; “Extensions to the front of existing properties are generally
discouraged as they alter the relationship of property within the street and may be
detrimental to the wider townscape.”

223



7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

712

713

7.14

7.15

The proposed front extension would be in a similar position as an existing smaller
porch. The proposed addition would be a subservient and modest extension to the
dwelling which would be finished in materials to match the existing and would only
protrude one metre further forward than the existing front building line. The building
line of the existing dwelling is staggered and therefore the proposed development
would not appear as a stark protrusion from the front fagade of the dwelling.

It is also observed that within the vicinity of the site and in the area, there are other
examples of front balconies to dwellings and therefore the proposed addition would
not appear out of keeping or incongruent in its setting.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would not harm the character
and appearance of the dwelling, the streetscene or the wider surrounding area. It is
therefore acceptable and policy compliant in the above regards.

Impact on Residential Amenity

Paragraph 343 of the Design and Townscape Guide under the heading of; ‘Alterations
and Additions to Existing Residential Buildings’ states that; “extensions must respect
the amenity of neighbouring buildings and ensure not to adversely affect light, outlook
or privacy of the habitable rooms in adjacent properties.”

The application property is neighboured by no.157 to the west. The extension would
retain a gap of approximately 3.5 metres to the boundary shared with this property,
Due to this distance, effective screening, siting of the balcony at the front elevation
and due to its modest nature, the proposal would not result in undue dominant effects,
a material loss of light, overlooking, loss of privacy or outlook to the occupiers of
no.157 Burges Road.

The proposed addition would project 1 metre forward of the existing building line and
would therefore be shielded for its most part by the existing dwelling when viewed from
no.161 to the east. The boundary shared with no.161 is located at a distance of 7
metres from the proposed development. The proposal would therefore not result in
any material harm to the residential amenity of No.161 in any regard.

Due to the nature of the proposal and its siting at the front, the proposed development
would not lead to any material loss of amenity to any other neighbouring or nearby
occupiers from undue dominant effects, a material loss of light, overlooking, loss of
privacy or outlook.

The proposed development is therefore acceptable in regard to neighbour amenity
and policy compliant in this regard.

Highways and Parking
Policy DM15 of the Development Management Document states that new
development will only be permitted if it makes provision for off-street parking in

accordance with the adopted vehicle parking standards. For a dwelling of 2+
bedrooms, a minimum of 2 off-street parking spaces should be available.

224



9.1

01

02

03

7.16  The existing dwelling benefits from off-street parking to the front driveway for two

vehicles. The proposed front addition would not result in a loss of off-street parking
space at the application site.

7.17  Therefore, no objection is raised in relation to highway or parking and the proposal is

acceptable and policy compliant in this regard.

Community Infrastructure Levy

7.18 The proposed development equates to less than 100sgm of new floorspace. As such,

8.1

the development benefits from a Minor Development Exemption under the Community
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and no charge is payable.

Conclusion

Having regard to all material considerations assessed above, it is considered that
subject to compliance with the attached conditions, the proposed development would
be acceptable and compliant with the objectives of the relevant local development plan
policies and guidance as well as those contained within the National Planning Policy
Framework. The proposed development would have an acceptable impact on the
amenities of neighbouring occupiers and the character and appearance of the
application site and the locality more widely with no adverse highways impacts. This
application is therefore recommended for approval, subject to conditions.

MEMBERS ARE RECOMMENDED TO GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to
the following conditions:

The development hereby permitted shall begin no later than three years from the
date of this decision.

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: Location plan, Site Plan, 01.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
provisions of the Development Plan.

All new work to the outside of the building must match existing original work in
terms of the choice of materials, method of construction and finished appearance.
This applies unless differences are shown on the drawings hereby approved or are
required by conditions to this permission.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that the appearance of the
building makes a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the area.
This is as set out in the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy
(2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policy
DM1, and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

225



The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations,
including planning policies and any representations that may have been received
and subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the
presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National
Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report on the
application prepared by officers.

Informatives

1. You are advised that as the proposed extension(s) to your property equates to
less than 100sgm of new floorspace the development benefits from a Minor
Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations
2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable. See
www.southend.gov.uk/cil for further details about CIL.

2. You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek
to recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land. Please
take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and
footpaths in the Borough.

226


http://www.southend.gov.uk/cil

227



This page is intentionally left blank



229



This page is intentionally left blank



T€C



This page is intentionally left blank



€ee

20/01221/FULH

159 Burges Road Thorpe Bay
Essex SS1 3JN

Erect single storey front
extension, install balcony to
front



vee



GEC



9€¢C



LEC



8€¢



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on Wednesday, 29th July 2020
	Minutes

	 Contents List and Introduction
	5 20/01045/AMDT - 67 Branksome Road, Southend-on-Sea (Kursaal Ward)
	67 Site and Location
	67 Elevations
	Site Photos

	6 20/01095/AMDT - Beaumont Court and Richmond House - 71 Victoria Avenue, Southend-on-Sea (Victoria Ward)
	01 2006 appeal decision
	02 2006 approved ground floor layout and landscping
	03 2006 approved square landscaping
	04 2006 approved elevations 1
	05 2006 approved elevations 3
	06 2006 approved elevations 4
	07 2006 approved elevations 2
	08  2015 approved changes to ground floor layout including entrance and cycles 15-01147-NON
	08 proposed site layout including parking cyles refuse residents facilities and landscaping
	09 2006 approved boundary treatment
	10 proposed front boundary landscaping prev approved under 20-00686-AMDT
	11 2018 approved changes to public space 18-01241-FUL
	12 proposed revised landscaping for public square
	13 proposed elevations for beaumont court N E
	14 proposed elevations for beaumont court S W
	15 proposed elevations for Richmond house
	16 proposed roof terrace landscaping
	17 proposed roof garden details floor 3
	18 proposed roof garden details floor 11
	19 proposed roof garden details richmond
	Beaumont Court and Richmond House

	7 20/01146/FUL - 15 Aylesbeare, Shoeburyness (West Shoebury Ward)
	0-100 Site Plan
	Sheets
	0-100 - Site Plan - Proposed


	1-001 Existing Plans and elevation
	Sheets
	1-001 - Existing Plans & Elevations


	1-100 Proposed Plans and Elevations
	Sheets
	1-100 - Proposed Plans & Elevations


	1-105 Proposed Plans and Elevations
	Sheets
	1-105 - Proposed Plans & Elevations


	2-002 3D Views Exisitng
	Sheets
	2-002 - 3D Views


	2-102 3D Views Proposed
	Sheets
	2-102 - 3D Views


	15 Aylesbeare 2020

	8 20/01018/FULH - 115 Tattersall Gardens, Leigh-on-Sea (West Leigh Ward)
	Appendix 1 Appeal Decision 115 Tattersall Gardens 18 01234 FULH
	1200 012 Revision E
	1200 012 Rev J
	115 Tattersall Gardens August 20

	9 20/01048/FULH - 1 Highwood Close, Leigh-on-Sea  (Blenheim Park Ward)
	Drawing 01 Rev D
	Sheets and Views
	3032_01_Site Location Plan_RevD_A3


	Drawing 02
	Drawing 03 Rev D
	Sheets and Views
	3032_03_Proposed_RevD_A1


	1 Highwood Close

	10 20/01221/FULH - 159 Burges Road, Thorpe Bay, Southend-on-Sea (Thorpe Ward)
	Location Plan
	Site Plan
	01 Existing & Proposed Floor, Roof Plans & Elevations
	Site photographs




